BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Regular and Executive Sessions Agenda
Monday, December 8, 2025
5:00 p.m.
LINC Library Innovation Center
501 8™ Avenue, Greeley, CO 80631

This is also streamed virtually by GoToMeeting.

The meeting can be viewed from your computer, tablet, or smartphone.
https://www.mylibrary.us/hpldboardmeetings. To view the Board meeting online, use this link and select the date
of the meeting you want to join. If you have public comments, you may submit questions at the time of signing
up for the meeting. All participants will be muted.

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/399313765

If you wish to address the Board via Public Comment, please attend the meeting in person. If you
are unable to attend in person, you can submit public comments to the Board prior to the Board
meeting via Formstack: https:/hpld.formstack.com/forms/board_questions

The High Plains Library District Board may take action on any of the following agenda items as presented or
modified prior to or during the meeting, and items necessary or convenient to effectuate the agenda items.

1.0 OPENING OF MEETING
1.1 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
1.2 Approval of Agenda
1.3 Approval of Consent Agenda

a. November 17, 2025 Regular and Executive Sessions Meeting Minutes
1.4 The Good We Do
L.5 Public Comment

2.0 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/ACTION
2.1 Introduction of new Trustees (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
2.2 Final Budget Overview (Action) — Natalie Wertz, HPLD Finance Manager
a. Resolution 25-1, Adopt Budget
b. Resolution 25-2, Appropriate Sums of Money
c. Resolution 25-3, Set Mill Levy, Weld County
d. Resolution 25-4, Set Mill Levy, Boulder County


https://www.mylibrary.us/hpldboardmeetings
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/399313765
https://hpld.formstack.com/forms/board_questions

3.0

4.0

5.0

6.0

2.3 457 Plan Update (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
2.4 Strategic Plan Updates (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
a. Construction Updates
b. Workforce Development
c. Literacy
2.5 Outgoing Trustee Recognition (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

DIRECTORS REPORT
3.1 Review Draft Agenda — Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
a. January 12,2026 RS
32 District Updates — Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

BOARD COMMENTS
4.1 Chair Report
4.2 Vice-Chair
4.3 Secretary/Treasurer
4.4 Committees
4.5 Other Board Members

EXECUTIVE SESSION
5.1 C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (f) Personnel Matters — Matthew Hortt’s Performance Appraisal

ADJOURNMENT

Upcoming meetings.

January 12,2026, 5:00p.m.: HPLD Board of Directors Meeting - Regular Session
LINC Library Innovation Center, 501 8 Avenue, Greeley, CO 80631



BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Regular and Executive Sessions Minutes
Monday, November 17, 2025
5:00 p.m.
LINC Library Innovation Center
501 8™ Avenue, Greeley, CO 80631

1.0 OPENING OF MEETING at 5:00PM
1.1 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance

All Trustees were Present:
Chair Nick Nakamura
Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
Secretary/Treasurer Deana Lemos-Garcia
Trustee Jenna Evans attended virtually
Trustee Gerri Holton
Trustee Michael Wailes
Trustee Lisa Taylor

Quorum was established.

Also Attending were:
Legal Counsel Bill Garcia
HPLD Staff: Dr. Matthew Hortt, Marjorie Elwood, Eric Ewing, Nataliec Wertz, Niamh
Mercer, Rick Medrano, and Kim Parker

Chair Nakamura read the following statements into record:

High Plains Library District is dependent on the trust of its community to successfully achieve its mission.
Therefore, it is crucial that all Trustees conduct business on behalf of the High Plains Library District
with the highest level of integrity, truth, and honor, avoiding any impropriety or the appearance of
impropriety.

At HPLD, we ASPIRE to help build community and be a valued community resource.

1.2 Approval of Agenda
MOTION to approve the agenda: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton
DISCUSSION: None
VOTE: 6:0



1.3 Approval of Consent Agenda
October 13, 2025 Regular and Executive Sessions Meeting Minutes
MOTION to approve the consent agenda: Trustee Michael Wailes
SECOND: Trustee Lisa Taylor
DISCUSSION: None
VOTE: 6:0

1.4 The Good We Do
Dr. Hortt presented the Good We Do
On Oct 16", the Weld County Project Connect was held at Island Grove Regional Park, and over
1,000 people attended and were helped through services provided by numerous organizations in
human services, healthcare, legal, government, and much more. HPLD participated again this
year and provided L.T. help, library services, and staff to serve as navigators and a red-shirt lead.
It was a great event and had a huge impact on the community.

1.5 Public Comment
No public comment.

2.0 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/ACTION
2.1 HPLD 2026 Holiday Schedule (Action) — Eric Ewing, HPLD Human Resources Associate
Director
Eric Ewing presented the list of ten days that the District will be closed: nine are paid days off,
and one is not. Employees also get two floating holidays that they may take at their discretion.
The holiday calendar can be found in the board packet.
MOTION to approve the proposed holiday schedule for 2026: Trustee Lisa Taylor
SECOND: Secretary/Treasurer Deana Lemos-Garcia
DISCUSSION: None
VOTE: 6:0

2.2 2026 Board Meeting Calendar (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
State Revised Statutes require that regular board meetings be posted and that the 2026 schedule
be set at this time of the year. The calendar can be found in the board packet.
MOTION to approve the board meeting calendar for 2026: Trustee Gerri Holton
SECOND: Trustee Michael Wailes
DISCUSSION: None
VOTE: 6:0

2.3 Guidelines for URA and TIF Proposals (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

At last month’s meeting, the board directed staff to propose guidelines for considering URA and
TIF proposals. The guidelines suggest setting a cap on the TIF, not exceeding 50% of the HPLD
mill levy, not contributing more than 5% of the total tax increment, and additional
considerations.

MOTION to approve and adopt the Guidelines for URA and TIF Proposals: Trustee

Michael Wailes

SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton

DISCUSSION: None

VOTE: 6:0


https://www.mylibrary.us/wp-content/uploads/2025/11/HPLD-Board-Packet-11.17.2025-RS-and-ES.pdf
https://www.mylibrary.us/wp-content/uploads/2025/11/HPLD-Board-Packet-11.17.2025-RS-and-ES.pdf

24 Town of Frederick — Miner’s Park URA (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
& Ryan Johnson, Assistant Town Manager, Town of Frederick
In last month’s meeting, Frederick presented a proposed URA for Miner’s Park. It asked for a
75% share of the total $3,000,000 TIF expense. The Board responded by asking staff to create a
set of guidelines. As was stated in the 2.3 discussion, above, a 50/50% share was suggested. At
50%, the District’s share would come to around $1,500,000.
MOTION to approve the Miner’s Park URA to follow the guidelines at a 50/50% split:
Trustee Lisa Taylor
SECOND: Trustee Michael Wailes
DISCUSSION: None
VOTE: 6:0

2.5 Guidelines for Safety Improvement Fund (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive
Director
As part the District’s agreements with the member libraries, including IGAs and addendums,
staff created Safety Improvement Fund Guidelines for reimbursing a member library up to
$20,000 per safety improvement project within a two-year period.
MOTION to approve the Safety Improvement Fund Guidelines as presented:
Secretary/Treasurer Deana Lemos-Garcia
SECOND: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
DISCUSSION: None
VOTE: 6:0

2.6 Trustee Appointments (Information)
Trustee Joyce Smock’s 2 term ends on December 31st. The recruiting process for a new
Trustee is complete, and the Establishing Bodies have ratified Patty Bodwell for the Region 6
Trustee position starting on January 1, 2026. She plans to attend the December 8" board
meeting, and will be introduced at that time. She’s a great partner to HPLD through her
involvement with the Briggsdale Library.
For Information Only. No Action Needed.

2.7 Strategic Plan Updates (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
Construction:
DSS: Staff have returned to the existing building, and there are still punch items to do there.
The new building is on track with brick work and stucco on the exterior, and sheet rock inside.
Mead: Construction is underway. Paving of the road into the property must be delayed until
spring. Another problem was found today: an unknown, older irrigation line was hit, and the
water district asked that the work on the property be delayed until all that is worked out.
Workforce Development:
Mobile Unit: building of the unit is in process, and surveys are being distributed. Over 100
surveys have been turned in.
Literacy:
The District continues to provide a variety of support for literacy.
For Information Only. No Action Needed.



3.0

4.0

5.0

DIRECTOR’S REPORT

3.1

3.2

Review Draft Agenda — Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
a. December 8, 2025

District Updates — Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
Dr. Hortt invited the Trustees to The Daughters of the American Revolution’s “Let’s Party like
it’s 1776 at the Erie Library on November 22.

There has been interesting publicity on LINC lately: Dr. James Gould made and posted a video,
and Greeley Lifestyle did an article in their November issue.

The United Way of Weld County was just given an opportunity to receive an extra 136,000 free
diapers from Huggies, but would have to pay the $5,000 shipping costs. Because HPLD is one of
the major distributors of free diapers for United Way, the District funded the shipping and so
there will be an extra 136,000 free diapers in the area.

Next year’s Innovation Luncheon will change to a Carnival in the Stacks. HPLD’s Friends &
Foundation will work with the construction sector partnerships to create carnival games and putt-
putt golf holes in the LINC stacks for an evening event, and then will be transported to the Erie
Library for an all-day family event.

BOARD COMMENTS

4.1
4.2

43

4.5

Chair Nakamura thanked everyone for an efficient meeting.
Vice-Chair Smock said she is pleased with the things going on and only two construction
projects.
Secretary/Treasurer Lemos-Garcia enjoys working with Joyce and appreciates her contributions,
and she thanked Joyce for leading the way for new members of the board. She also appreciates
having meetings in other libraries because she may not have visited each one otherwise.
Other Board Members
Trustee Evans appreciates listening to the discussions and the fact that there’s a lot of thought
and discussions going into decisions.
Trustee Holton will save her comments for Joyce for next month. She asked about ReadCon,
which will take place in April.
Trustee Wailes said the Foundation meeting went really well with the discussion of the new
format for the fundraiser.
Trustee Taylor thanked staff for their work and thoughtfulness on the URA guidelines. Also, at
the last Foundation board meeting, they got to hear from all the groups who had received
funding from the Foundation and what they accomplished with it. She also promoted Colorado
Gives Day.

EXECUTIVE SESSION

5.1

C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b) Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney —

Lochbuie Claim

5.2

C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b) Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney —

Granado claim

53

C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b) Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney —

Prairie & Pawnee School Board Vote



6.0

7.0

MOTION to adjourn from Regular Session and enter into Executive Session under C.R.S. §
24-6-402(4) — Pursuant to section C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b), Receiving legal advice on specific
legal questions from an attorney — Lochbuie Claim, Granado Claim, and Prairie and Pawnee
School Boards Votes: Trustee Lisa Taylor

SECOND: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock

DISCUSSION: None

VOTE: 6:0

An executive session meeting of the Board of Trustees of the High Plains Library District was
convened at 6:31pm on November 17, 2025, for the sole purpose of receiving legal advice on
specific legal questions from an attorney — Lochbuie Claim, Granado Claim, and Prairie and
Pawnee School Boards Vote.
At 6:31pm on November 17, 2025, an executive session meeting of the Board of Trustees of
the High Plains Library District was convened for the sole purpose of receiving legal advice
on specific legal questions from an attorney on the Lochbuie Claim. The discussion ended at
7:14pm.
At 7:14pm, the executive session continued for the sole purpose of receiving legal advice on
specific legal questions from an attorney on the Granado Claim. The discussion ended at
7:24pm.
At 7:24pm, the executive session continued for the sole purpose of receiving legal advice on
specific legal questions from an attorney on the Prairie & Pawnee School Boards Votes. The
discussion ended at 8:05pm.
Attending the entire session of all three topics were Chair Nick Nakamura; Vice-Chair Joyce
Smock; Secretary/Treasurer Deana Lemos-Garcia; Trustees Jenna Evans, Gerri Holton,
Michael Wailes, and Lisa Taylor; Dr. Matthew Hortt; Natalie Wertz; and Legal Counsel
William Garcia.
During the executive session, the Board discussed or received advice regarding the Lochbuie
Claim, Granado Claim, and Prairie and Pawnee School Boards Votes, and did not engage in
substantive discussion of any matter not enumerated in C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b). The Board
did not adopt any policy, position, resolution, rule, regulation, or take any formal action.
RECONVENING OF REGULAR SESSION AT 8:07PM
6.1 Roll Call
All Trustees were Present unless noted
Chair Nick Nakamura
Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
Secretary/Treasurer Deana Lemos-Garcia
Trustee Jenna Evans was excused
Trustee Gerri Holton
Trustee Michael Wailes
Trustee Lisa Taylor

ADJOURNMENT AT 8:08PM:
There being no further business,
MOTION to adjourn the meeting: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton
DISCUSSION: None
VOTE: 6:0



Upcoming meetings:
December 8, 2025 at 5:00p.m.: HPLD Board of Directors Meeting - Regular Session
LINC Library Innovation Center, 501 8" Avenue, Greeley, CO 80631




HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION

Meeting date: December 8™, 2025

Type of item: Information

Subject: Trustee Appointments

Presented by: Dr. Matthew Hortt, Executive Director

Recommendation: Item for information only, no action to be taken

Background

Our Region 6 Joyce Smock’s Term is set to end on December 31%, 2025. The recruitment/selection
process was conducted per the Board bylaws earlier this year and requests for ratifications have been
sent to our Establishing Bodies.

Considerations

e The Selection Committee recommended Patty Bodwell be appointed to the HPLD Board to
serve as the Region 6 representative and she has been ratified by the Establishing Bodies
e Staff would like to introduce Patty Bodwell to the HPLD Board of Trustees

Recommendation

Item for information only, no action to be taken






HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION

Meeting date: December 8, 2025

Type of item: Action

Subject : Budget for 2026

Presented by: Matthew Hortt, Executive Director and Natalie Wertz, Finance Manager

Recommendation: Staff recommend that the board adopt the budget and mill levy resolutions for 2026

As required by state statute, we are presenting the budget for 2026. Below is a summary.

Property Tax $52,910,374
Specific Ownership Tax 1,680,000
Other Revenue 3,221,653
Total Revenues $57,812,027
Salaries $15,906,758
Benefits 6,000,499
Other Operations 12,609,678
Total Operations $34,516,935
Capital Outlay 17,820,900

Distributions to Member Libraries 12,458,884

Total Expenditures $64,796,719
Decrease in Net Assets $ 6,984,692

The 2026 proposed budgeted revenues have increased $970,988 or 1.71% from the 2025 budget. The major
source of revenue for the District is derived from a proposed 3.039 mill levy for operations applied to the
assessed value of portions of Weld and Boulder County properties.

The 2026 proposed budget includes funds for a Mead Library, DSS Expansion, and a quality level of library
services. The proposed budget includes planning for a 3.5% merit increase for staff and additional personnel
to support the new libraries and the growth of the library district. Since the certificates of participation were
paid off in December 2019, there is no proposed 2026 budget for the debt service fund.

Considerations
The proposed budget has been reviewed by the Finance Committee and is being recommended for approval.

Recommendation
Staff recommend that the Board adopt the budget and mill levy resolutions for 2026.






Library District

Finance Department
2650 W. 29'" Street
Greeley, Colorado 80631

Budget
2026

Board of Trustees

Nick Nakamura, Chairman
Joyce Smock, Vice Chairman
Deana Lemos-Garcia, Secretary/Treasurer
Jenna Evans
Gerri Holton
Lisa Taylor
Michael Wailes



_Library District

Administrative Office
2650 W. 291 Street
Greeley, CO 80631

District Support Team

Dr. Matthew Hortt, Executive Director
Bob Arellano, Facilities Manager
Marjorie Elwood, Associate Director of Public Services
Eric Ewing, Associate Director of Human Resources
Rebecca Libersat, Collection Resources Manager
James Melena, Community Relations and Marketing Manager
Niamh Mercer, Foundation Director
Elena Rosenfeld, Community Engagement and Strategies Manager
Susan Staples, Information Technology and Innovation Manager

Natalie Wertz, Finance Manager

Managers
Melissa Beavers, LINC

Melanie Goldman, Carbon Valley Regional Library
lan Holmes, Erie Community Library
Rita Kadavy, Riverside Library and Cultural Center
Rick Medrano, Outreach
Charlene Parker, Farr Regional Library
Mallory Pillard, Centennial Park Library



eI | Fununoaay

A 1 |

i
I
]

I0102I1(] SANNIAXT

ey [euoneziuesi(
1ISI( AreIqry sure]d YsSTH

preog uonEpuno.q

S2ISNIT, JO PIROF




Table of Contents

Budget Message
Letter to the Board........c.vii e 5
BUAge! NATAtIVE ..eeiiviiiiieiiiiiee e re e en s 9
Strategic Goals and Strategies........cic e 9
Short-Term Organization Factors..........ocovcvvinviiirien e 10
PrOrties and ISSUBS ....iivvi vt anr e 10
Fund Description and Fund Structure............ooooo i 12
Basis Of BUAGETING ..eviieiiiiiiieeir e 12
FInancial PONCIES.....uuveiiiiiiii e a e s enn e 13
BUAQet PrOCESS ... . et i4
FUND BAIANCE ..vvii i e s r e e ae e e s e e e s nnnenrens 16
REVENUES ....iiintirerirririrerrerrerrein e ersresseasesesiesiesianves sastasssnssssssssssssssssssnsranins 17
Long-range Financial PIans......c..cccccooiiiiiii e 20
Capital EXPenditUres .... ..ot 22
Impact of Capital Investments on Operating Budget ..o 23
[0 o S S PP URUPRTPRPPROR 23
Position Summary SChedule ... 24
Department DeSCriPliONS . ..vcoviivii e iirre e ae e rar s s e e s s nirrer e e e e e e e nmrene 24
Branch Services
Carbon Valley Regional LIDrary .......ccccceveeveiriieeciieiiiieeerenecveivencnneenenaen, 25
Centennial Park Library.......cc.ccooiii i, 26
District Services Library & Archive ... 26
Erie Community LIDrary......cccccvciviiin s 26
Farr Regional LIDIarny . ..ot e e e e 27
G T Y= O U O POV O TP 27
Kersey LIDFAIY ....coo it 27
LN ettt et s e r e et s b e e s e e e e e et e e e s e e e e e 28
1= To TP 28
Riverside Library and Cultural Center........cooovrrviiiiiiin e 29
Department of Community Engagement ........ccccoociviviiein e 29
OULreaCh SEIVICES ...ooovvccriiiiriiiieee s rsiircsrae e s sessiesreraereesaaesnasrarreeeeeaeaaeaeanes 30
Community Relations and Marketing Department..........covvvivireicenninininn 30
District Support Services
Collection Resources
Collection Development ... e e 31
Interlibrary Loan and Prospector......cccccicceneeeeee e 31
BibliographiC SerVICeS. ...t e e e 31
Finance Department ... ..o e ee e e e 32
Human Resources Depatment........c.ccooiivriueicniimiimiinieriiriiesies e 33
Facilities Department... ..ot aaan e 33
Information Technology and Innovation Department..........c.ccooeiiniivinnnn, 35
HPLD Friends & Foundation........c.cooooiiiiiii e 35

Goals and Objectives and Performance Measures ........ccvcevieiieeierierevrnienaenn, 35



2025 District Budget

Budgeted Revenue and EXpenditures ........cccoeviiviieniniiiieninicesniinenn 39
Resolution to Adopt Budget ... 46
Resolution to Appropriate Sums of Money......c.cocvviiiiiiiieiiinnes 48
Resolution to Set Mill Levies, Weld County.........cccceniiiininnieen, 49
Certification of Tax Levies, Weld County .......ccocoevieiiiiiniiniiiien 50
Resolution to Set Mill Levies, Boulder County ......ccccccoiviiniivininnnnnnn, 52
Centification of Tax Levies, Boulder County ...........cooviviiniininininienienen, 53
Lease-Purchase Schedule......c.ocoovveiiiriciiiiicecc e 55

Capital Improvement Program
N T =1 (172 3 OO PP 57
Item Description by L.ocation.......cccccov i 58

Department Budgets

Board Of TTUSIEES oot 61
EXECULIVE DiIr@CION .. iitriiiiie et tre e e e s ar s e s 62
Associate DIireCtors ... 63
Centennial Park LIDrarny.......cccovcvvuvreemimmiciiiircinnneninin s 64
Farr Regional Library ..., 65
Carbon Valley Regional LIDrary .........cccceioininiiiniinieene e, 66
LINCoIn Park LIDrarny ..ot 67
] L OO P PO UPTP 68
OULIEach SEIVICES .....covvviiriiirrieee e e 69
1Y T=Y= T OO PO PP 70
DSS Library & Archive ... e 71
o (T T P PO PO 72
T £1 PO PRSP PP PP PP PPPPPPPPS 73
Riverside Library and Cultural Center......c.ccccoviiiiiii, 74
€01 =T OO TORPT PSRt 75
AdmINIStration ... s 76
Community Relations and Marketing ........cccccviviiiiiiniii i, 77
Information Technology and Innovation ........eceeinni, 78
HUMan RESOUICES ..ot r s e e 79
T F= 1 (o1 S PO PP P 80
o T Ta e F= 1 [T 2 [P POUURTPURTORTOTITR 81
FaCilities SEIVICES 1.ivviiviiiiees bt e 82
ColleCtion RESOUITES ........cvvriiiriae e et e 83

Budget String Coding
N T =T =T ] o ST PR OT U RUPPRTRRTN 85
AIPNE SOM i e s 89



Statistical / Supplemental Section

Adjustments from proposed budget to final budget...........cccocvviieiiiinnnn 91
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property Table .......... 92
Assessed Value History Graph «.osus i sioasesimmmsms i 93
Assessed Value by Property Category Graph..........ccccoviiiiiiiieniniiieennn, 94
Proparty Tax Levias and Calletlong. ..o umnmammmmusmnsmpesos s s us e 95
Principal TaXpayers .......cooooiiiiiiiiiiii e e 96
PYIGIDal EMPIOVEES.......oescioenssssiissi s e e e i 97
Demographicand Ecanomic Stalislies «uvuammimmsanmuossanssons 98
Population Forecast Weld SOl v 99
Population by Age Group Weld County ........ccocviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiniiee, 100
Projected Weld County Population Change..........cccccccviiiiniiiciiiiiiencene, 101
Lohg-vange Tinansial projealion.uuisssiamsmmmsmim s ausm om s 102
Property Tax Classification and Assessment Rate SB22-238................ 103
Comparison: 5825233 16 HBRAB-1001 ... 104
GlosSSary ant ACPONYMIE. . ...omuosmmmmmsisisssmsn sy te s s 108

Other resources and information

High Plains Library District website https:/www.mylibrary.us/
Weld County Colorado website https://www.weldgov.com/

Colorado Oil and Gas Conservation Commission website
https://cogcc.state.co.us/#/home

Macrotrends website for oil and gas historical prices
https://www.macrotrends.net/1369/crude-oil-price-history-chart

Longforecast website for oil and gas pricing forecasts
https://longforecast.com/oil-price-today-forecast-2017-2018-2019-2020-2021-
brent-witi

State of Colorado Demography website
https://demography.dola.colorado.gov/

Upstate Colorado website https://upstatecolorado.org/news/
Weld County literacy information

https://nces.ed.gov/surveys/piaac/skillsmap/?view=comparison&geolevel=county
&first=8123



2026
Budget
Message



Admimistration
2650 W, 29% Street

[ ]
I Il I I )l(lllls Greeley (O 80631
Library District Phone: (970) 506-8550
Fax: (970) 506-8551

December 8, 2025
Dear Board of Trustees and High Plains Library District Taxpayers:

It is our pleasure to submit to you our 2026 budget for your consideration and adoption.
This budget was prepared by the Finance Department with input and direction from the
Board of Trustees, members of the District Administrative Support Team, Library
Managers, and the Executive Director. General guidelines used to formulate this
document include the mission statement, the strategic plan, the capital improvement
program forecast for the next five years, and financial projections of revenues and
expenditures for the next 10 years.

QOur Mission:

Helping build Community.

Our Vision:

HPLD is a valued community resource.

Our Values:

These values help clarify the principles that guide the High Plains Library District

(HPLD). As trustees, administration, and staff of the High Plains Library District, we are
committed to fulfilling our mission and vision while upholding the following values:

e Access — We provide access to all in our community.
e Serve - We serve (value) everyone in our communities.

o Partner — We partner to ensure access to expertise. We partner in support of
common goals and expanding our value.



’ / ® . Administration
— 4 3 2650 W, 29" Street
= highplains
Library l)i.sIJ‘]L('I Phone: (970) 506-8550

‘ Fax: (970) 506-8551

e Improve — We strive to be a role model organization through relentless efforts
to improve.

* Responsible — We are responsible with taxpayer funds and work to be
taxpayer proud.

e Enrich — We enrich lives through providing the opportunity to learn and grow.

At High Plains Library District we ASPIRE to help build community and be a valued
community resource.

Overview

This budget will support the High Plains Library District in achieving its mission and
vision by providing the necessary funding for the operation of the libraries, the outreach
department, public computing centers, and administration and support services.

The budget consists of:

» Summary schedules listing revenues, expenditures, beginning and ending fund
balances.

> The 5-year capital improvement program, plus narrative.

The 2026 proposed budget includes funds for construction in Mead, an addition at the
DSS location, and an operating budget for continuing to provide a quality level of
library services.

The budgeted general fund revenues for 2026 are $57,812,027 and the budgeted
general fund expenditures for 2026 are $64,796,719. That equates to a budgeted
decrease in net assets of $6,984,692.

Budgeted revenues for 2026 have increased 1.71% from the 2025 budget. Budget
restrictions in other expenditure areas have allowed for planning for a 3.5% merit
increase for staff. High Plains Library District is planning for additions to FTE and staff
headcount in 2026 primarily to staff the new library in Mead, the DSS expansion, and
Workforce Mobile Unit. The budget includes funds to continue to participate in
Prospector which allows patrons increased access to additional resources beyond the
High Plains Library District collection.

The primary source of revenue for the District is derived from a 3.039 mill levy for
operations applied to the assessed value of portions of Weld and Boulder County
properties. Property tax which includes delinquent taxes, refunds and abated taxes
comprise 91% percent of the District's budgeted revenue for 2026 while specific
ownership tax is 3%. The remaining 6% percent consists of investment earnings,
grants, fines, fees, and miscellaneous revenues.



A
7, highplains

ibrarv District Phone: (970) 506-8550
Fax: (970) 506-8551

Budgeted Revenues

$1,680,000,3%  3:221,653, 6%

&

= Property Taxes = Specific Ownership Taxes = Other Revenue

The expenditures of the district are comprised of salaries and benefits that equal
34% of the budgeted expenditures, operating expenditures add an additional 19%,
capital outlay equals 28%, and the tax distribution to member libraries equals 19% of
the total budgeted expenditures.

Budgeted Expenditures

«

= Salaries and Benefits = Operating = Capital Qutlay = Member tax distributions



° ® Admimuistration

p 3 2650 W, 20" Street

hlgh laimns
L.ibrary l)}n,i}iL(] Phone: (970) 506-8550

' Fax: (970) 506-8551

o
oA

Budget

The annual budget and appropriation ordinance is adopted by the Board of Trustees in
accordance with the Colorado State Statute (29-1-108(4), C.R.S.). The budget is
prepared on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States for all governmental funds. The accounting system is employed as a
budgetary management control device during the year to monitor the individual
expenditures. The 2026 budget will be continuously evaluated to assure that funds are
expended judiciously.

Respectfully submitted,

Dr. Matthew Hortt Natalie Wertz
Executive Director Finance Manager



High Plains Library District
Budget Narrative

Strategic Goals and Strategies

During late 2024, High Plains Library District (HPLD) began the strategic planning
process (SPP) for 2026. This process involved gathering ideas from staff, listening to
community members throughout the library district, meeting with governmental and non-
profit organizations, and having discussions with community leaders, board members,
and staff. Dr. Matthew Hortt, Executive Director, used the input from these stakeholders
to develop a strategic plan.

The SPP is designed to support, inform, and align with the budget process. See the
diagram below. HPLD is working toward repeating this process annually.

WHAT'S BEEN DONE SO FAR....AND WHERE WE'RE

HEADING
@ -

@ @

DECEMBER — JANUARY FEBRUARY — MARCH APRIL— MAY JUNE -
STAFF SUBMITTED CHALLENGES THE SUBMISSIONS COMPILED, SORTED, SUBMISSIONS EVALUATED USING BUDGET PLANNING
COMMUNITY 1S FACING AND IDEAS AND REVIEWED ASSESSMENT TOOL PROCESS

ON HOW HPLD CAN HELP

The strategic plan goals include:
e developing programs focused on life skills and workforce development
(Skills pipeline);
e capital projects discussed later;
e supporting literacy throughout the district.



Short-Term Organization Factors

A demographic study completed during 2019 indicated that the High Plains Library
District service area is experiencing and is expected to experience significant population
growth in the foreseeable future. The 2020 census reports a Weld County population of
328,981, an increase of over 76,000 or 30% from the 2010 census. The Colorado State
Demography office is forecasting the Weld County population to grow to 422,751 in
2030. High Plains Library District will need to provide library services to those
individuals. This growth influences decisions about facilities, staffing, and how best to
provide library services efficiently and effectively. The budget for 2026 includes an
operational budget and capital projects needed to serve the growing population.

A significant portion of the property tax base for High Plains Library District is from oil
and gas. That causes significant volatility in the revenue stream.

Budget Year Oil and Gas percentage of HPLD assessed value
2026 55%
2025 58%
2024 67 %
2023 60%
2022 43%

The Colorado Legislature passed SB19-181 in April 2019. That law changed the way oil
and gas production is regulated in Colorado. The uncertainty about the long-term
impacts of that law on the oil and gas industry affects revenue projections and decisions
about spending available resources and the level of reserves that should be maintained.
Other changes in state and federal policy and regulation have impacts on oil and gas
production and prices. This uncertainty has caused the library district to maintain a
higher level of reserves than might be seen if the property tax base was more
predictable.

Inflation continued to increase in 2023 and increased at a slower rate in 2024 and 2025.
Inflation is expected to continue into 2026 and is expected to impact most operating
expenditures and capital projects. Inflationary pressure on wages and a competitive
labor market are expected to increase the cost of labor. The Federal Reserve
maintained the Federal Funds Rate at 4.25% 1o 4.5% through much of 2025. The
Federal Reserve cut the rate by .25% at the September and October meetings bringing
the Federal Funds rate to 3.75% to 4.00%.

Priorities and Issues

The permanent, long-term effects of the economic conditions created by the shutdowns
in response to COVID-19 are yet to be determined. However, the oil and gas market
crash and dramatic increase in unemployment that occurred in 2020 demonstrated a
need in our communities for High Plains Library District to respond by providing more




skills-based and development programming to help people acquire and improve
marketable skills. The shutdowns during 2020 helped identify locations in our district
where improved Internet access is most needed. In response to that need, HPLD
obtained grants to purchase mobile Wi-Fi units, placed Wi-Fi units in high need
locations in the district community, and purchased 16 mobile Wi-Fi units that were made
available for specialty checkout. During 2026, High Plains Library District will work with
partner agencies to continue to close the digital divide, improve digital literacy and
access.

In addition to the factors noted above, the diversity of the population in the service area
must be considered in the development of the budget. High Plains Library District is
committed to ensuring that our programs and services are accessible to everyone and
is continually striving to improve the library experience for all visitors. The materials
collection, programs, and services should be designed to provide some level of library
service for the entire population. The facilities and staff should feel welcoming to a wide
variety of individuals. The population diversity affects decisions about amounts and
types of materials purchased and programs that are offered at the libraries. Funds have
been allocated in the Collection Resources department to allow the library to purchase a
wide spectrum of materials in a variety of formats and genres. Resources have been
allocated in the budget for citizenship, English as a Second Language (ESL), and Right
to Read classes. Each year High Plains Library District is honored to host a
naturalization ceremony for individuals who have completed citizenship classes and
passed the examination. 28 individuals from 17 countries including Brazil, Canada,
Djibouti, Mexico, Nepal, Philippines, Sri Lanka, Sudan, and the United Kingdom became
United States citizens in the 12" annual naturalization ceremony in Greeley, Colorado
on June 27, 2025.

The library district covers a geographical area of almost 4,000 square miles in
northeastern Colorado. High Plains Library District includes most of Weld County and a
small portion of Boulder County. The service area includes some near-urban/suburban,
more densely populated areas, and some rural, remote, sparsely populated areas.
Providing library services in areas where individuals do not have convenient access to a
library building requires creativity and additional resources. The Outreach Department
is designed to provide library services to those individuals. Funds have been allocated
in the 2026 budget for Outreach department operations. The Information Technology
and Innovation (ITl) Department budget will aliow High Plains Library District to continue
to support access to electronic resources throughout the district.

The development of the strategic plan has allowed High Plains Library District to
improve the focus on priorities for the 2026 budget. The basic priority has been and
continues to be providing high-quality library services throughout the district. The focus
for 2026 has been refined to specific capital projects, supporting literacy, and
developing skills-based and workforce development programming (Skills pipeline).

Moving to more skills-based programming, supporting literacy, developing operational
excellence, and specific capital projects were focus points for the 2025 budget. HPLD



will continue to focus on specific capital projects, supporting literacy, and skills-based
and workforce development programming in 2026.

As High Plains Library District pursues its mission of Helping build Community,
taxpayers, patrons, and staff members will know that we are succeeding when patrons
are accessing the collection, attending programs, learning new skills, and developing
skills. Another marker of success for HPLD is having community partners and local
leaders that are engaged with and support the library.

Fund Description and Fund Structure

High Plains Library District maintains two funds for accounting and budgeting purposes
— the general fund and the debt service fund.

The general fund is High Plains Library District's primary operating fund. It accounts for
all financial resources of the district, except those required to be accounted for in
another fund. The general fund is a major governmental fund of the district and the
2026 budget appropriates funds for the general fund.

The debt service fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for
principal and interest on the long-term debt of the district. The debt service fund has
also been a major governmental fund of the district. The Certificates of Participation
Series 2010 were paid off in December 2019. The district has no long-term debt
outstanding as of December 31, 2025. There is no debt service fund budget
appropriated for 2026.

Basis of Budgeting

Annual budget and appropriation ordinances are adopted by the board in accordance
with the Colorado State Budget Law. The budget is prepared on a basis consistent with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States for all governmental funds
(modified-accrual - the same basis of accounting used in the audited financial
statements). Depreciation is not budgeted for and capital outlay is budgeted for.
Depreciation is recorded in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report government-
wide financial statements and capital outlay expenditures are capitalized in the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report government-wide financial statements.

The accounting system is employed as a budgetary management control device during
the year to monitor expenditures. The legal level of control is at the fund level. All
annual appropriations lapse at year end.



Financial Policies

Below is a summary of some financial policies of High Plains Library District. High
Plains Library District is in compliance with the financial policies. The 2026 budget is
prepared in compliance with these policies. The finance policies are available on the
High Plains Library District website.

Balanced Budget

Colorado state statute and district policy does not allow a budget with deficit spending
which is defined as expenditures in excess of available revenues and beginning fund

balance. A balanced budget is defined as a budget where budgeted expenditures do
not exceed budgeted revenues plus beginning fund balance.

Fund Balance / Reserve

High Plains Library District is subject to the Emergency Reserve requirements of the
Colorado Taxpayers Bill of Rights (TABOR). The TABOR Emergency Reserve
provision requires High Plains Library District to maintain a reserve of 3% of prior year
revenues. In addition to the emergency reserve, High Plains Library District policy
requires six months of operating expenditures to be maintained as a fund balance
reserve.

Debt

High Plains Library District is prohibited from issuing debt in excess of the legal debt
limit of 1.5% of assessed value. Colorado TABOR prohibits governments from issuing
bonds without a vote by the citizens. Governments may issue Certificates of
Participation without a vote of the citizens. High Plains Library District policy requires
approval of the Board of Trustees to issue long-term debt.

Investment

High Plains Library District investment policy complies with Colorado state law. The
primary investment objectives are preservation of capital and liquidity. Permitted
investments include U.S. Treasuries, Federal Agencies and Instrumentalities, Corporate
Securities, Local Government Investment Pools, and Money Market Funds.

Budgetary Control

The legal level of control is the fund level. The proposed budget is presented to the
Board of Trustees by October 15 each year. The proposed budget is posted on the
High Plains Library District website and interested parties can review it from the website
or in person at the district’s administrative offices during regular business hours. A
public hearing is scheduled and held by December 15 each year. The Board of
Trustees adopts the mill levy and the budget by December 15 each year. The budget is
posted on the district’s website and filed with the State of Colorado by the end of
January each year. During the year, the finance department prepares monthly budget
to actual reports of revenues and expenditures. The budget to actual reports are posted
on the High Plains Library District website and sent to the HPLD finance committee.
The Executive Director, the finance department, and each department head and library



manager monitor the budget to actual activity throughout the year. If a budget
amendment is needed, the amendment is presented to the board, a public hearing is
scheduled and held, and the board votes on the amendment. |f the board approves the
amendment, the amended budget is filed with the State of Colorado.

Revenue

The primary revenue source for High Plains Library District is property tax. Property tax
revenue is a function of the assessed valuation of taxable property within the district as
certified by the county assessors multiplied by the mill levy approved by the Board of
Trustees. Property taxes are billed and collected by the county treasurers. The county
treasurers disburse the property taxes to the taxing districts by the 10" day of the month
following collection. High Plains Library District records the property tax revenue
received each month as revenue for the previous month. The property taxes levied for
the following year are recorded as receivables and deferred revenue in the current
year’s audited financial statements.

Budget Process

Public input on the budget is obtained by feedback received throughout the year.
Participants in some programs are invited to take formal surveys. Staff members
receive informal feedback through conversations with community members. During
2023, HPLD began testing the LCI (Library Confidence Indicator) as a tool for collecting
community feedback. Community members may submit requests for the purchase of
specific items for the library collection. That formal and informal feedback is used o
help determine what types of programs are offered and what materials are purchased
for the collection. Public use of the libraries (gate count) and circulation statistics impact
budget decisions about staffing levels at the libraries. Circulation statistics also impact
budget decisions about what materials are purchased for the library collection.
Computer use statistics help determine the number of computer stations that are
maintained at each facility. Participation at the stops offered by Qutreach helps
determine the schedule, frequency, and locations that are visited. Board meetings are
open to the public and attendees may sign up for public comment to address the board
about library services or district budget decisions.

HPLD uses the assessment matrix below, a modified version of the Eisenhower Matrix,
as a tool to prioritize ideas and opportunities into potential action as part of the
budgeting process.



ASSESSMENT MATRIX

Go! Do Now Do, But Be Careful

High Value /Impact High Value /Impact
& Low & High
Cost/Complexity Cost/Complexity

4
o
=2
-
(151
e
=
-
Q
<
o
=

Avoid
Assess & Evaluate e

Low Cost/Lo High
Impcér i Cost/Complexity &
Low Value/Impact

COST/COMPLEXITY

The High Plains Library District budget preparation process typically begins in late June
or early July every year. The Finance Department provides budget request worksheets
to each library manager and department head. Library managers and department
heads complete the budget request worksheets and return them to the Finance
Department by the end of July or early August each year. This includes capital outlay
projects identified by the Facilities Department throughout the year during facility walk
throughs and from the planned maintenance and replacement schedule.

During August and early September, the Finance Department compiles the requests
and reviews them with the Executive Director and Associate Directors. The requests
are prioritized, and any necessary adjustments are made and discussed with the library
managers or department heads. The preliminary budget is reviewed with the finance
committee and the committee may make recommendations for revisions to the budget.

Per state statute, the proposed budget must be presented to the board by October 15
each year. The proposed budget for 2026 was presented to the board at the October
13, 2025 board meeting. The proposed budget was then posted on the High Plains
Library District website and a copy was available in the administrative office for public
review. A public hearing notice was published.

Per state statute, the Board of Trustees must certify the mill levy by December 15 each
year and adopt the budget by December 31 each year. The 2026 budget was adopted
and the mill levy was certified at the December 8, 2025 board meeting. The adopted
budget was then posted on the High Plains Library District website and filed with the
Colorado Department of Local Affairs Division of Local Government. A copy of the
budget is also available in the administrative office of High Plains Library District.



Between October when the proposed budget was presented to the board and
December when the final budget was presented to the board, some budget adjustments
were made. A table of the adjustments is included in the supplemental / statistical
section of this budget document.

The legal level of budgetary control is at the fund level. If necessary, the budget may be
amended by preparing and presenting a budget amendment to the BOT and holding a
public hearing. If the BOT approves the budget amendment, the amended budget must
be filed with the Colorado Department of Local Affairs Division of Local Government.
Budget amendments may be presented to the BOT at any time during the year. Any
budget amendments must be approved by the BOT before the end of the budget year.

Statutory Budget Calendar

August 25 Assessors certify to all taxing entities and to the Division of Local
Government the total new assessed and actual values to compute the
statutory and TABOR property tax revenue limit.

October 15 Budget officer must submit proposed budget to the governing board.
Governing body must publish “Notice of Budget” upon receiving
proposed budget.

December 10 | Changes in assessed valuation made by the assessors will be made
only once by a single notification to the county commissioners or
other body authorized by law to levy property tax, and to the Division
of Local Government.

December 22 | Deadline for county commissioners to levy taxes and to certify the
levies to the assessor.

January 30 A certified copy of the adopted budget for the current fiscal year must
be filed with the Division of Local Government no later than this date.

Fund Balance

Fund balance may be defined as the excess of the assets of a fund over its liabilities,
reserves, and carryover.

The budget for 2026 plans for a decrease in fund balance of approximately $7 million.
High Plains Library District anticipates a decrease in property tax revenue in 2026. High
Plains Library District is budgeting for an increase in salaries and benefits expenditures
FTE (full-time equivalent) and regular staff headcount that will be added in 2026.



Revenues

The primary revenue source (approximately 92%) of the High Plains Library District is
the property tax mill levy. The revenue estimate for the budget is calculated based on
the certification of assessed valuation received from the county assessors multiplied by
the mill levy that is certified by the High Plains Library District Board of Trustees and the
Weld and Boulder County Commissioners.

Property Tax Revenue
$80,000,000.00

$70,000,000.00
$60,000,000.00
$50,000,000.00
$40,000,000.00
$30,000,000.00

20,000,000.00
$10,000,000.00

S-

201520162017201820192020202120222023202420252026202720282029203020312032203320342035

The Gallagher Amendment in the Colorado Constitution limited the portion of statewide
property tax revenue that could come from residential property to 45%. The remaining
55% of statewide property tax revenue was to be levied on other property types —
commercial, agricultural, etc. The assessment rate for non-residential property types
except oil and gas was fixed at 29%. To maintain that 45% / 55% ratio, the residential
assessment rate was adjusted every two years. Since residential property values
statewide have increased faster than the other property types, the residential
assessment rate had been decreasing. The decreases in the residential assessment
rate effectively become permanent since the Taxpayer Bill of Rights (TABOR) in the
Colorado Constitution prohibits any tax increases without a vote of the citizens and
increasing the residential assessment rate has been interpreted as a tax increase. A
measure to repeal the Gallagher Amendment passed in November 2020 election. With
the repeal of the Gallagher Amendment, the residential assessment rate was fixed at
7.15% and the non-residential assessment rate was fixed at 29%. The effects of the
repeal of the Gallagher Amendment resulted in significant legislative activity every year
from 2021 to 2024.

In June 2021, the state legislature passed SB 21-293 reducing the assessment rates on
some classes of property for 2022 and 2023 valuations (collection years 2023 and
2024) from 7.15% to 6.95%, 7.15% to 6.8%, and 29% to 26.4%. Under SB 21-293,
assessment rates were to return to the previous levels for 2024 valuations.



In June 2022, the state legislature passed SB 22-238 which reduced assessment rates
on some classes of property and exempted some portions of valuations of some
classes of property for the 2023 and 2024 valuations. Colorado Counties, Inc. has
prepared a table summarizing the changes in the assessment rates. Please see the
statistical and additional information section for that table.

In May 2023 during the last week of the legislative session, the state legislature passed
SB 23-303 which submitted a measure on the November 2023 ballot known as
Proposition HH. Provisions of SB 23-303 / Proposition HH included slightly reducing the
assessment rate on some residential properties and some other property classes while
allowing the State of Colorado to retain more revenue than currently allowed under
TABOR for 2023 through 2032 and changes to the statutory budget calendar for this
year only which would delay final certifications of valuation and mill levy certifications.
Proposition HH failed in the November election.

On Thursday following the November election, the governor called a special session of
the state legislature to begin November 17, 2023 to address the increase in property
taxes. During the special session, the state legislature passed SB23B-001 which
reduced the residential assessment rate to 6.7%, exempted the first $55,000 of
residential property value, and delayed the budget adoption and mill levy certification
dates for the 2024 budget year only. SB23B-001 also established a property tax
commission tasked with studying the property tax structure in Colorado and bringing
recommendations to the legislature.

During the last week of the regular legislative session in May 2024, the state legislature
passed SB24-233. Provisions of SB24-233 include limiting property tax revenue
increases to 5.5% annually, reduced residential and commercial property assessment
rates, and creating different assessment rates for school districts.

Two initiatives to reduce property taxes were to be included in the November 2024
ballot. To have the sponsoring groups remove the initiatives from the ballot, the
governor called a special session to further address property taxes in August 2024.
HB24B-1001 was passed during the special session. SB24-233 and HB24B-1001
continued most of the provisions of SB23B-001 for budget year 2025. The provisions of
HB24B-1001 limit property tax revenue increases to 10.5% per reassessment cycle
(5.25% per year) and further reduces assessment rates for residential and commercial
property which will have a negative impact on HPLD property tax revenue starting with
budget year 2026. The limit of a 5.25% increase per year requires HPLD to issue a
temporary credit to reduce the mill levy from 3.177 to 3.039 for budget year 2026. Both
SB24-233 and HB24B-1001 include a provision allowing the local government to go to
the voters to request that the local government be allowed to exceed the imposed
revenue limit.

A significant portion of the High Plains Library District tax base has been from oil and
gas. With the oil and gas market crash in 2020 and government-imposed shutdowns,
oil and gas sales revenue from production in the district decreased dramatically. That



significantly reduced High Plains Library District budgeted revenues for 2022.
Construction continued and residential property values increased in the district, but that
did not offset the reduction in the oil and gas tax base. The oil and gas market
experienced some recovery in 2021 and property values in the HPLD service area
continued to increase, so budgeted property tax revenue for 2023 increased. Qil and
gas prices increased in 2022 and property values were reassessed in 2023, so
budgeted property tax revenue for 2024 increased by approximately 35%. Oil and gas
prices decreased in 2023, so budgeted property tax revenue for 2025 decreased by
more than 20%. Property values were reassessed in 2025. However, SB24-233 and
HB24B-1001 limited property tax revenue increases and required HPLD to temporarily
lower the mill levy.

Historical Price of WTI (West Texas Intermediate)
Crude Oil per Barrell last 10 years
per macrotrends.net
data as of November 21, 2025

$140.00
$120.00
$100.00
$80.00
$60.00
$40.00
$20.00
$0.00
-$20.00
-540.00
-$60.00



WTI Closing Price Forecast
per longforecast.com

data as of November 21, 2025
70.00

60.00
40.00
| 30.00

| 20.00
| 10.00

May 2026
July 2026
September 2026
May 2027
July 2027

September 2027

November 2027
May 2028

July 2028

March 2026
September 2028

January 2026
January 2027
March 2027
January 2028
March 2028
January 2029
March 2029
May 2029
July 2029
September 2029
November 2029

November 2025
November 2026
November 2028

Long-range Financial Plans

The long-range financial operating plans support the achievement of the strategic goals
of HPLD. The long-range financial operating plans allow High Plains Library District to
estimate resources that will be available to use toward those goals. The long-range
financial plan helps determine scope and timing adjustments that may be necessary or
possible to work being done on the strategic plan initiatives.

High Plains Library District is dependent on the property tax mill levy as the primary
revenue source for the district. Currently, there are no plans to permanently increase or
decrease the mill levy. Any proposed increase in the mill levy or exceed the revenue
increase limits would need to be approved by the BOT and then presented to the voters
for approval. In budget years beyond 2026, HPLD may be required to issue additional
temporary credits on the mill levy to comply with the revenue increase limits imposed
under HB24B-1001. The High Plains Library District Friends & Foundation (HPLDF&F)
will be instrumental in building community connections and community support should it

become necessary to request a mill levy increase or override of the imposed annual
property tax revenue increase limits.

Since the primary revenue source for High Plains Library District is property taxes, and
a significant portion of the tax base has been oil and gas, the oil and gas market crash
in 2020 negatively impacted the revenues of the district — particularly for 2022.
Increases in oil and gas prices in 2022 and reassessments of property values in 2023
created an increase in budgeted property tax revenue for 2024. A decrease in oil and
gas prices and production in 2023 is the main factor causing the decrease in budgeted
property tax revenue for 2025. Long-range financial plans and projections were
reevaluated in 2025 as HPLD continues to prepare for the future.



Long-range financial planning requires working with other economic interests to get a
firm understanding of economic forecasts and their meaning for district revenues and
setting priorities to identify areas that could be reduced when revenues take a downturn.
During 2025, the Finance Department received information from Weld County
government officials, obtained information from the Colorado OQil and Gas Conservation
Commission, attended seminars and webinars on economic updates and predictions,
and read reports on the national and local economic outlook. That information was
used to refine the financial projection for High Plains Library District. The projection was
considered in developing the budget for 2026.

The property tax base for HPLD appears to be changing. Economic forecasts seem to
indicate that oil and gas production in the Weld County area may have reached its peak.
Anticipated population growth in Weld County is expected to support continued
residential construction. Residential property sales have slowed and prices have begun
to decrease slightly. The assessment rate reductions from recent legislation have had a
negative impact on HPLD revenues. The annual revenue property tax increase limit
and further assessment rate reductions will have a negative impact on HPLD revenues.

In response to the expected future revenue levels, emphasis will need to be placed on
controlling the operating expenditures budget. FTE (Full-time equivalent) and employee
headcount were increased significantly in 2023 to staff and support LINC. The 2024
and 2025 budgets planned for some additional increases in FTE to satisfy the demand
for the innovation spaces and other library services. Some additional staff requests
have been included in the 2026 budget to staff the Mead Library, the DSS Library &
Archive, and the Mobile Workforce Unit and to support the growth of HPLD. Beyond
2026, there are no plans for significant annual increases in FTE or staff headcount.
Database and periodical subscriptions have been reviewed and items with low patron
use have been discontinued. Less expensive, more user-friendly options have been
identified and replaced some databases and electronic resources. Computer use in the
libraries is regularly evaluated and computer inventory is managed to achieve usage
target ranges.

Long-range financial plans include operation of LINC. LINC was opened May 13, 2023.
LINC will allow HPLD to achieve strategic plan initiatives of expanding skills-based
programming and supporting literacy. The additional skills-based programming and
literacy should encourage economic growth and help diversify and expand the property
tax base in the HPLD service area over the long-term.

LINC replaced the Lincoln Park Library location. HPLD listed the Lincoln Park Library
building for sale in June 2023. The Lincoln Park building was sold in July 2024.

The overview of the capital improvement program provides more information on specific
projects. To help control the operating expenditures budget and to accommodate the
anticipated levels of future property tax revenue, completing LINC was the largest
construction project planned on the schedule. Construction projects planned or
anticipated for 2026 through 2030 are much smaller. Anticipated future revenue levels



will require High Plains Library District to leverage available technology to provide
library services efficiently in more remote areas of the district.

The government-imposed shutdowns during 2020 created the opportunity to learn how
to provide more services virtually. High Plains Library District is using availabie
technology (electronic databases, Ebooks, audiobooks, music, and videos, virtual
assistance from librarians, etc.) to provide library services to a wider community more
efficiently. The Qutreach department will continue to provide library services to the
community outside of the library facilities. Technology and the Outreach department will
allow HPLD to provide library services with less need for additional library facilities.

Currently, High Plains Library District has no plans to significantly reduce library
services. HPLD intends to be responsive to the community. Low use services and
programs may be discontinued to improve efficiency or to provide additional resources
for other library programming. An example of this is the evaluation of database use and
computer use as discussed earlier. High Plains Library District will continue to provide
library services throughout the service area while evaluating those services for
efficiency and value to the community.

Stewardship and fiscal strength are focus areas of the budget process. High Plains
Library District’s financial plan is to maintain a sound and sustainable financial position
by allocating available resources to provide high quality library services while also
maintaining adequate reserves to manage revenue volatility and economic downturns.

Capital Expenditures
The Facilities Master Plan provides general guidance on when a library expansion or a
new library should be considered. The BOT and executive team meet with other
community leaders regularly. Economic conditions and outlook, population growth and
projections, and community plans and needs are often discussed in those meetings.
That information is considered when determining which capital projects should be
pursued. HPLD updated the Facilities Master Plan in 2025 with particular focus on
updating demographic information and population growth projections. That plan was
presented to and approved by the HPLD board of trustees at the August 2025 meeting.

The Facilities Department inspects and evaluates the facilities throughout the year and
maintains a replacement schedule for significant building components (roofing, HVAC
units, boilers, etc.). The Facilities Manager recommends capital projects based on
those inspections and the replacement schedule. Library Managers also request
improvements to the facilities. The Executive Director, Associate Director of Public
Services, Facilities Manager, and Finance Manager review the proposed capital budget
requests and prioritize the recommended projects. Projects that affect the safety or the
functionality of the facilities are given higher priority than other requested improvements
or additions.



The 2026 budget includes funds allocated for the following projects:

DSS Archive / Expansion — Feasibility and needs assessment, project scope
determination, and design for a capital project was undertaken in 2023. Planning
continued throughout 2024 and construction began in 15 quarter 2025, The project
plans include library and archive space, storage space, and office space. The 2026
budget includes $7,000,000 of this estimated $20,000,000 project. Estimated
completion in 2" quarter 2026.

Mead Library — a library in Mead that will be approximately 10,000 square feet.
Construction began in early 3'9 quarter 2025. The 2026 budget includes $8,000,000 of
this estimated $14,000,000 project. Estimated completion in 2026 3" quarter 2026.

Workforce Development Vehicle — this Freightliner vehicle will assist job seekers in their
job hunt. The vehicle will have internet access and computers so individuals can
complete training, work on their resume, look for jobs, and apply for jobs. A 50% deposit
for the vehicle was paid in September 2025. The 2026 budget includes $260,000 for
the over $500,000 vehicle. Delivery expected in 2" quarter 2026.

Impact of Capital Investments on Operating Budget

The capital investments noted above will have an impact on the operating budget in
additional staff, maintenance, and utility costs. The estimated amounts per project are
listed below:

Project Estimated Estimated Estimated Annual
Annual Annual Utilities Operating Costs
Salaries and including Repairs and

Benefits Maintenance

DSS Library & $295,000 $16,000 $30,000

Archive / Expansion

Mead Library $850,000 $52,000 $50,000

Workforce $125,000 $30,000

Development Vehicie

The projects are expected to be financed using available cash and investments, a
decrease in earnings on investments is expected.

Debt

The legal debt limit for High Plains Library District is 1.5% of assessed value or
$260,727,861as of December 31, 2025. The Certificates of Participation Series 2010
were paid off in December 2019. The High Plains Library District has no long-term debt
subject to the legal debt limit as of December 31, 2025. High Plains Library District has
no current plans to issue new debt,



Position Summary Schedule

2024 2025 Budgeted 2026
Librarians 36 38 41
Library Associates 63 66 77
Pages and Materials Clerks | 42 42 48
Innovation Space 9 12 13
Facilities 9 9 10
Collection Resources 14 14 14
Information Technology 11 11 11
Innovation
Community Relations and 5 5 6
Marketing
Managers and Supervisors | 30 30 32
Administration (Executive 9 9 9
Director, Associate
Directors, HR, Finance,
Foundation)
Total 228 236 261

The additional staff budgeted for 2025 is for additional innovation technicians to help
meet demand in the innovation spaces, an exhibits specialist to support the children’s
space at LINC, and additional librarian and library associate hours to help meet service
demand at LINC and Erie. The additional staff for 2026 is primarily to staff the Mead
Library, DSS Library & Archive, and the Mobile Workforce Unit. Additional staff is
planned to support the growth of HPL.D.

DEPARTMENT DESCRIPTIONS

The libraries and departments described below are included in the general fund of High
Plains Library District.

BRANCH SERVICES

High Plains Library District (HPLD) serves more than 330,000 residents of Weld County
and a small part of Boulder County and covers a geographic area of almost 4,000
square miles. Our mission of helping build community is carried out by our well-trained
staff and through our strong collection of library materials.

Currently, HPLD offers more than 700,000 items to its patrons. The district strives to
provide a collection that balances viewpoints across a broad spectrum of opinions and
subject matter in formats suitable to a variety of learning and recreational interests and
skills.



Our locations offer a wide selection of materials including children, teen, and adult
fiction and non-fiction materials in print, audio, video, and electronic formats (CDs,
DVDs, e-books, and downloadable audio books). The district also provides a collection
of magazines, journals, and newspapers, and subscribes to more than 80 paid
subscription databases, most of which can be accessed from any computer with
Internet access. Launchpads are also included in the district’s digital collection. These
pre-loaded tablets for kids are designed with a simple, easy-to-use interface, and come
loaded with age-appropriate games and apps. In addition, the district provides
Wonderbooks and VOX books, which are children's print books with a pre-loaded
audiobook player attached.

High Plains Library District strives to provide current technologies within the libraries as
well as in computer centers throughout our service area. At a minimum the district
provides access to the catalog, subscription databases, the Internet, and current
computer applications.

Computers within the libraries are used by staff to teach classes to the public on a
variety of computer-related topics, as well as by the public for research and personal
computer use. In addition, each of the district's libraries provides Wi-Fi connectivity
without charge to the user.

As an extension of traditional service, each library hosts a variety of programming for all
ages that encourages reading, literacy, education, skill development, cultural and sogcial
diversity, and fun. These programs are provided free of charge to attendees.

The district maintains a strong commitment to long-term environmental sustainability.
During new construction and facility upgrades, the district makes every effort to reduce
consumption of resources as well as use our existing resources wisely.

Carbon Valley Regional Library

Carbon Valley Regional Library serves as both a community hub and a resource center
for the southwest region of the High Plains Library District. Spanning 35,400 square
feet, the facility houses up to 150,000 items and offers 27 public access computers to
meet the diverse needs of its patrons.

The library features a wide range of welcoming and functional spaces, including two

community meeting rooms, four study rooms, a makerspace, a cozy fireplace area, a
dedicated children’s storytime room, teen and tween areas, an outdoor patio, café, a
nature trail, pollinator garden, and a gated outdoor play space.

The library is an integral part of the Carbon Valley community and partners with the
local Chamber of Commerce, area municipalities, and schools to support and advance
the district’s mission.



Centennial Park Library

Centennial Park Library serves neighborhoods near central Greeley. The 28,000 square
foot facility can house up to 80,000 items and offers 48 public access computers. The
library includes a computer commons lab with a separate computer classroom for
teaching technology. The building contains four study rooms, a conference room, a
community meeting room, and a space for teens, which includes their own computer lab
and video games. The public is encouraged to visit our seed library to take home free
packets of seeds. On the way out, our thriving pollinator-friendly garden provides
inspiration for gardens at home.

The Centennial Park library remodel was completed in 2024. Some exciting changes
include new features to the children’s area, including a re-envisioned story time area,
and new art mural by local artist, Betony Coons. Kids can explore the space to find a
painted animal or plant for each letter of the alphabet. Colorful new furniture, carpet and
paint give the library a fresh and modern look. On the lower level, a water vapor
fireplace sets a cozy mood for quiet reading. The genealogy collection, once housed on
the lower level, was moved to LINC,

District Services Library & Archive

To meet the needs of the growing Greeley/Evans communities, HPLD is constructing a
library and an archive that will be housed in a new annex attached to the current
administration building. The library and archive are planned to open in 2026.

The facility will be 8,200 square feet, with the library holding up to 3,500 items and the
archive housing HPLD’s Institutional Collection and the historical collection of the
Greeley Tribune newspapers that was given to HPLD when the District renovated the
Greeley Tribune building into LINC: Library Innovation Center.

The library will provide public access computers, Wi-Fi, printing, scanning, and
faxing. In addition, a children’s nook — where storytimes will be held — and 2 study
rooms will be provided. Also included is a digitization station, where the public can
digitize their photographs and slides, as well as their audio cassettes and VHS tapes.

Erie Community Library

Erie Community Library is a neighborhood library that holds up to 65,000 items. The
26,500 square foot facility provides 18 public access computers and features a living
room with a fireplace, two outdoor patios, a makerspace, four study rooms, and a large
event space/meeting room that can be divided info two spaces, one of which is
publicly reservable.

To meet the needs of the growing Erie community, the library underwent a renovation in
2020 and added 6,500 square feet to create a makerspace, enlarge the children’s
storytime room, increase the number of study rooms and meeting spaces, and relocate
and remodel the teen area to include room for collaboration, gaming, and hanging out.
The project also expanded the patron parking lot.



The four additional study rooms help serve the needs of tutors and students who were
previously using library open areas to work, allow groups to collaborate in separate
spaces, and provide quiet space for study and work. The larger storytime room can
accommodate twice as many adults and children as before and provides a larger area
for play and learning after storytimes. The makerspace houses a laser cutter, 3D printer,
die cut machine, and several sewing machines for skills-based learning, STEM
activities, and arts and craft activities for all ages. The larger meeting spaces enable the
community to make twice as many room reservations for larger numbers of people than
previously.

Farr Regional Library

Farr Regional Library serves a dual role as both a community library and a resource
library for the northern area of the High Plains Library District. The 38,000 square foot
facility has a collection size of approximately 84,000 items and is equipped with 30
public computers.

Through its building design, the library has a variety of spaces that meet the diverse
needs of the community including areas for collaboration, meetings, and quiet
study. The library offers a café/vending area, a flex meeting room for impromptu
meetings and collaborative work, community reading and study rooms, a large
children’s area, a separate teen area, and numerous informal seating areas.

The Farr Regional Library features eight custom stained-glass windows commissioned
by local artist Carolyn Stuart, a fireplace with a comfortable reading area, a small
conference room, and a large meeting room.

Farr Regional Library also serves as the home for the Virtual Library. Virtual Library
staff assist those who prefer online or phone-based services. Through phone, email,
and chat, trained library staff find online-based resources, request items, renew items,
troubleshoot e-book questions, sign up for programs, help with reserving a meeting
room, create district preloaded library cards, and much more.

Grover Library

HPLD and the Town of Grover are working together to provide library services in a
library facility for the residents of Grover and the surrounding area. The town donated
land in Grover, and the library secured a building that is approximately 1,792 square
feet. HPLD opened the library in November 2024. The facility includes a small library
collection, computer access, and a small community room for meetings. The service
model for this location is for limited staffed hours with some self-service access for the
patrons during non-staffed hours. Grover is being used as a pilot location for this
service model that HPLD could potentially use for future small, rural locations similar to
this facility.

Kersey Library
To meet the needs of the growing Kersey community, the library renovated a location
within the heart of the community, right next to Kohler Park. This location is 3,400



square feet and can hold 5,600 items. It offers public access computers, Wi-Fi, printing,
scanning and faxing, and one children's computer with age-appropriate learning
activities and games. The library hosts a variety of programs for all ages that encourage
reading, literacy, education, and diversity with a focus on skills-based learning/training.
There is one public study room available for reservation.

In addition to the adult book club, Kersey Library services include a summer reading
program, a free lunch program in conjunction with the Weld Food Bank, and afterschool
programming for children. The library is an important part of the Kersey community and
partners often with the Town of Kersey to carry out the district's mission.

LINC

LINC (Library Innovation Center), a 63,000 square foot building that represents the next
iteration of the High Plains Library District opened May 13, 2023. Built at the old Greeley
Tribune site in downtown Greeley, the state-of-the art building features a fully equipped
makerspace with 3D printers, laser engravers, cri-cuts, and a sublimation printer, an
industrial room with woodworking equipment, a large innovation workspace, a fiber arts
studio, a quiet reading room, an art studio, a recording studio, a podcast room, an
atrium with an indoor/door fireplace, and a board room. LINC houses the High Plains
Library District’s Local History and Genealogy Collection, which was previously located
at Centennial Park Library.

Plentiful opportunities for children and teens exist at LINC. The mezzanine level
showcases a dynamic, hands-on learning Children’s Exhibit that physically connects to
the two-story large-scale interactive installation by nationally renowned artist Wes
Bruce. The Children’s library features a Hobbit Door that welcomes families into the
Storytime room. Older kids and teens can take advantage of the gaming room next door
to the Children’s Library.

There is no shortage of community spaces in the building. There are 5 study rooms, 5
meeting rooms, 2 collaboration spaces, 2 computer classrooms, 3 general classrooms.
The event space, which holds up to 200 people, features 2 projectors with large screens
and a built-in platform for presenters. More than 50 computers are available throughout
the building and LINC's materials collection can expand to 100,000 items.

At LINC, individuals can transform information into knowledge while developing and
sharing skills and ideas in a sensory rich, experience driven, creative environment. A
community catalyst for workforce development, STEM education, and future innovation,
LINC is a place where creativity and possibility comes to life.

Mead Library

HPLD is working with the Town of Mead to provide library services in a new library
facility to the residents of Mead and the surrounding area. This community library is
planned to open in 2026 and will hold up to 21,000 items. The 13,500 square foot
facility will provide public access computers, Wi-Fi, printing, scanning, and faxing. The



library is designed to offer a variety of spaces to meet the diverse needs of the
community, including a community meeting space, a children’s room with a feature wall
and a fireplace, an outdoor patio, 2 study rooms, a teen space, and a flex space where
makerspace programming will be provided.

Views off to the West showcase the mountains and the palette and design elements of
the library draw inspiration from the agricultural history and natural beauty of the area.

Riverside Library & Cultural Center

Nestled in the heart of Old Town Evans, the Riverside Library & Cultural Center is more
than just a library — it's a lively community hub serving neighborhoods throughout
Evans and beyond. Spanning 18,500 square feet, this vibrant space combines the
power of knowledge with cultural enrichment, all under one roof.

With room for up to 30,000 items and 21 public computers, Riverside Library offers
something for everyone — whether you're here to research, relax, study, or explore.
Inside, you'll find a welcoming mix of collaborative spaces, private study rooms, and
cozy nooks. Four dedicated study rooms, a warm fireplace, plenty of casual seating,
and a versatile multi-purpose room for library programs help support a wide range of
needs and activities. Visitors also enjoy access to free Wi-Fi, public computers, printing
services, and a full calendar of engaging programs for children, teens, and adults.

The cultural center, operated by the City of Evans, brings even more value to the
community. It features spacious, fully equipped meeting rooms, fascinating local history
exhibits, and city office spaces. Just outside, a beautiful plaza and a playful children’s
area invite families and neighbors to gather, connect, and enjoy the outdoors.

Whether you're here to learn, meet, create, or just unwind — Riverside library &
Cultural Center is your community’s place to grow.

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT — ALIGNING LIBRARY ROLES
WITH COMMUNITY NEEDS

Community Engagement is a coordinated effort made by the District to:

. Bring services and programs to the community members both inside and
outside of the wallls of our facilities and satellite locations; inclusive of in-person
interactions, vehicle-based delivery, virtual presence (using social media sites),
and use of communication tools such as phone, email, and chat.

. Learn about the needs and priorities of community members through
market research, community assessments, and conversations.

. Share the information learned with stakeholders within the district and
appropriate external stakeholders.

. Use the information learned to focus and prioritize services and
experiences most important and relevant to community members.

. Partner with community agencies to support community-wide success.



. [dentify opportunities for staff to represent the High Plains Library District
as an engaged resource at various community events.

. Assess and measure the impact of our work for the purpose of better
aligning our efforts to best support community success.

Outreach Services

The Outreach Department serves as an extension of High Plains Library District by
delivering services and programs to patrons and communities unable or unwilling to use
library facilities. The department operates in cooperation with the libraries throughout
the High Plains Library District.

The Outreach Department provides popular materials in various formats, reading
readiness training, materials and services for families, and programming. These
services are provided to schools, daycare centers, preschools, families, assisted living
centers, and senior centers in areas where geographic, economic, linguistic, and other
barriers hinder access to a library. Outreach services are delivered through Mobile
Services and QOutreach Services.

Mobile Services staff focus on bringing services and programs out into communities
throughout the district with the purpose of making the library a visible, valuable service
without the expectation that patrons will be expected to enter a facility. Service delivery
includes providing popular materials in various formats and through programming,
storytimes, and events. The Mobile Services staff operates three mobile units. One unit,
a bookmobile, serves as a mobile library, carrying a collection of approximately 5,000
books and non-print materials to schools and neighborhoods. The second and third
units provide mobile library services to early childhood facilities and senior centers by
bringing carts of books along with staff who host lobby stop and in-classroom services
and programming. The units have access to the entire High Plains Library District
collection.

Outreach Services consists of Outreach Librarians who are centrally located and work
throughout the library district to bring services out into the community through identified
organizational partners and to build bridges to connect new populations with the library
facilities and services. They are additionally tasked with creating connections and filling
gaps in our community between the library and our underserved communities and
communities that face barriers to library service. Outreach Librarians also develop
community-wide programs.

Community Relations and Marketing (CRM) Department

CRM is responsible for ensuring consistent messaging for all communications,
marketing, advertising, and public relations functions as overseen by the HPLD
Executive Director. As the High Plains Library District’'s brand ambassador, CRM
represents HPLD with one voice, one message, and through presenting a trustworthy
presence in our community.



CRM enhances the district’s brand and visual presentation by identifying and supporting
best practices in merchandising, establishing and maintaining partnerships, and
strategically identifying areas with market penetration potential for patron growth.

CRM actively supports districtwide efforts as directed by the Executive Director based
on conversations with the Member Directors and Boards. Within this framework, CRM:

+ Provides the community with consistent and accurate information about
library policies, procedures, programs, and setvices.

+ Creates advertising campaigns that enhance and build the HPLD brand.
« Coordinates market research and analyzes local needs.

+ Openly communicates with local media that serve the various district
communities.

+ Coordinates all press releases, columns, press conferences, media kits
and information packets that are distributed to increase awareness and
knowledge about High Plains Library District.

» Serves as the hub of all communication throughout High Plains Library
District.

« Manages the social media presence of the High Plains Library District.

» Provides collateral material and everyday tools to assist staff. Edits the
content, appearance and usability of external and internal communications
including promotional materials, publicity campaigns, and other tools in order
to ensure that the desired message is communicated, and the desired image
is presented.

« Collaboratively manages the web page to ensure a clean organized
design is presented and the content is accurate and up to date.

The HPLD Events and Experiences Team is part of CRM that markets HPLD and its
services by attending events and parades. Events and Experiences staff operate the
Pop-Up Library, a Ford F250 with a custom box that opens to display library materials
available for checkout onsite. They combine point-in-time collections with targeted
patron experiences to generate a lifelong connection with the library.

DISTRICT SUPPORT SERVICES

District Support Services is responsible for the operation of the branch library system,
long range planning, and oversight of centralized services to all branch and member
libraries. Together the District Support Services departments including the Executive
Director, Associate Director, Collection Resources, Finance, Human Resources and
Facilities, and Information Technology and Innovation Departments provide leadership
and management services to support district operations.



Collection Resources Department

The Collection Resources Department consists of Collection Development, interlibrary
Loan and Prospector, Bibliographic Services, Specialty Checkout, and Archives.
Together these units accomplish the processes necessary to make a wide array of
materials available to the public in a timely, efficient, and cost-effective manner.

» Collection Development selects and manages the collections and
resources of the branch system in accordance with the Collection
Development Policies. The department, in collaboration with library managers
and the Outreach manager, coordinates the management and maintenance
of the collection materials including books, magazines, and media. Digital
collections include databases, eBooks, eAudio, and streaming music and
video. This centralized process provides cost effective efficiencies to build a
quality collection that strives to balance districtwide collection goals with local
branch needs.

« Interlibrary Loan and Prospector support the educational, recreational and
information needs of High Plains Library District patrons through resource
sharing with other libraries. Intetlibrary Loan/Prospector enables all High
Plains Library District libraries to provide patrons with a broad range of
materials by supplementing existing collections. Interlibrary Loan and
Prospector borrow and lend materials from various libraries throughout
Colorado and the United States.

and cataloging materials acquired by the district. Bibliographic Services is
responsible for maintaining the integrity of the data contained in the online
catalog using Resource Description and Access standards (RDA). This
organization and description of materials is the foundation for other basic
library services, such as circulation, materials management, collection
development, and acquisitions.

» Specialty Checkout maintains a collection of equipment and nontraditional
library items. Because the equipment is often expensive and in limited supply,
use is restricted to resident patrons over the age of 18. Specialty Checkout
manages patron reservations through calendar-based software, allowing
patrons to reserve items such as laptops, hotspots, projectors, telescopes,
and experience passes for a specific date.

« The High Plains Library District Archive organizes, protects, preserves,
and provides access to historical materials primarily pertaining to the District
for present and future generations. The District's archive consists largely of
two non-circulating collections: the Institutional Collection and the Greeley
Tribune Collection.



Finance Department
The Finance Department is responsible for the general accounting functions of the High
Plains Library District including:

« Accounting Procedures - assure compliance with applicable laws and
policies governing the reporting of financial transactions, provide timely and
accurate information, record all resources and assets by adhering to
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) applicable to fund
accounting, preparation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report and
the coordination and preparation of the annual Budget document.

« Payroll - ensure proper and accurate payment to employees and payment
of payroll liabilities.

» Accounts Payable - process payments for goods and services.

» Cash Management - provide general cashiering operations, maintain
banking relationships, and manage investment of district funds.

» Fiscal Reports - prepare bank reconciliations, general ledger account
reconciliations, and reporis for use in analyzing various financial functions of
the High Plains Library District.

» Procurement Cards - administer a procurement card program to facilitate
district purchases as well as monitoring the program and payment of monthly
statements.

Human Resources Department

The Human Resources Department provides leadership, direction, and support to
libraries by facilitating compliance, partnering strategically, and advocating for
employees. The department is responsible for administering talent acquisition, learning
and development, total rewards, organizational development and effectiveness,
employee relations, diversity and inclusion, and labor law compliance.

Human Resources promotes a workplace culture encouraging employees to:

Focus on the patron

Take initiative

Contribute to a positive work environment
Think strategically and systemically
Pursue personal development
Continuously improve

Take pride in the workplace

. & » ¢ &

Facilities Department
The Facilities Department has four functions:

« To provide expert assistance in planning and construction of new and
remodeled facilities



« To provide equipment maintenance for all branches
« To provide custodial services
« To maintain the district's vehicles

In addition, the department also provides assistance, as requested, to the member
libraries. Member libraries are part of the High Plains Library District, but function
independently and receive services from the district.

« Planning and Construction - this department is supervised by the
Executive Director. The expert assistance is provided by a Facilities Manager
with support from the district's contracted Owner's Representative. These,
along with others in the organization, work with architects and contractors to
construct and maintain the facilities that are appropriate for the community in
which they are built.

High Plains Library District worked with an architect to develop a "prototype
library." The architects developed a "concept" that represents the library brand,
but then translates that into customized designs and square footage that meet
local needs. HPLD is using the prototype library concept for the Mead library.

« Equipment maintenance - this includes everything from major projects like
HVAC and roofing to soap dispensers in the restrooms. These services are
provided by the Facilities Manager and Facilities Technicians. The
department also utilizes contract labor for projects beyond the scope of the
Facilities Technician skills.

« Custodial services - these are the typical routine services that ensure that
the facilities are clean and inviting to the public. Some of these services are
provided by paid staff, and in other cases the services are contracted.

» Grounds maintenance and landscaping services — these routine services
ensure that the grounds around the facilities are safe, functional, and
appealing. Some of these services are provided by paid staff, and in other
cases the services are contracted.

« Safety and security services — ensure that the workplace is a safe
environment for employees and visitors. Security services are contracted for
two of the libraries — Centennial Park and LINC.

« HPLD vehicle maintenance - As noted elsewhere in this narrative, there
are four vehicles operated by HPLD plus a Facilities pickup. Facilities
provides inspections, record keeping, and maintenance support for the
vehicles.



Information Technology and Innovation Department

The Information Technology and Innovation (ITI} Department supports all technology
solutions and facilitates process improvement throughout the District. The department
key processes include:

» Assessing, determining and providing best fit technology and process
solutions

Maintaining an available and responsive infrastructure

Providing responsive support services

Improving process maturity throughout the District

Ensuring access to needed information and knowledge

-

HPLD Friends & Foundation

The High Plains Library District Friends & Foundation is a separate 501(c)(3) nonprofit,
established to support the programs and services of the High Plains Library District. The
Friends & Foundation’s mission is to build a community of library lovers through
increased collaboration, philanthropy, volunteer engagement, awareness, and advocacy
for the libraries of the High Plains Library District.

The Foundation’s assets and income are derived from the following activities:

« Grant funding — mission-aligned funding for programming from private, family,
corporate, municipal, and federal grant sources

« Individual gift solicitation, including planned giving

» Corporate giving, including sponsorship for programs and events

« Special events

« Earnings from investments

The Friends & Foundation’s current funding priorities include LINC, capital projects,

programs supporting literacy among underserved populations, and HPLD districtwide

programs including Summer Reading Adventure and YESHest.

Fundraising goals for 2026 include raising funds to sustain HPLD’s upcoming Mobile
Workforce Unit through events like the Innovation Luncheon, and sustained support for
programs to be determined by the staff funding request process in 2025.

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES AND PERFORMANCE MEASURES

The following is a table of some of the strategic goals and objectives that the High
Plains Library District is working toward:



£Log ut

werosd oy poropdurod aany gy CZOT W
suedionsed mou g — siumdioned peg
sty DG Q01 - $TOT aqundag Jo sy

60T 18NSy
10 se syjooq OpO* [ pHRidwod pry (g
pue suedonaed mau +9¢ pey AL E 0001

‘[Hey Aq syjoog T pedt pry £9¢ pue
*$300q § PEAI PRy |t SY00G ¢ pual pey
€09 "00€ sem (208 — GzoT Jequadag

1o se syedonied (7' pey OUY

wexfosd ayy parapduweeod (95867 1¢)
7661 pur siuedpnied 070 pry VIS

-safe ({e 303 Aow1a] pue

Fuspear oFeanoous ymy swwisodd DAg
001) uonenprd 210J9q syooq g0 pue
(49 000}) uareSiapury a10jeq sy00q

000°1 *(Q¥V) vo prar synpe *(VHs)
Suipeas ununs sy panunuod TdH

swiesSoad Adelal ul uonediied

1eah ysed syl uiyum
SAJIAIBS (1dH Pasn BABY Sployasnoy JO %409

AJHINWIW0I
ayy i sesan useddng

MOID)

Bujwweldold
J0JRUILI00D
22U3||99X%3

agensue|

Adppuosas e 1o agenSue; aaeu

nayy vl ‘sgeod Aseaall] 113yt aAslyde 01
AHUNWIWOD 33 JO 50011235 12 Loddng

‘gToc W

aotaios ul paceld aq o1 2p3IaA DIYAA
uawdoaaagg 2010)3104, ¢ aseynd

03 10RAUOD B PAINIIXD PUE J43¥ U ponss|

“pa1a130 Suraq A SUONEIYIIY) "STOT
u uegaq SunrurerFord Suuien paaradal
OIS "SEO0] JO )OS 1511 N0 PIAIRIA JARY
am pue pado[aaap uaog STl SUOIITIIIIND
10] s[00], uQ-deus yiim diysisuped v

awdinba pue ASofouyaal ay3 3sn 03 Sujuies)
pue sadeds uoneAOUUl 3Y1 Fujsn suos3ed

sweifosd
Q1dH 18 §]|BS pasuByuUa UO pILIeld| sUoned

Jeah 1sed ayl uyim
$321A43% ('IdH PAsN SABU SPIOUBSNOY 4O %09

SHIYS &4

pue sjy1ys aqrayem dojaaop
pue wiea] ot {nenyoddo

ue i suoned apiaotd

MOID

3A0N
S30IBS Youelg

Wwawdoaaap adiopIom

DUE S}|14S 34 UO PASNIO04 swessoud
Suidojanap Ag sJaguiaw AJlunuiod
Joj auljdid sjpys e se Bulnss g1dH

“9z0T PRU 01 AlIe0 w1 patajdwod ag o)
spaford “sgog Jouenb 7 aef ut ueiag
UONOAISU0D PED "$T0T 1auenb 1 ;e
ur uedaq uoponnsued uotsuedxs $§C

gz0z pu Aq pasapdusos

-19apng
UIBM pUe 3NPaYIs uo palaiduwiod s1afold

‘gzoz U paza|dwod aq o) uolsuedxs
$5(1 pUB uoIaNASUoD Alelqy; peain SZ0Z

o131 a1 ormaado

pur sanialas Areiqi opiaoad
01 spakojduwra put *o1qnd
‘suoned 10] SOIE[IOR] SP1A0L]

128png uslim puE JOPIYIS

SIBQUISL AJUNWWoD
10} 30e|d £
apiaoud seoeds

J3UBULY
$32UN0SIY LW

1073241(] 21B12055Y

salelqgry
lie4 pue AgjjeA uogle) Sulysanal pue
‘sya1atas Yoddng 1013517 18 UoIppe

alam puE pZO7 JT] ul uedsq saysansy Apres w p232|dwiod 3q 0] $aYsalR) Aselqr] vo s1oaload ap moydwo) Ateiql) — fay3en 3ALNIBXY ‘peAN Ul S3EIq)| - 5333[014 |ended
ueld
aibalens
Siinsay sainseapy sduewiolisad m0>_.._.00mn_0 ol =l H.CQE”_‘_NQGQ jBoY)

Gzoz wouy sybiybIH



3JU0
15e3| 1B pasn aie 1eyy spied Alelgl| mMau OZ
40 anss| 3yl 01 pes| 03 Suiwwes§oid Adessin

1eaA 1sed ayl ulyum
S3DIAIBS QTdH Pasn aARY Spjoyasnoy Jo %09

9z0Z/1E/TT

9702/10/10

Moi9

Suiwwei3oid
1018UIp100)
30U3||3X3

sjead Aaesay| 19yl
3A3IY2e 01 AJUNWWOD 3y} JO SuoI12as ||e poddng

30U0 1SE3| Je pasn aJe jey) spied Aseiql|
M3U Q0G 3anssi ay3 o3 pea| 03 Suiwwesgoud
1u3wdo|aA3p §||1S PUB 32UOPIOM

ERIINED
ul paseid ap21yaA JuawdolaAaq 3010P10M

Jeah 1sed syl uiyum
S3DIAIBS QTdH Pasn aABY SP|OYasnoy Jo %09

9z0z/te/Tt

S70Z/T0/10

MOID

IN0OIN
$3JIAI3S Youe.g

1Uu3WdO|2AIP 2I0JOM PUE S||1)S
3| uo pasnaoy swesdoid Suidojansp Ag siaquiaw
Ajunwwod Joj auljadid sjpjs e se uiAIas g1dH

UOI}BJ0] PE3IA Y} WOl
Sp|oyasnoy 7ZEE'T PUB UO[IEI0| SSJ 3y} WOl
spjoyasnoy g6£‘S 10edwi o3 [eljualod aas

Jeah 3sed ay1 ulyHMm SIDINIIS

Q1dH 8uisn spjoyasnoy 4o 209 jo |eod 3y}
yaeau djay 03 syutod ssa22e [EUOIMPPE BPIAOIG

123png
ulyum pue ajnpayas uo pais|dwod syafold

970z ul payajdwod
uolIsuedxa S5Q pPUe UoIINIISUOD Alelql| pealn

S2.UNSEI A

9zoz/ig/et
91eQ ang

¥70Z/10/10
218Q LEIS

siaquisw Ajunwwod Joj 3deid e
apinoud saoeds Aieaql — Jayien

ue|d 21891e435 01 31|

3aueulq
$324N0SaY UBWNH
sapi|ioed

1012211 31BID0SSY
2AIIND2X]

juawiedag

$221A49S 1oddns 31013510
1e UolIppe pue pea ul Aleiql) — s3aaloid [ende)

S9AIleIU| UB|d 1831eJ1S 9707 A1dH




2026
District
Budget



High Plains Library District
Budgeted Revenue & Expenditures - General Fund
FY 2026

ESTIMATED RESOURCES
Beginning Fund Balance

Estimated Revenue
Property Tax
Specific Ownership Tax
Other Revenue
Total Estimated Revenue

TOTAL ESTIMATED RESOURCES
ESTIMATED EXPENDITURES

Total Operating Expenses
Capital Outlay
Transfers Out - Debt Service/Capital Projects
Distribution to Member Libraries:
Northern Plains (Ault)
Eaton
Ft. Lupton
Hudson
Johnstown
Platteville

TOTAL EXPENDITURES

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES
Ending Fund Balance
DESIGNATION OF FUND BALANCE

Operating Reserve

Emergency Reserve

Stabilization Reserve

Capital Improvement Reserve

TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE

2024

2025 2025 2026 2027

Actual Budg’et Estimated Budgat Planned
$ 81,916,097 $105,543,925 $118,823,316 $117,367,640 $110,382,948
69,979,208 54,088,098 54,250,000 52,910,374 53,439,478
2,519,173 1,440,000 1,700,000 1,680,000 1,500,000
6,869,328 1,312,941 4,150,032 3,221,653 1,640,000
79,367,709 56,841,039 60,100,032 57,812,027 56,579,478
161,283,806 162,384,964 178,923,348 175,179,667 166,962,426
23,200,269 31,048,331 29,174,547 34,516,935 35,138,369
4,967,579 30,706,444 20,639,444 17,820,900 5,164,000
1,216,546 1,421,782 1,421,782 1,357,566 1,371,142
2,495,057 1,764,231 1,764,231 2,069,264 2,089,957
3,655,753 2,440,252 2,440,252 2,533,292 2,558,625
4,332,556 3,581,555 3,581,555 3,663,801 3,700,439
1,281,679 1,477,912 1,477,912 1,539,308 1,554,701
1,311,051 1,055,985 1,055,985 1,295,653 1,308,610
14,292 642 11,741,717 11,741,717 12,458,884 12,583,474
42,460,490 73,496,492 61,555,708 64,796,719 52,885,843
36,907,219 (16,655,453) (1,455,676) (6,984,692) 3,693,635
118,823,316 88,888,472 117,367,640 110,382,948 114,076,583
11,600,135 15,524,166 14,587,274 17,258,468 17,569,185
2,174,951 1,665,843 1,678,500 1,637,711 1,648,184
10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
95,048,230 61,698,463 91,101,866 81,486,769 84,859,214
$118,823,316 $ 88,888,472 $117,367,640 $110,382,048 $114,076,583




High Plains Library District
Budgeted Revenue - General Fund
FY 2026

TAXES
Property Taxes Weld Co.
Property Taxes Boulder Co.
Delinquent Taxes
Refunds/Abatements Taxes Weld Co.

Refunds/Abatements Taxes Boulder Co.

Specific Ownership Taxes
TOTAL TAXES

OTHER REVENUE
Fines, & Fees
Earnings on Investments
Grants
Miscellaneous
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL REVENUE

2024 2025 2025 2026 2027
Actual Budget Estimated Budget Planned

$69,108,111 53,221,522  $53,383,424 52,020,607 52,627,257
871,097 832,548 832,548 802,858 812,221
- 33,504 33,504 85,588 -
- 524 524 1,321 -
2,519,173 1,440,000 1,700,000 1,680,000 1,500,000
72,498,381 55,528,098 55,950,000 54,590,374 54,939,478
41,522 25,000 30,000 25,000 55,000
5,727,331 1,200,000 4,000,000 2,850,000 1,500,000
147,301 79,941 85,032 338,653 75,000
953,174 8,000 35,000 8,000 10,000
6,869,328 1,312,941 4,150,032 3,221,653 1,640,000
$79,367,709 $56,841,039 $60,100,032 $57,812,027 $56,579,478




High Plains Library District
Budgeted Expenditures - General Fund
FY 2026

2025

2024 2025 2026 2027
Actual Budget Estimated Budget Planned
OPERATING
Salaries and wages 11,789,369 14,928,727 14,000,000 15,906,758 16,702,095
Fringe benefits 3,290,377 5,670,369 4,500,000 5,885,499 6,177,975
Workers' compensation 52,139 95,000 95,000 115,000 120,000
Bank fees 888 1,980 1,700 1,560 1,660
Minor equipment/furniture <$5k 73,013 130,938 130,938 183,123 70,470
Janitorial supplies 53,817 90,000 90,000 120,000 120,000
Operating supplies 196,885 247,099 260,000 307,759 304,784
Bib processing supplies 145,296 244,069 244,069 244,069 244,069
Postage 32,406 38,093 38,093 39,931 39,870
Printing 8,443 14,500 20,000 37,000 37,000
Memberships 21,966 47,966 47,966 60,206 61,351
Public relations 88,587 97,229 97,229 118,816 123,699
Programs 116,361 204,300 204,300 234,725 151,700
Elec. - utilities 249,687 367,000 367,000 355,500 376,000
Water & sewer 71,284 103,000 103,000 116,000 126,000
Natural gas 70,796 150,000 150,000 129,500 148,000
Telephones 225,922 492,609 525,000 600,000 680,337
Disposal services 87,518 98,043 98,043 113,543 130,547
Professional contracts 1,716,430 2,257,500 2,257,500 2,704,330 2,409,137
Gasoline motor oil, lubricants 9,130 27,000 27,000 20,000 22,000
Repair maint.- bldg 493,735 650,000 700,000 900,000 900,000
Repair maint.- vehicles 30,259 34,400 34,400 57,200 34,200
Repair maint.- office equip. 238,290 298,770 298,770 396,770 416,488
Repair maint.- computer 433,089 462,660 462,660 1,079,090 816,920
Repair maint.- on-line comp 294,968 379,556 379,556 424,132 466,545
Repair maint.- other equip. 8,417 155,263 155,263 128,500 132,000
Tuition reimbursement 22,965 25,000 30,000 25,000 25,000
Travel & mileage 33,681 73,379 73,379 90,360 91,943
In-house training 20,643 53,000 95,000 95,000 95,000
Meetings 5,621 11,790 11,790 14,870 15,810
Out-of-house training & conferences 49,721 91,700 80,000 106,000 102,700
Treasurer's fee 1,039,942 891,000 891,000 935,550 940,000
Books 576,687 554,000 554,000 554,000 554,000
Newspapers/periodicals. 37,441 55,500 60,000 56,000 56,000
Ebooks 170,229 165,000 165,000 170,000 170,000
Compact discs 28,801 47,000 47,000 42,000 42,000
Software 542,239 687,991 687,991 800,244 880,269
DVD/BluRay 62,197 90,000 90,000 78,000 78,000
Other expense 5,627 134,650 134,650 259,550 259,550
Electronic resources 610,913 630,000 630,000 750,000 750,000
Platform Fees 23,484 13,250 13,250 13,350 13,350
Insurance 171,106 225,000 215,000 240,000 250,000
Rent contribution-in-kind - - - - -
Equipment rentals - 14,000 14,000 8,000 2,000
Lease / rental expense - - 95,000 - -
TOTAL OPERATING 23,200,269 31,048,331 29,174,547 34,516,935 35,138,369
CAPITAL OUTLAY

Opening Day Collections 15,710 510,000 510,000 405,000 -

Equipment/furn over $5000 77,395 7,500 7,500 433,900 -

New Computers & Other Technology 238,872 2,121,944 2,121,944 483,000 200,000

Capital Improvements 4,635,602 28,067,000 18,000,000 16,499,000 4,964,000

Construction Graphics - - -
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY 4,967,579 30,706,444 20,639,444 17,820,900 5,164,000

TRANSFERS OUT

Transfers - Debt Service Fund - - - - -
TOTAL TRANSFERS - - - - -
TOTAL CAPITAL OUTLAY & TRANSFERS 4,967,579 30,706,444 20,639,444 17,820,900 5,164,000
Distribution to Member Libraries 14,292,642 11,741,717 11,741,717 12,458,884 12,583,474
TOTAL DIST TO MEMBER LIBRARIES 14,292,642 11,741,717 11,741,717 12,458,884 12,583,474
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 42,460,490 73,496,492 61,555,708 64,796,719 52,885,843




Branches

|
6110 Salaries

1,260,929

1,308,485

1,140,060

1,619,230

85,745

162,728 |

2,288,840

429,108

116,302

6112 |Benefits

466,544

484,139

421,822

589,115

31,726

60,209 |

846,871

158,770

43,032

6136 |Workers' Compensation

| Total Salaries & Benefits

1,727,473

1,792,624

1,561,882

2,218,345

117,471

222,937

3,135,711

587,878

159,334

6000 Distribution to member libraries

6205 Bank fees

6220 Minor equipment/Furniture <$5k

13,311

9,400

39,500

2,000

1,000

3,100

11,327

7,500

4,250

6236 Janitorial supplies

6249 Operating supplies

17,580

19,400

15,900

11,000

3,385

3,725

59,500

16,500

3,820

6250 Bib processing supplies

6310 Postage

100

104

100

50

32

88

100

6320 Printing

6340 Memberships

1,050

500

400

300

100

150

400

700

250

6345 Public relations

6358 Programs

6362 Electric

50,000

40,000

36,000

50,000

6,000

4,000

80,000

10,000

2,500

6364 Water & sewer

10,000

8,000

16,000

20,000

3,000

2,000

20,000

7,500

1,600

6365 Natural gas

15,000

12,000

8,000

12,000

5,000

2,500

36,000

9,000

2,000

6367 Telephones

6369 Disposal services

15,000

10,000

4,000

10,000

2,000

4,000

22,000

5,000

6379 Professional contracts

5,900

74,300

200

116,311

6380 Gasoline, motor oil, lubricants

6382 Repair maint.- bldg

6384 Repair maint.- vehicles

6385 Repair maint.- office equip.

2,000

6387 Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 Repair maint.- on-line comp

6389 Repair maint.- other equip.

5,000

2,000

12,000

6393 Tuition reimbursement

6394 Travel & mileage

3,500

1,085

3,480

140

735

2,320

3,000

2,300

6395 In-House Training

6396 Meetings

800

600

150

600

550

600

100

140
—

6397 Out-of-House Training & Conferences

|6398 Treasurers fee

|6410 Books

6425 Newspapers/periodicals

6430 Ebooks

6460 Compactdiscs
6480 'éoﬁware
6490 DVD/BluRay
6495 Other expense
6496  Electronic resources

6500 Platform Fees
6510 Insurance
6520 Equipment rental

6530 |Lease / rental expense

6952 Equip/furniture - over $5000

6940 |Improvement to Buildings

6986 Opening Day Collection

6987 |Coenstruction Graphics

6980 Ef)apiial improvements

6954 |New Computers & other technology |

1,864,714

1870018

1,692,312 |

2,343,635

140,297 |

__ 248,729 |

396,257

647278 |
|

~ 177,608

~ Total

1,864,714

1,970,013

1,692,312

2,343,635

140,297

243,729

3,496,257.00

647,278 |

177,609




Branches

2026 2027
TOTAL TOTAL

6110 Salaries 989,693 | 1,122,160 5,383,478 15,906,758 16,702,095
6112 Benefits 366,186 415,199 1,991,886 5,885,499 6,177,975
6136 Workers' Compensation 115,000 | 115,000 120,000
| Total Salaries & Benefits 1,355,879 | 1,537,359 7,490,364 21,907,257 23,000,070

6000 Distribution to member libraries 12,458,884 12,458,884 12,583,474
6205 Bank fees 1,560 1,560 1,560
6220 Minor equipment/Furniture <$5k 15,000 7,000 | 69,735 183,123 70,470
6236 Janitorial supplies 120,000 120,000 120,000
6249 Operating supplies 12,400 13,000 | 131,549 307,759 304,784
6250 Bib processing supplies 244,069 244,069 244,069
6310 Postage 146 50 38,685 39,931 39,870
6320 Printing 37,000 37,000 37,000
6340 Memberships 200 650 55,506 60,206 61,351
6345 Public relations ) 118,816 118,816 | 123,699
6358 Programs 234,725 234,725 151,700
6362 Electric 22,000 55,000 355,500 376,000
6364 Water & sewer 8,000 20,000 116,000 126,000
6365 Natural gas 8,000 20,000 129,500 148,000
6367 Telephones 600,000 600,000 680,337
6369 Disposal services 5,000 35,043 113,543 130,547
6379 Professional contracts 75,021 2,432,598 2,704,330 2,409,137
6380 Gasoline, motor oil, lubricants 10,000 10,000 20,000 22,000
6382 Repair maint.- bldg 900,000 900,000 900,000
6384 Repair maint.- vehicles 49,200 8,000 57,200 34,200
6385 Repair maint.- office equip. 400 - 394,370 396,770 416,488
6387 Repair, maint., replacement / computer 1,079,090 1,079,090 816,920
6388 Repair maint.- on-line comp | 424,132 424,132 466,545
|6389  Repair maint.- other equip. | [ 109,500 128,500 132,000
|6393 Tuition reimbursement [ 25,000 25,000 25,000
6394 Travel & mileage | 400 | 8,000 64,400 90,360 91,943
6395 In-House Training | | 95,000 95,000 95,000
6396 Meelings [ 400 | 500 9,550 14,870 15,810
6397 Out-of-House Training & Conferences | 106,000 106,000 102,700
6398 Treasurers fee 5 B 935,550 935,550 940,000
|6410 Books | 554,000 554,000 554,000
6425 Newspapers/periodicals [ 56,000 56,000 56,000
6430 Ebooks [ 170,000 170,000 170,000
6460 Compact discs - [ 42,000 42,000 42,000
6480 Software 800,244 - 800,244 880,269
6490 | DVD/BluRay B - - 78,000 78,000 | 78,000
6495 Other expense 259,550 259,550 259,550
6496  Electronic resources - 750,000 750,000 750,000
6500 |Platiorm Fees 13,350 13,350 13,350
6510 Insurance - }L 240,000 | 240,000 250,000
6520 IEqmpmem rental | . 8,000 - 8,000 2,000
Eﬁﬁri@e / rental expense . e s - B -
6952 Equip/furniture - over $5000 - 410,000 - 433900 | -
6940 Improvernenl to Buildings = =
16954 | New Computers & other technology 483,000 483,000 200,000

6985 |Lease debl service o 1 ) I e

6986 |Opening Day Collectio | o 405,000 405,000 :
6987 Ec?niim?;ﬁbn | Grap } | - - -
o 1,427,825 | 1,700,780 | 20,134,386 | 12,458,884 | 48,207,719 | 47,921,843

6980 Capnal improvements o -] 16,499,000 | | 16,499,000 4,964,000
Total 1,427,825 | 1,700,780 36,633,386 | 12,458,884 | 64,796,719 52,885,843




‘Administration

Departments

6000 Tax Distrbtn - member libraries 12,458,884
6136 Workers' Compensation 115,000
6205 Bankfees
6220  Minor equipment/furniture <$5k - 150 35,235 12,450 7,600 1,000
6236  Janitorial supplies
6249  Operating supplies 6,500 750 1,500 41,625 54,500 | 11,124 4,000
6250 Bib processing supplies
6310 Postage 50 10 2,500 - -
6320  Printing 36,000 | -
6340 Memberships 300 17,100 450 11,050 11,449 8,349
6345  Public relations 104,775 I 13,041
6358 Programs 234,725 - [
6362 Electric 55,000
6364 Water and sewer 20,000
6365 Natural gas 20,000
6367 Telephones 600,000
6369 Disposal services 30,000 5,043
6379  Professional contracts 425,600 13,040 28,650 83,683 222,070
6380 Gasoline, Motor Oil, Lubricants [ -
6382  Repair maint.- bldg
6384  Repair maint.- vehicles =
6385  Repair maint.- office equip 394,370
6387  Repair, maint., replacement / computer 1,079,090
6388  Repair maint.- online comp 424,132
6389  Repair maint.- other equip. 7,000 102,500
6393  Tuition reimbursement 25,000
6394 Travel & mileage 2,800 3,750 1,020 2,000 34,320 1,400
6395  In-House Training ) 95,000
6396  Meetings 2,000 3,500 2,000 1,000 - 200
6397 | Out-of-House Training&Conferences | 500 4,500 101,000
6398 Treasurers fee 935550 |
6410 | Books '
6425 | Newspapers/periodicals
6430 Ebooks
6460 Compact discs
6480  Software ' 800,244 :
6490 Video/DVD
6495  Other expense 100,000 | 100,000 R
6496  Electronic resources -
6500 Platform Fees
6510 Insurance R 240,000 o
'67520> ‘Equipment rentals o N R 6,000
6530 Lease/rental expense N _ T - - B o

i Capital Outlay ; ) .
6952‘ 'Equipment over $5000 [ o - o
6940  Improvement to Buildings ’ - R - o
6954  New Computers & Other Technology | - . 483,000
6980 Capital improvements i T - o - o i
6985 Lease debt service N | - - - ] |
6986 Opening Day Collection R ) S o N
6987  Construction Graphics | - | |

__ DEPARTMENT TOTAL | 14,306,584 6,350 130,500 435,105 252,925 | 4,042,555 | 471,060




Administration

on

2026 2027
Departments esources  Total Total

6000 Tax Distrbtn - member libraries N B 12,458,884 12,583,474
6136 Workers' Compensation i ‘ 115,000 120,000 |
6205 Bank fees 1,560 | ‘ 1,560 - 1,560
6220  Minor equipment/furniture <$5k - , 10,000 3,300 69,735 26,770
6236  Janitorial supplies ) i 120,000 i 120,000 120,000
6249  Operating supplies 750 | 400 1,000 9,400 131,549 133,424
6250 Bib processing supplies S 244,069 244,069 244,069
6310 | Postage 1,125 550 34,450 38,685 38,685
6320  Printing 1,000 37,000 37,000
6340 Memberships - 1,320 1,088 4,000 400 | 55,506 56,601
6345 Public relations 1,000 ] 118,816 123,699 |
6358 Programs ' i \ 234,725 151,700
6362 Electric I il 55,000 | 57,000
6364  Water and sewer . ‘ - 20,000 21,000
6365 Natural gas 1 20,000 22,000
6367 Telephones R 600,000 680,337
6369  Disposal services ‘ 35,043 37,547
6379  Professional contracts 133,155 - 1,100,b00 426,400 | 2,432,598 _2,136,825
6380 Gasoline, Motor Oil, Lubricants i 10,000 | 10,000 10,000
6382  Repair maint.- bidg 900,000 900,000 900,000
6384  Repair maint.- vehicles 8,000 | 8,000 8,000
6385  Repair maint. office equip ) ‘ | 394,370 414,088
6387  Repair, maint., replacement / computer ' 1 1,079,090 816,920
6388 Repair maint.- online comp 1 424,132 466,545
6389 Repair maint.- other equip. - 109,500 112,500
6393 Tuition reimbursement - 1 25,000 25,000
6394 Travel & mileage : 630 900 15,000 2,580 64,400 65,250
6395 In-House Training ' , 95,000 | 95,000
6396 Meetings - | 750 100 | 9,550 10,150
6397 Out-of-House Training&Conferences = 106,000 102,700 |
6398 Treasurers fee i ) 935,550 940,000
6410 Books 554,000 554,000 554,000
6425  Newspapers/periodicals - i ] 56,000 56,000 56,000 |
6430 Ebooks \ ' 170,000 | 170,000 170,000
6460 Compact discs - - B 42,000 | 42,000 42,000
6480  Software - - 800,244 880,269
6490  Video/DVD 78,000 | 78,000 78,000
6495  Other expense 4,550 55,000 | 259,550 259,550
6496  Electronic resources ] 750,000 | 750,000 750,000
6500  Platform Fees } 13,350 | 13,350 13,350
6510  Insurance ' 240,000 250,000
6520 Equipment rentals 2,000 | 8,000 2,000
6530 Lease/rental expense ' - -

Capital Outlay
6952  Equipment over $5000 410,000 | i 410,000 i
6940 Improvement to Buildings ‘ |
6954 New Computers & Other Technology J - = 483,000 200,000
6980 Capital improvements 16,499,000 16,499,000 4,964,000
6985 Lease debt service - -
6986  Opening Day Collection | 405,000 405,000 -
6987  Construction Graphics ‘ <

'DEPARTMENT TOTAL 138,540 10,238 | 19,079,000 2,844,049 41,716,906 | 28,777,013




RESOLUTION TO ADOPT BUDGET
25-1

A RESOLUTION SUMMARIZING EXPENDITURES AND REVENUES FOR EACH
FUND AND ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT,
COLORADO, FOR THE CALENDAR YEAR BEGINNING ON THE FIRST DAY OF
JANUARY 2026, AND ENDING ON THE LAST DAY OF DECEMBER 2026.

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the High Plains Library District has appointed
Dr. Matthew Horit, High Plains Library District Executive Director, to prepare and submit a
proposed budget to said governing body at the proper time; and

WHEREAS, Dr. Matthew Hortt has submitted a proposed budget to this governing
body for its consideration; and

WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, published or posted in accordance with the
law, said proposed budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a
public hearing was held on December 8, 2025, and interested taxpayers were given the
opportunity to file or register any objections to said proposed budget.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the High Plains
library District, Colorado:

Section 1.  That estimated expenditures for each fund are as follows:

General Fund $ 64,796,719

Debt Service Fund

Section 2.  That estimated revenues for each fund are as follows:

General Fund:
From un-appropriated

surpluses $117,367,640
From the general property $ 52,823,465
tax levy

From sources other than $ 4,988,562

general property tax
Total General Fund
$ 175,179,667

Debt Service Fund



Resolution to Adopt Budget
Page 2 :
High Plains Library District

Section 3.  That the budget, as submitted, amended, and hereinabove summarized
by fund, hereby is approved and adopted as the budget of the High Plains Library District for
the year stated above.

Section 4.  That the budget hereby approved and adopted shall be signed by the
Chairman, High Plains Library District Board of Trustees, and made a part of the public
records of the District.

ADOPTED, this 8th day of December, A.D., 2025.

Attest:

Chairman, Board of Trustees

Attest:

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Trustees



RESOLUTION TO APPROPRIATE SUMS OF MONEY
25-2

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING SUMS OF MONEY TO THE VARIOUS
FUNDS AND SPENDING AGENCIES, IN THE AMOUNTS AND FOR THE PURPOSE
AS SET FORTH BELOW, FOR THE HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT,
COLORADO, FOR THE 2026 BUDGET YEAR.

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has adopted the annual budget in accordance
with the local Government Budget Law, on December 8, 2025 and

WHEREAS, the Library Board has made provision therein for revenues in an
amount equal to or greater than the total proposed expenditures as set forth in said
budget, and

WHEREAS, it is not only required by law, but also necessary to appropriate the
revenues provided in the budget to and for the purposes described below, so as not to
impair the operations of the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the High
Plains Library District, Colorado:

That the following sums are hereby appropriated from the revenue of each fund,
to each fund, for purposes stated:

General
Fund:

Current Operating Expenses $ 34,516,935

Capital Outlay $17,820,900

Transfers {internal activities)

Distribution to Member Libraries $12,458,884

Total General Fund

$ 64,796,719

Debt Service
Fund:

Principal & Interest & Other
ADOPTED, this 8" day of December, A.D., 2025.

ATTEST:

Chairman, Board of Trustees

ATTEST:

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Trustees



RESOLUTION TO SET MILL LEVIES
25-3

A RESOLUTION LEVYING GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE
YEAR 2025 TO HELP DEFRAY THE COSTS OF GOVERNMENT FOR THE
HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT, COLORADO, FOR THE 2026 BUDGET
YEAR.

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the High Plains Library District has
adopted the annual budget in accordance with the Local Government Budget
Law, on December 8, 2025, and

WHEREAS, the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for
general operating expenses is $52,020,607

WHEREAS, the 2025 valuation for assessment for the High Plains Library
District as certified by the Weld County Assessor is $17,117,672,544

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the
High Plains Library District, Colorado:

Section 1: That for the purpose of meeting all general operating expenses
of the High Plains Library District during the 2026 budget year, there is hereby
levied a tax of 3.039 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation for assessment
of all taxable property within the District for the year 2025.

Section 2: That the District Executive Director is hereby authorized and
directed to immediately recertify to the County Commissioners of Weld County,
Colorado, the mill levies for the High Plains Library District as hereinabove
determined and set.

ADOPTED, this 8" day of December, A.D., 2025.

ATTEST:

Chairman, Board of Trustees

ATTEST:

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Trustees



CERTIFICATION OF TAX LEVIES for NON-SCHOOL Governments *
* School governments must use forms provided by the Colorado Department of Education (303) 866-6600.

TO: County Commissioners of Weld County, Colorado. The Board of Trustees
{governing board}
of the High Plains Library District hereby certifies the following mill levies to be extended upon the
(name of local government)
GROSS] assessed valuation of § 17,513,406,530 . Submitted this date; December 9, 2025
m
PURPOSE LEVY REVENUE

1. General Operating Expenses [This includes fire
pension, unless fire pension levy is voter-approved;
if so, use Line 7 below.] 3,177 mills $ 54,382,846

2. (Minus) Temporary Property Tax Credit/
Temporary Mill Levy Rate Reduction,
39-1-111.5, C.R.S. < JA38 > millsd § < 2362239 >

i IF THE CREDIT DOES NOT APPLY TO the General Operating
Expenses levy PLEASE INDICATE HERE THE LEVY TO
WHICH THE CREDIT APPLIES

SUBTOTAL 3.039 mills $ 52,020,607

General Obligation Bonds and Interest [Special
districts must certify separately for each debt
pursuant to 32-1-1603, C.R.S.; see Page 2 of this

form. If bond levy ended last year, enter date/name]. mills 3
4, Contractual Obligations Approved At Election mills $
Capital Expenditures [These revenues are not subject
to the statutory property tax revenue limit if they are
approved by counties and municipalities through
public hearings pursuant to 29-1-301(1.2) C.R.S. and
for special districts though approval from the
Division of Local Government pursuant to 29-1-
302(1.5) C.R.S. or for any entity if approved at
glection.] mills 3
6. Refunds/Abatements [if the gov’t.entity is in more
than one county, the levy must be uniform
throughout the entity’s boundaries]. 005 mills $ 85,388
7. Other (specify): mills 3
TOTAL 3.044 mills $ 52,106,195
NOTE: Certification must be carried to three decimal places only.
NOTE: If you certify to more than one county, you must certify the same levy to each county.
NOTE: If your boundaries extend into more than one county, please list all counties here:
Counties: Boulder and Weld
Contact person:
(print) Natalie Wertz Daytime phone:  (970) 506-8566
Signed: Title: _ Finance Manager, High Plains Library District

Send one completed copy of this form to the Division of Local Government (DLG), Room 521, 1313 Sherman Street, Denver,
Colorado 80203 when you submit it to the Board(s) of County Commissioners. Questions? Call DLG at (303) 866-2156.

1 As reported by County Assessor in final certification of valuation; use NET Assessed Valuation to calculate any levy.



CERTIFICATION OF TAX LEVIES, continued

THIS APPLIES ONLY TO TITLE 32, ARTICLE 1 SPECIAL DISTRICTS THAT LEVY TAXES
FOR PAYMENT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT (32-1-1603 C.R.S.). Special Districts must
certify separate mill levies and revenues to the Board of County Commissioners, one each for the funding
requirements of each debt (32-1-1603, C.R.S.) Use additional pages as necessary. Total of all levies should
be recorded on Page 1, Line 3.

CERTIFY A SEPARATE MILL LEVY FOR EACH BOND OR CONTRACT:

BONDS:
I. Purpose of Issue: N/A
Series:

Date of Issue:

Coupon Rate:

Maturity Date:

Levy:

Revenue:

2. Purpose of Issue:

Series:

Date of Issue:

Coupon Rate:

Maturity Date:

Levy:

Revenue:

CONTRACTS:
3. Purpose of Contract: N/A

Title:

Date:

Principal Amount:

Maturity Date:

Levy:

Revenue:

4. Purpose of Contract:

Title:

Date:

Principal Amount:

Maturity Date:

Levy:

Revenue:




RESOLUTION TO SET MILL LEVIES
25-4

A RESOLUTION LEVYING GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES FOR THE
YEAR 2025 TO HELP DEFRAY THE COSTS OF GOVERNMENT FOR THE
HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT, COLORADO, FOR THE 2026 BUDGET
YEAR.

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees of the High Plains Library District has
adopted the annual budget in accordance with the Local Government Budget
Law, on December 8, 2025, and

WHEREAS, the amount of money necessary to balance the budget for
general operating expenses is $802,858

WHEREAS, the 2025 valuation for assessment for the High Plains Library
District as certified by the Boulder County Assessor is $264,184,885

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Trustees of the
High Plains Library District, Colorado:

Section 1: That for the purpose of meeting all general operating expenses
of the High Plains Library District during the 2026 budget year, there is hereby
levied a tax of 3.039 mills upon each dollar of the total valuation for assessment
of all taxable property within the District for the year 2025.

Section 2; That the District Executive Director is hereby authorized and
directed to immediately recertify to the County Commissioners of Boulder
County, Colorado, the mill levies for the High Plains Library District as
hereinabove determined and set.

ADOPTED, this 8" day of December, A.D., 2025.

ATTEST:

Chairman, Board of Trustees

ATTEST:

Secretary/Treasurer, Board of Trustees



CERTIFICATION OF TAX LEVIES for NON-SCHOOL Governments *
* School governments must use forms provided by the Colorado Department of Education (303) 866-6600.

TO: County Commissioners of Boulder County, Colorado. The Board of Trustees
(governing board)
of the High Plains Library District hereby certifies the following mill levies to be extended upon the
(name of local government)
GROSS] assessed valuation of § 275,650,708 . Submitted this date: December 9, 2025
m
PURPOSE LEVY REVENUE

1. General Operating Expenses [This includes fire
pension, unless fire pension levy is voter-approved;
if so, use Line 7 below.] 3.177 mills $ 839,315

2. (Minus) Temporary Property Tax Credit/
Temporary Mill Levy Rate Reduction,
39-1-111.5,C.R.S. < A38> millst § < 36457 >

+ IF THE CREDIT DOES NOT APPLY TO the General Operating
Expenses levy PLEASE INDICATE HERE THE LEVY TO
WHICH THE CREDIT APPLIES

SUBTOTAL 3.039 mills $ 802,858
3.
General Obligation Bonds and Interest [Special
districts must certify separately for each debt
pursuant to 32-1-1603, C.R.S$.; see Page 2 of this
form. If bond levy ended last year, enter date/name]. mills
4, Contractual Obligations Approved At Election mills

Capital Expenditures [These revenues are not subject

to the statutory property tax revenue limit if they are

approved by counties and municipalities through

public hearings pursuant to 29-1-301(1.2) C.R.S. and

for special districts though approval from the

Division of Local Government pursuant to 29-1-

302(1.5) C.R.S. or for any entity if approved at

election.] mills $

6. Refunds/Abatements [if the gov’t.entity is in more
than one county, the levy must be uniform

throughout the entity’s boundaries]. .005 mills $ 1,321
7. Other (specify): mills 5
TOTAL 3.044 mills $ 804,179

NOTE: Certification must be carried to three decimal places only.

NOTE: If you certify to more than one county, you must certify the same levy to each county.
NOTE: If your boundaries extend into more than one county, please list all counties here:
Counties: Boulder and Weld

Contact person;
(print) Natalie Wertz Daytime phone: _ {970) 506-8566

Signed: Title: _ Finance Manager, High Plains Library District

Send one completed copy of this form to the Division of Local Government (DLG), Room 521, 1313 Sherman Street, Denver,
Colorado 80203 when you submit it to the Board(s) of County Commissioners. Questions? Call DLG at (303) 866-2156.

1 As reported by County Assessor in final certification of valuation; use NET Assessed Valuation to calculate any levy.




CERTIFICATION OF TAX LEVIES, continued

THIS APPLIES ONLY TO TITLE 32, ARTICLE 1 SPECIAL DISTRICTS THAT LEVY TAXES
FOR PAYMENT OF GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT (32-1-1603 C.R.S.). Special Districts must
certify separate mill levies and revenues to the Board of County Commissioners, one each for the funding
requirements of each debt (32-1-1603, C.R.S.) Use additional pages as necessary. Total of all levies should
be recorded on Page 1, Line 3.

CERTIFY A SEPARATE MILL LEVY FOR EACH BOND OR CONTRACT:

BONDS:
1. Purpose of Issue: N/A
Series:

Date of Issue:

Coupon Rate:

Maturity Date:

Levy:

Revenue:

2. Purpose of Issue:

Series:

Date of Issue:

Coupon Rate:

Maturity Date:

Levy:

Revenue;

CONTRACTS:
3. Purpose of Contract: N/A

Title:

Date:

Principal Amount:

Maturity Date:

Levy:

Revenue:

4. Purpose of Contract:

Title:

Date:

Principal Amount:

Maturity Date:

Levy:

Revenue:




LEASE-PURCHASE SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULE TO THE
ADOPTED BUDGET (29-1-103(3)(D), C.R.S.

BUDGET YEAR 2026

The Supplemental Schedule must present information separately for all lease-purchase
agreements involving real property and all lease purchase agreements for non-real

property.
I. REAL PROPERTY LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS:

Description of real Property Lease-Purchase:

Lease of Library Facilities: Year Amount
2026 $

Total maximum payment liability for all Real Property

Lease Purchase Agreements over the entire terms of all

such agreements, including all optional renewal terms: $

M. ALL LEASE-PURCHASE AGREEMENTS NOT INVOLVING REAL PROPERTY

Description of Lease-Purchase Item(s):

Description of Lease-Purchase Agreement(s):

Year Amount
Total amount to be expended for all Non-Real Property
Lease Purchase Agreements in Budget Year: 20__ $

Total maximum payment liability for all Non-Real Property
Lease Purchase Agreements over the entire terms of all such
Agreements, including all optional renewal terms: $



2026
Capital
Improvement



OVERVIEW OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM PROCESS

It is the practice of the High Plains Library District (HPLD) to develop, maintain, and revise
when necessary a continuing Capital Improvement Program (CIP). The CIP covers a five-
year planning horizon, identifying infrastructure and facility projects that the District plans to
undertake.

Defining a Capital Improvement

To be included in the CIP, projects need to meet one of the following criteria:

» Construction of a new District asset or expansion of an existing District-owned facility,
including preliminary planning and surveys, cost of land (if applicable), staff and contractual
services for design and construction, and related furnishings and equipment.

* [nitial acquisition of a major equipment system, which will become a District asset that has a
cost of $10,000 or more and a useful life of at least three years.

* Major renovation or rehabilitation of an existing District-owned facility that requires an
expenditure of $10,000 or more and will extend the life of the original District asset.
Exceptions have been made for inclusion of a few projects that do not meet the above
criteria to make them more visible to the public and the HPLD Board of Trustees (BOT).
Steps from Submittal to Approval

The CIP process begins with the District’s annual Budget kick-off meeting with all Directors
and Managers. The Directors and Managers are given the months of July and August to
develop their CIP requests and review future year requests based on their assessment of
needs. The 2026 - 2030 Program includes projects that are pay-as-you-go funded with
operating funds and allocation of fund balance. The Finance Department reviews all
requests for funding availability and reasonableness.

Summary of Expenditures and Funding

The approved five-year CIP for Fiscal Years 2026 through 2030 totals approximately $35.83
million. The 2026 budget includes funds to construct a library in Mead, construct a library
and archive and expansion at DSS, and replacements and improvements to district-owned
facilities. Funding will be from 2026 revenue and the fund balance in the General Fund.
Impact on the Operating Budget

The completion of many projects is the beginning of recurring costs for the operating budget.
All projects included in the first year of the Capital Program are funded in the 2026
recommended budget. Projects included in the subsequent years (2027-2030) will be
approved by the BOT in concept only. The Program will be updated annually to address
specific needs as they arise or as the BOT goals and policies change.

Thus, it is important for the reader to understand that the District's BOT is not committing
funds for any projects beyond the 2026 year.



Location/ltem Description 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Carbon Valley Regional Library
P-1 and P-2 Base Mounted Pumps $ 36,000
HVAC system - 2 Boilers & Pumps / 4 RTUs / Controls $ 1,000,000
Room split system $ 17,000
Meeting room carpet $ 4,000

Total $ 1,021,000 | § -8 -| 8 - 8 36,000
Cantacinlal Park Libraey v 00 8 O 0 5 R s R A T e A A i iy 0 |
RTU1,2,and 3 $ 258,000
Exhaust Fans - EF1, 2, and 3 $ 8,000

Total $ -8 8,000 $ 258,000 -8 -

S
District Support Services
$

New Tech Eqpt (Computer, Phone, Server...) $ 483,000 | $ 200,000  $ 40,000 50,000 % 70,000
Repair, replacement & new equipment $ 70,000 | $ 80,000 $ 80,000 | $ 100,000 $ 150,000
Workforce Development Vehicle $ 260,000

Box Truck - ITl and Facilities $ 80,000

Parking lots $ 25,000

Makerspace Vehicle $ 400,000

RTU 2 $ 142,000

RTU 1, 3, and 4 and exhaust fan 1 $ 221,898

Special projects (Facilities) $ 50,000 | $ 50,000 | § 50,000

50,000 | §
)

Special projects (IT) 50,000 50,000

§ $
Total $ 1,110,000 | $ 330,000 $ 441,898 | $ 650,000 $ 220,000
Erie Community Library
$

RTU 3 8,000
Base Mounted Pump - B1 & B2 $ 36,000
Relief Fans - RF 1,2, 3, & 4 $ 32,000
Exhaust Fans - EF1, 2,3, & 4 $ 8,000

Makerspace counter and paint $ 5,000
Patio furniture $ 6,900
2 Boilers / Pumps 3 215,000

Total $ 226,900 | § 76,000 8,000  $ - 8 -

$
Farr Regional Library
Roof b 230,000

CU2 cooling unit 2 IT room $ 4,000

RTU 3 $ 50,000
Concret replacement 6,000

Meeting Room Tables 12,000

[Blinds for nursing room

Total o 405,000  $ - 8 - 8 -[$ 950,000
Library Buildings, PC Centers, and Facilities

DSS Expansion and Archive % 7000000 2 i
Mead o ~|'$ 8,000,000 R | |
Erie '$ 4,000,000 $ 10,000,000

Total

$ 15,000,000

$ 4,000,000

$ 10,000,000

$

Grand Total

$ 17,820,900

$ 5,164,000

$ 10,941,898

$

650,000




® Opening Day Collection
m Equipment & Furniture > $5,000
= New Computers & Other Technology

M Capital Improvements

Opening Day Collection:
Mead & DSS $ 405,000
Equipment / Furniture > $5,000
Workforce Development Vehicle $ 260,000
Box Truck - ITI and Facilities $ 80,000
Repair, replacement & new equipment $ 70,000
Patio furniture - Erie $ 6,900
Meeting room tables and blinds - Farr 3 17,000
Sub total $ 433,900
New Computers & Other Technology:
IT projects $ 483,000
Sub total $ 483,000
Capital Improvements: ‘
Mead $ 8,000,000
DSS Expansion and Archive $ 7,000,000
Carbon Valley improvements $ 1,021,000
DSS improvements 3 217,000
Erie improvements $ 220,000 |
Farr improvements $ 6,000 #
LINC improvements | $ 35,000 |
|
J
Sub total $ 16,499,000
Total Capital outlay $ 17,820,900
Opening Day Collection - $ 405,000 a -
Equipment & Furniture > $5,000 $ 433,900 o
New Computers & Other Technology $ 483,000 | -
Capital Improvements | $ 16,499,000 B . -
$ 17,820,900 |




2026
Department
Budgets



01-xxxx-50-01 Board of Trustees

6220 -

¥ DENSE

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

6221 -

E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

810

750

750

800

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

300

300

300

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

6364 -

Water and sewer

6365 -

Natural gas

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

6379 -

Professional Contracts

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - vehicles

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

1,021

2,800

2,800

2,900

6396 -

Meetings

2,001

110

2,000

2,000

2,100

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

108

500

500

500

6480 -

Software

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furiture-over $5000

6954 .

New Computers & other technology

Total

3,940

110

6,350

6,350

6,600




01-xxxx-50-02 Executive Director

6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

434

1,180

150

150

6221

- E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

12,584

67,949

1,200

1,500

1,500

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

375

515

1,200

17,100

17,100

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

6364 -

Water and sewer

6365 -

Natural gas

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

6379 -

Professional Contracts

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - vehicles

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

4,506

1,684

3,500

3,750

4,000

6396 -

Meetings

57

3,500

3,500

3,500

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

1,863

652

1,200

4,500

1,200

6480 -

Software

6495 -

Other Expense

100,000

100,000

100,000

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 -

New Computers & other technology

Total

19,762

72,037

110,600

130,500

127,450




01-xxxx-50-03 Associate Directors

Expense Account

YTD
6/30/2025

Actual
2024

Budget
2026

Planned
2027

6220 - Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

6236 - Janitorial supplies

37

6249 - Operating supplies
6250 - Bib Processing Supplies

35,235 |

200 |

6310 - Postage

6320 - Printing

6340 - Memberships
16345 - Public Relations
6358 - Programs

6362 - Electric

41,625

6364 - Water and sewer

6365 - Natural gas

6367 - Phones .
6369 - Disposal Services
6379 -

6379 - Professional Contracts

6380 - Gasoline, Motor Oil, Lubricants _

6382 - Repair maint. - building
6384 - Repair maint. - vehicles

6385 - Repair maint. - office equip;r@r)i |
6387 - Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 - Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -
6394 -
6396 -
6397 -
6480 -
6495 -
6510 -
6520 -
6940 -
6952 -
6954 .

Repair maint. - other equipment
Travel and Mileage
Meetings

Software

Other Expense

Insurance

Equipment Rentals
Improvement to Buildings
Equip/furniture-over $5000

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

New Computers & other technology
Total

1,020 |
500

- 784
| 66

6,000

| 13,040

—

14,140

7,000 |
1,020 |

|
2,000 |

100,000

10,000 |
1,020
2.000

100,000

155,763 | 118,688 245,115

435,105

321,145




01-xxxx-10-00 Centennial Park

6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

5,953

1,505

7,550

9,400

4,500

6221 -

E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

20,844

9,075

20,200

19,400

18,300

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

13

1,314

104

104

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

200

500

500

500

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

30,463

15,569

52,000

40,000

41,000

6364 -

Water and sewer

3,316

2,936

5,500

8,000

8,000

6365 -

Natural gas

6,316

5,120

15,000

12,000

13,000

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

7,930

3,970

9,000

10,000

12,000

6379 -

Professional Contracts

66,656

34,038

70,720

74,300

74,880

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - vehicles

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

2,000

2,000

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 .

Travel and Mileage

160

119

621

1,085

1,085

6395 -

In-House Training

6396 -

Meetings

113

30

300

600

600

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6480 -

Software

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 -

New Computers & Other Technology

6980 -

Capital improvements

Total

141,964

72,368

182,705

177,389

175,969




01-xxxx-15-00 Farr

6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5K

2217

2,000

2,000

2,000

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

8,459

3,908

13,000

11,000

11,000

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

29

50

50

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

99

200

300

300

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

43,354

41,793

70,000

50,000

51,000

6364 -

Water and sewer

15,121

13,240

22,000

20,000

22,000

6365 -

Natural gas

5,123

6,690

20,000

12,000

12,000

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

8,628

4,616

10,000

10,000

12,000

6379 -

Professional Contracts

173

163

1,160

200

200

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - vehicles

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

12,000

2,000

2,000

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

120

52

201

140

140

6396 -

Meetings

400

600

600

6397 -

Out-of-House Training $ Conferences

6480 -

Software

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

17,000

6954 -

New Computers & Other Technology

6980 -

Capital improvements

Total

81,077

72,630

150,986

125,290

113,290




01-xxxx-20-00 Carbon Valle

- Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

8717

5,867

16,248

13,311

6,200

- E-book Readers

- CVRL Foundation Purchases

- Janitorial supplies

- Operating supplies

15,682

9,469

16,500

17,580

16,800

- Bib Processing Supplies

- Postage

100

100

100

- Printing

- Memberships

200

45

1,050

1,050

1,050

- Public Relations

- Programs

- Electric

46,178

22,045

55,000

50,000

51,000

- Water and sewer

5,964

2,058

15,000

10,000

10,000

- Natural gas

9,702

10,463

20,000

15,000

16,000

- Phones

- Disposal Services

12,113

6,567

15,000

15,000

16,000

- Professional Contracts

5,900

5,900

5,900

- Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

- Repair maint. - building

- Repair maint. - vehicles

- Repair maint. - office equipment

- Repair, maint., replacement / compute

=

- Repair maint. - on-line computer

- Repair maint. - other equipment

5,000

5,000

5,000

- Travel and Mileage

2,614

1,134

3,275

3,500

3,500

- Meetings

317

231

540

800

800

- Out-of-House Training & Conferences

- Software

- Other Expense

- Insurance

- Equipment Rentals

- Improvement to Buildings

- Equip/furniture-over $5000

7,500

6954 -

New computers & other technology

6980 -

Capital improvements

6986 -

Opening Day Collection

Total

102,487

57,669

161,113

137,241

132,350




01-xxxx-30-00 Lincoln Park

6220 - Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k
6221 - E-book Readers

6236 - Janitorial supplies

6249 - Operating supplies 1,024
6250 - Bib Processing Supplies
6310 - Postage

6320 - Printing

6340 - Memberships

6345 - Public Relations

6358 - Programs

6362 - Electric 1,812
6364 - Water and sewer 849
6365 - Natural gas 2,380
6367 - Phones

6369 - Disposal Services 4,384

6379 - Professional Contracts

6380 - Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants
6382 - Repair maint. - building

6384 - Repair maint. - vehicles

6385 - Repair maint. - office equipment
6387 - Repair, maint., replacement / computer
6388 - Repair maint. - on-line computer
6389 - Repair maint. - other equipment
6394 - Travel and Mileage

6396 - Meetings

6397 - Out-of-House Training &Conferences
6480 - Software

6495 - Other Expense

6510 - Insurance

6520 - Equipment Rentals

6530 - Lease / Rent Expense
6952 - Equip/fumiture-over $5000
6954 - New computers and other technology
6980 - Capital improvements

Total 10,449 - _ - -




01-xxxx-35-00 LINC - Library INnovation Center

6220 - Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5K | 14,710 2,205 3,690 | 11,327 | 5,000

6236 - Janitorial supplies

6249 - Operating supplies 63,111 27,447 69,800 59,500 59,500
6250 - Bib Processing Supplies

6310 - Postage 88 88
6320 - Printing

6340 - Memberships 46 150 300 400 400

6345 - Public Relations
6358 - Programs

6362 - Electric 73,188 48,330 60,000 80,000 82,000
6364 - Water and sewer 17,950 7,406 18,000 20,000 21,000
6365 - Natural gas 32,593 25,225 50,000 36,000 40,000
6367 - Phones

6369 - Disposal Services 19,498 10,134 20,000 22,000 25,000
6379 - Professional Contracts 107,649 55,067 113,152 116,311 116,311

6380 - Gasoline, Motor Oil, Lubricants
6382 - Repair maint. - building
6384 - Repair maint. - vehicles
6385 - Repair maint. - office equipment .
6387 - Repair, maint., replacement / computer
6388 - Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 - Repair maint. - other equipment 12,000 12,000 12,000
6394 - Travel and Mileage 2,320 2,320 2,320
6396 - Meetings 728 292 600 600

6397 - Out-of-House Training $ Conferences
6480 - Software

6495 - Other Expense

6510 - Insurance

6520 - Equipment Rentals

6940 - Improvement to Buildings

6952 - Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 - New Computers & Other Technology
6980 - Capital improvements

Total 329,473 176,256 349,262 360,546 364,219




01-xxxx-40-00 Outreach

6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

1,642

4,500

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

9,902

8,990

10,000

13,000

11,000

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

126

50

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

534

248

650

650

650

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

6364 -

Water and sewer

6365 -

Natural gas

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

6379 -

Professional Contracts

15,447

20,031

68,761

75,021

75,021

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6,022

2,759

16,000

10,000

12,000

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - vehicles

29,803

12,264

26,400

49,200

26,200

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

4,341

4,675

5,600

8,000

10,000

6396 -

Meetings

267

277

750

500

750

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6410 -

Books

6480 -

Software

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6530 -

Lease / Rental

24,416

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 -

New computers & other technology

6980 -

Capital improvements

Total

67,958

73,660

132,786

163,421

140,621




- Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

6221

- E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

16,500

15,000

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

100

100

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

700

700

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

10,000

17,000

6364 -

Water and sewer

7,500

12,000

6365 -

Natural gas

9,000

15,000

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

5,000

8,000

6379 -

Professional Contracts

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - bookmobile

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

500

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

3,000

2,500

6396 -

Meetings

100

100

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 -

New Computers & other technology

Total

59,400

74,400




01-xxxx-46-00 DSS Library and Archive

- Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

6221

- E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

3,820

4,120

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

15

15

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

250

250

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

2,500

5,000

6364 -

Water and sewer

1,500

3,000

6365 -

Natural gas

2,000

4,000

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

1,500

3,000

6379 -

Professional Contracts

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - bookmobile

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

2,300

2,500

6396 -

Meetings

140

160

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 -

New Computers & other technology

Total

18,275

23,545




01-xxxx-71-00 Erie

6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

6221

- E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

62409 -

Operating supplies

14,523

7,047

19,300

15,900

15,900

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

13

15

125

100

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

405

400

400

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

30,682

15,712

50,000

36,000

37,000

6364 -

Water and sewer

12,716

3,399

15,000

16,000

16,000

6365 -

Natural gas

3,770

3,055

12,000

8,000

8,000

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

1,718

1,012

5,000

4,000

5,000

6379 -

Professional Contracts

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - vehicles

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

961

1,080

1,740

3,480

3,248

6396 -

Meetings

g2

450

150

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6480 -

Software

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/fumniture-over $5000

6,900

6954 -

New computers & other technology

6980 -

Capital improvements

Total

74,316

54,596

130,770

130,430

85,548




6220 -

01-xxxx-72-00 Kersey Library

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

850

7,500

3,100

2,500

6221 -

E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

1,105

882

3,160

3,725

3,790

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

15

32

32

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

10

150

150

150

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

2,880

1,823

5,000

4,000

5,000

6364 -

Water and sewer

810

514

1,500

2,000

2,000

6365 -

Natural gas

963

178

3,000

2,500

3,000

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

3,111

1,803

3,000

4,000

4,000

6379 -

Professional Contracts

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor QOil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - vehicles

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

250

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

676

600

735

6396 -

Meetings

100

550

650

6397 -

Out-of-House Training &Conferences

6480 -

Software

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6530 -

Lease / Rental expense

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 .

New computers and other technology

6980 -

Capital improvements

Total

10,405

5,800

24,275

20,792

21,122




01-xxxx-73-00 Riverside Library & Cultural Center

6220 - Minor Equipment/Furniture<$5k
6236 - Janitorial supplies

6249 - Operating supplies 8,663 3,511 12,650 12,400 12,400
6250 - Bib Processing Supplies

6310 - Postage 156 159 146 146
6320 - Printing

6340 - Memberships 102 200 200 200

6345 - Public Relations
6358 - Programs

6362 - Electric 18,535 7,061 25,000 22,000 25,000
6364 - Water and sewer 6,524 924 8,000 8,000 8,000
6365 - Natural Gas 4,575 2,708 10,000 8,000 10,000
6367 - Phones

6369 - Disposal Services 4,199 2,224 4,000 5,000 6,000

6379 - Professional Contracts

6380 - Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants
6382 - Repair maint. - building

6384 - Repair maint. - bookmobile
6385 - Repair maint. - office equipment 200 400 400
6387 - Repair maint. - computer

6388 - Repair maint. - on-line computer
6389 - Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 - Travel and Mileage 390 500 400 400
6395 - In House Training

6396 - Meetings 215 111 300 400 400
6397 - Out of House Training & Conferences

6410 - Books

6480 - Software

6495 - Other Expense

6510 - Insurance

6520 - Equipment Rentals

6952 - Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 - New computers and other technology
6980 - Capital Improvements

Total 44,422 16,539 76,009 71,946 74,946




01-xxxx-74-00 Grover Library

6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

230

o1 8 b7

1,000

1,500

6221 :

E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

855

513

6,120

3,385

3,550

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

461

550

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

100

100

150

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

1,561

2,748

5,000

6,000

5,000

6364 -

Water and sewer

226

539

3,000

3,000

3,000

6365 -

Natural gas

938

665

5,000

5,000

5,000

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

453

1,724

2,000

2,000

2,000

6379 -

Professional Contracts

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Oil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - bookmobile

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

1,200

1,000

1,000

6396 -

Meetings

880

1,000

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 -

New Computers & other technology

Total

4,263

6,189

25,020

22,826

22,750




01-xxxx-50-51 Administration

6136 - Workers' ompensation

115,000

120,000

6205 - Bank Service Charges

6220 - Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

6236 - Janitorial supplies

6249 - Operating supplies

5,366

(767)

6,500

6,500

6,500

6250 - Bib Processing Supplies

6310 - Postage

50

50

50

6320 - Printing

6340 - Memberships

2,697

6345 . Public Relations

6362 - Electric

1,033

9,689

45,000

55,000

57,000

6364 - Water and sewer

7,809

2,914

15,000

20,000

21,000

6365 - Natural gas

4,435

4,731

15,000

20,000

22,000

6367 - Phones

6369 - Disposal Services

21,182

8,972

25,000

30,000

32,000

6378 - High Plains RLSS Courier

6379 - Professional Contracts

71,486

65,044

75,000

425,600

75,600

6385 - Repair maint. - office equipment

6394 - Travel and Mileage

6395 - In-House Training

6396 - Meetings

6397 - Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6398 - Treasurer's fee

1,039,942

800,253

891,000

935,550

940,000

6410 - Books

6425 - Periodicals

6480 - Software

6495 . Other expense

1,584

2,400

6510 - Insurance

171,106

198,316

225,000

240,000

250,000

6520 - Equipment Rentals

6530 - Lease / Rental expense

31,593

6952 - Equipment / furniture over $5,000

6954 - New Computers & other technology

6980 - Capital improvements

6985 - Lease debt service

Total

1,378,779

1,183,955

1,392,550

1,847,700

1,524,150




6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

01-xxxx-50-53 Community Relations and Marketing

3,816

887

8,000

3,000

6221

- E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

17,682

3,721

42,500

54,500

54,500

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

100

2,500

2,500

6320 -

Printing

8,443

10,315

13,500

36,000

36,000

6340 -

Memberships

6,166

4,245

16,995

11,050

11,050

6345 -

Public Relations

74,272

44,951

83,355

104,775

187,775

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

6364 -

Water and sewer

6365 -

Natural gas

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

6379 -

Professional Contracts

7,621

6,340

30,120

28,650

30,500

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

5,000

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - bookmobile

3,000

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

2,283

130

600

2,000

2,500

6396 -

Meetings

1,420

665

1,500

1,000

1,500

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6480 -

Software

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6987 - Construction - Graphics

Total

121,703

71,254

204,670

252,825

249,325




01-xxxx-50-54 - Information Technology and Innovation

Actual YTD Budget Budget | Planned
Expense Account 2024 6/30/2025 2025 2026 2027

6220 - Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k 23,768 1,036 7,600 7,600 9,120
6240 - Supplies Resale - Flash Drives . - _ i ]
6249 - Operating supplies i 7,797 | 3,184 11,124 11,124 | 13,349
6250 - Bib Processing Supplies _ o B
6310 - Postage ] i 7 100
6320 - Printing - | | I i N B
6340 - Memberships _ 660 - 11,342 11,449 12,594 |
6345 - Public Relations , ] L I ] -
6358 - Programs ) I _ |
6362 - Electic ] e 7 N ] o
6364 - Water and sewer , | B o F 0
6365 - Natural gas - N | |
6367 - Phones | | 225922 264216 492609 600,000 680,337
6369 - Disposal Services - 3699 2146 5043 5043 5547
6379 - Professional Contracts ] | 380,521 | 30,295 113,269 | 83,683 127,051
6380 - Gasoline, Motor QOil, Lubricants 7 | D - -
6382 - Repair maint. - building ] L | -
6384 - Repair maint. - bookmobile S o | S
6385 - Repair maint. - office equipment | 288,290 102,623 298,320 394,370 | 414,088
6387 - Repair, maint,, replacement/computer | 433,089 371,535 462,660 | 1,079,090 | 816,920
6388 - Repair maint. - on-line computer 294,968 282,640 379,556 424,132 | 466,545
6389 - Repair maint. - other equipment . 6,767 ‘ 39,018 126,263 | 102,500 | 102,500
6394 - Travel and Mileage | 9,028 2,860 34,320 | 34,320 34,320
6395 - In-House Training | | | |
6396 - Meetings | 288 | 400 |
6397 - Out-of-House Training & Conferences | (1,443) ‘
6480 - Software . 539,288 348,224 | 687,991 | 800,244 | 880,269
6495 - Other Expense : | |
6510 - Insurance ,
6520 - Equipment Rentals , 6,547 12,000 6,000 |
6952 - Equip/furniture-over $5000 7 77,395
6954 - New Computers & other technology 238,873 180,854 | 2,121,944 483,000 200,000
6980 - Capital Improvements | | |
6985 - Lease |

Total 2,128,910 1,635,178 | 4,764,541 | 4,042,555 3,762,640




01-xxxx-50-55 Human Resources

6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

1,000

1,000

1,000

6221

- E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

2,260

458

3,000

4,000

3,600

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

6320 -

Printing

116

6340 -

Memberships

7,821

12,705

8,349

8,349

8,299

6345 -

Public Relations

14,240

6,559

12,874

13,041

14,924

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

6364 -

Water and sewer

6365 -

Natural gas

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

6379 -

Professional Contracts

134,001

87,409

227,173

222,070

229,328

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - bookmobile

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6393

- Tuition Reimbursement

22,965

18,503

25,000

25,000

25,000

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

1,207

112

1,200

1,400

1,400

6395

In-House Training

20,643

83,721

53,000

95,000

95,000

6396 -

Meetings

20

200

200

200

6397 -

Out-of-House Conference & Meetings

49,139

18,640

90,000

101,000

101,000

6480 -

Software

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

Total

252,396

228,223

421,796

471,060

479,751




01-xxxx-50-56

6205 -Bank Service Charges

Finance

6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

6221

- E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

13

33

750

750

750

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

1,095

1,125

1,125

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

1,394

1,748

1,320

1,320

1,320

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

6364 -

Water and sewer

6365 -

Natural gas

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

6379 -

Professional Contracts

7,102

68,482

130,405

133,155

133,806

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - bookmobile

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

343

402

630

630

6396 -

Meetings

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6480 -

Software

6495 -

Other Expense

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 -

New Computers & other technology -

Total

79,820

70,694

135,952

138,540

139,191




01-xxxx-50-57 Foundation

6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

325

6221

- E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

2,059

75

400

400

400

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

6310 -

Postage

550

550

550

6320 -

Printing

177

1,000

1,000

1,000

6340 -

Memberships

1,503

858

1085

1,088

1,088

6345 -

Public Relations

76

1,000

1,000

1,000

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

6364 -

Water and sewer

6365 -

Natural gas

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

6379 -

Professional Contracts

306

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - bookmobile

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

835

68

900

900

900

6395

In-House Training

6396 -

Meetings

161

23

750

750

750

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6480 -

Software

2,851

3,009

6495 -

Other Expense

10

3,650

4,550

4,550

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 -

New Computers & other technology

Total

8,226

4,210

9,305

10,238

10,238




01-xxxx-50-58 Facilities Services

Expense Account

Actual 2024

YTD
6/30/2025

Budget
2025

Budget
2026

Planned
2027

6220 -

Minor Equipment/Furniture <$5k

6221

21 - E-book Readers
6236 -
6249 -

Janitorial supplies

53,817

15,000

10,000

10,000

90,000

Operating supplies

6250 -
6310 -

6320
6340 -
6345 -

Bib Processing Supplies

408

Postage

Printing

Memberships

Public Relations

6358 -
6362 -
6364 -
6365 -
6367 -

6369 - Disposal Services

6379 -
6380 -
6382 -

Programs _
Electric

Water and sewer
Natural gas
Phones

Professional Contracts
Gasollne Motor Oil, Lubrlcants
Repair maint. - bUIldIng

6383 -
6384 -
6385

- Repair maint. - grounds
Repair maint. - vehicles
- Repair maint. - office eqmpment

860,302
3,109
493,735

; 455

432,246 |
884 |

1,651

6387 - Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -
6394 -

6396 -

- Repair maint. - other equipment

Travel and Mileage

Meetings

6397 Out-of-House Tralmng & Conferences

6480 -
6495 -
6510 -
6520 -
6940 -
6952 -
6954 .
6980 -

‘Software

Other Expense

Insurance

Equipment Rentals

Improvement to Buildings
Equip/furniture-over $5000

New Computers & other technology
Capital Improvements

Total

4,635,602 |

6,720

4,183

5,680,947

267,875 |

120,000 |

120,000 |

1,000

1,000 |

3,000

4,000

982, 000 |

6,000 |

~ 1,100,000 |

10,000

2,000

28,067,000

650,000 |

~ 900,000 |

1,100,000

110,000
900,000

8,000

2,000
410,000

16,499,000

2,000

4,964,000

6,051,684

6,418,177

29,820,000

19,079,000

7,134,000




01-xxxx-50-59 Collection Resources

6220 -

3 '}:'__g‘-.:-‘: A

Minor Equipmet/Furiue<$k

3.300 |

6221

- E-book Readers

6236 -

Janitorial supplies

6249 -

Operating supplies

3,077

9,650

9,400

9,400

6250 -

Bib Processing Supplies

145,296

244,069

244,069

244,069

6310 -

Postage

32,225

34,325

34,450

34,450

6320 -

Printing

6340 -

Memberships

60

400

400

400

6345 -

Public Relations

6358 -

Programs

6362 -

Electric

6364 -

Water and sewer

6365 -

Natural gas

6367 -

Phones

6369 -

Disposal Services

6379 -

Professional Contracts

310,600

202,688

427,700

426,400

426,400

6380 -

Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants

6382 -

Repair maint. - building

6384 -

Repair maint. - bookmobile

6385 -

Repair maint. - office equipment

6387 -

Repair, maint., replacement / computer

6388 -

Repair maint. - on-line computer

6389 -

Repair maint. - other equipment

6394 -

Travel and Mileage

2,132

291

2,580

2,580

2,580

6396 -

Meetings

100

100

100

6397 -

Out-of-House Training & Conferences

6410

Books

574,954

260,516

554,000

554,000

554,000

6425

Newspapers & Periodicals

37,441

40,069

55,500

56,000

56,000

6430

Ebooks

170,229

60,717

165,000

170,000

170,000

6460

Compact Discs

28,801

9,420

47,000

42,000

42,000

6480 -

Software

6490

DVD/BluRay

62,197

21,819

90,000

78,000

78,000

6495 -

Other Expense

1,629

25,000

55,000

55,000

6496

Electronic resources

610,913

458,322

630,000

750,000

750,000

6500 -

Platform Fees

23,494

12,405

13,250

13,350

13,350

6510 -

Insurance

6520 -

Equipment Rentals

6940 -

Improvement to Buildings

6952 -

Equip/furniture-over $5000

6954 -

New Computers & other technology

39

6986 -

Opening Day Collection

15,710

510,000

405,000

Total

2,017,755

1,129,358

2,811,874

2,844,049

2,439,049




2026
Budget String
Coding



Budget String Coding - Numeric Sort

The following format is used for coding expenses for purchase order requisitions and for future
budgeting:

Fund Expense Location Department Proiect
Ol - ool - 00 - am - OOoon
Definitions:

¢ Fund: A fiscal and accounting entity with a set of accounts recording revenues and
expenditures of the entity.

» Expenses: Charges incurred for operation, maintenance, supplies, equipment, etc to
benefit the current fiscal period.

o Location: Various branch location or member library designations associated with a two-
digit code.

» Department: A two-digit code associated with District Support Services departments.

+ Project: A four-digit code associated with special expenditure categories.

Coding Examples

Example One: 01-6220-50-51

01=General Fund 6220=Minor Equipment 50=District Support Services 51=Administration

Example Two: 01-6249-10-00

01=General Fund 6249=0perating Supplies 10=Centennial Park 00=No Department
Example Three*: 01-6358-10-00-1001

01=General Fund 6358=Programs 10=Centennial Park 00=No Department

1010=Centennial Park Programs

*In most instances you will not need to code for projects unless you have expenses specifically related to
an itemn on the project list.




Schedule of Budget Codes

Fund Expense Location Department Project
Ol - e - 0 - 00 - N
Location Codes Department Codes
10 Centennial Park 00 None
15 Farr 0t Board of Trustees
20 Carbon Valley 02 Executive Director
30 Lincoln Park 03 Associate Director
35 LINC - Library INnovation Center 51 Administration
40 Bookmobile 33 Community Relations & Marketing
45 Mead
46 DSS Library & Archive 54 Information Technology
50 District Support Services 55 Human Resources
70 Ault (Northern Plains) 56 Finance
71 Erie 57 Foundation
72 Kersey Library 58 Facility Services
73 Riverside Library & Cultural Center 59 Collection Development
74 Grover
75 Eaton
80 Fort Lupton
85 Hudson
90 Johnstown (Glenn A. Jones)
95 Platteville

00 High Plains Library District

Prosram/Professional Contracts/Project Codes

Programs Professional Contracts

1010 Centennial Park 5010  Centennial Park

1015 Farr 5015  Farr

1020 Carbon Valley 5020  Carbon Valley

1030 Lincoln Park 5030  Lincoln Park

1071  Erie 5071  Erie

1072 Kersey 5072  Kersey

1073  Riverside Library & Cultural Center 5073 Riverside Library & Cultural Cir.
8001  Outreach 8002  Outreach

Projects

2012  Riverside Library & Cultural Ctr.
2013 Lincoln Park

2014 Energy Performance

3513  Interlibrary Loan system

8501  Spell Grant



6000 Tax Distribution to Member Libraries

6010 Contingency / An amount budgsted for
expenditures that cannot be foreseen and planned
for in the budget process because of an
occurrence of an unusual or extraordinary event.

6105 Third Party Health insurance Payment /
Insurance payment for COBRA insurance
coverage.

6110 Salaries / Wages paid to employees who are
employed by the District.

6112 Life/Disability Insurance / Premium paid for
short-term and long-term, life and disability
insurance coverage.

6136 Worker's Compensation / Premium paid for
worker's compensation insurance policy to provide
medical care to employees in the case of a work
related accident.

6137 Dental Insurance / Premium paid for dental
insurance coverage as elected by employees.

6138 Medical Insurance / Premium paid for
medical insurance coverage as elected
by employees.

6139 Vision Insurance / Premium paid for vision
insurance coverage as electad by employees.

6140 Social Security / Social Security taxes paid
by the District on the employees’ behalf.

6144 Retirement/401A/457 Expense / Employee
paid contribution o the 401A mandatory and 457
elective retirement plan.

6145 Legal Shield / Employee paid Legal
Services,

65146 Medicare / Federal withholding contribution
as part of social security program.

6148 Federal Unemployment Taxes / Amounts
paid by the District to provide unemployment
compensation benefits for employees.

65149 State Unemployment Taxes / Amounts paid
by the District to provide unemployment
compensation benefits for employees.

6200 Retirement — Employer Contribution /
Amount paid by District to match employees’
contribution to the 401A retirement plan.

6203 Fees — Other [ Miscellaneous fees.

6205 Bank Services Charges / Fees paid for bank
services.

6220 Minor Equipment / ltems costing less than
$5000, such as VCRs, projectors, televisions,
display units and typewriters.

6221 E Readers / Kindle Fires and |Pads.

6224 Foundation Purchases / ltems purchased
by the District that the Foundation has approved for
funding.

6236 Janitorial Supplies / ltems used to ¢clean
and supply facilities, such as floor finish, stain
remaver, toilet tissue, paper towels, hand soap,
and vacuum bags.

6249 Operating Supplies / Items such as pens,
paper, tape, scissors, desk accessories, binders,
paper clips, security cases, seasonal decorations,
break room supplies, and craft supplies. items
casting $100 and less.

6250 Tech Processing Supplies / ltems
purchased for processing library collection items,

6310 Postage / Mailing costs for sending letters
and packages.

6320 Printing / Printing and copying of materials
for internal or external use.

6340 Memberships / Payment of membership
dues to professional organizations.

6345 Public Relations / Advertising expenses,
including recruitment ads, newspaper publications
and promotional items.

6358 Programs / Expenditures to promote and
conduct programs such as Summer Reading,
National Library Week and Children’s Read Week.
May include prizes, arts and crafts, supplies,
decorations and refreshments.

6362 Electric / Expenditures for electrical services
provided by a public utility company.

6364 Water and Sewer ! Expenditures for services
provided by public or private companies.

6365 Natural Gas / Expenditures for natural gas
services provided by a public utility company.

6367 Phones / Phone service charges paidto a
private utility company, including cell phones and
networking line connections.



6369 Disposal Services / Pick up and removal of
waste and recyclable materials.

6379 Professional Contracts / Payment for
services rendered by outside contractors
{organizations or individuals).

6380 Gasoline, Motor Oil, Lubricants / Expenses
for fuel and lubricants to operate District vehicles.

6382 Repair & Maintenance-Buildings / Materials
and supplies for the repair and maintenance of
District buildings. Includes light bulbs, paint,
lumber, and hardware supplies.

6384 Repair & Maintenance-Vehicles / Repair
and maintenance costs for District vehicles.

6385 Repair & Maintenance-Office Equipment /
Services, supplies and maintenance

agreements purchased to repair and maintain
office egquipment, such as copy machines,
microfiche reader/printers and fax machines.

6387 Repair, Maintenance, Replacement-
Computer [ Services, supplies and maintenance
agreements purchased to repair and maintain
computer equipment, such as manitors, central
pracessing units and printers, Also includes cost of
replacement computers.

6388 Repair & Maintenance-On-line Computer /
Cost of upkeep for the Dynix Horizon system.

6389 Repair & Maintenance-Other Equipment /
Services, supplies and maintenance agreements
purchased to repair and maintain any equipment
that is not otherwise classified.

6393\Tuition Reimbursement / Reimbursement
for classes taken by those employees continuing
their education.

6394 Travel & Mileage / Reimbursement for
mileage, parking, meals, and incidental
expenses incurred by a District employee when
conducting District business. This does not
include expenseas incurred for conferences and
training.

6395 In-House Training / Costs of in-house
classes and seminars for staff needs.

6396 Meetings / Incidental expanses incurred
when hosting or attending mestings.

6397 Out-of-House Training & Conferences /
Expenses incurred for conference attendance, and
out-of-house training.

6398 Treasurer Fee / Fees paid to the county for
collection and distribution of property taxes.

6410 Books / Hardbound or softbound materials
purchased, not via a subscription.

6425 Periodicals f Printed materials purchased
with a subscription for magazines, newspapers, or
professional journals.

6430 E Books / Recorded audio materials in
cassette type form.

6460 Compact Discs / Recorded audio materials
including music in compact disk {CD) form.

6480 Software / Published software programs and
site licenses.

6490 DVD/Blue Ray / Recorded visual material in
DVD or Blue Ray format.

6495 Other Expense / Expenses not otherwise
classified.

6496 Electronic Resources / Subscription costs
for online databases.

6510 Insurance / Premiums paid for coverage of
bookmobiles, buildings, general liability and
Directors and Officers of the District.

6520 Equipment Rentals / Rental costs for
equipment rented by the District including
rentals of postage machine rental.

6952 Equipment/Furniture over $5000 /
Equipment or furniture items costing more
than $5000.

6953 RFID / Costs for the collection management
and inventory control system.

6954 New Computers & Other Technology /
Includes persaonal computers, menitors, printers,
and multi-functional equipment.

6980 Capital Improvements / Permanent repairs,
upgrades, remodel or improvements made to
enhance the appearance of a District building.

6985 Lease Payment/ Payments made to lease
Library buildings. Debt service transfer for 2001
COPS and 2006 COPS.

6986 Opening Day Collection / Expenses
incurred in purchasing Library materials for
opening day inventory.



Budget String Coding - Alpha Sort
The following format is used for coding expenses for purchase order requisitions and for future
budgeting:

Fund Expense Location Department Project
01 - Ha0aa - dm; - 0 - caa
Definitions:

e TFund: A fiscal and accounting entity with a set of accounts recording revenues and
expenditures of the entity.

¢ Expenses: Charges incurred for operation, maintenance, supplies, equipment, etc to
benefit the current fiscal period.

o Location: Various branch location or member library designations associated with a two-
digit code.

¢ Department: A two-digit code associated with District Support Services departments.

e Project: A four-digit code associated with special expenditure categories.

Coding Examples

Example One: 01-6220-50-51

0l=General Fund 6220=Minor Equipment 50=District Support Services 5i=Administration

Example Two: 01-6249-10-00

01=General Fund 6249=0perating Supplies 10=Centennial Park 00=No Department
Example Three*: 01-6338-10-00-1001

01=General Fund 6358=Programs 10=Centennial Park 00=No Department

1001=Centennial Park Programs

*In most instances you will not need to code for projects unless you have expenses specifically
related to an item on the project list.




Schedule of Budget Codes

Fund Expense Location Department Project

LIL] - I o - C0 - Wi{min
Location Codes Department Codes
10 Centennial Park 00 None
15 Farr 01 Board of Trustees
20 Carbon Valley 02 Executive Director
30 Lincoln Park 03 Associate Director
35 LINC - Library INnovation Center 51 Administration
40 Bookmobile 53 Public Information
45 Mead
46 DSS Library & Archive 54 Information Technology
50 District Support Services 55 Human Resources
70 Ault (Northern Plains) 56 Finance
71 Erie 57 Foundation
72 Kersey Library 38 Facility Services
73 Riverside Library & Cultural Center 59 Collection Development
74 Grover
75 Eaton
80 Fort Lupton
85 Hudson

90 Johnstown (Glenn A. Jones)
95 Platteville
00 High Plains Library District

Programs/Professional Contracts/Project Codes

Programs Professional Contracts

1010 Centennial Park 5010  Centennial Park

1015 Farr 5015  Farr

1020 Carbon Valley 5020  Carbon Valley

1030 Lincoln Park 5030  Lincoln Park

1071 Erie 5071  Erie

1072 Kersey 5072 Kersey

1073 Riverside Library & Cultural Center 5073  Riverside Library & Cultural Cur
8001  OQutreach - programming 8002  Outreach - professional contracts
Project

2010  Riverside Library & Cultural Cir.
2013  Lincoln Park

2014  Energy Performance project
3513  Interlibrary Loan system



8501  Spell Grant

Fund Code
01 General Fund /ior the High Plains Library District

Expenditure Codes

6205 Bank Services Charges / Fees paid for bank for funding.

6410 Books / Hardbound or soitbound materials
purchased, not via a subscription.

6980 Capital Improvements / Permanent repairs, upgrades,
remodel or improvements made to enhance the appearance of a
District building.

6450 Compact Discs / Recorded audio
materials including music, in compact disk (CD) form.

6010 Contingency { An amount budgeted for

expenditures that cannot be foreseen and planned for in the
budget process because of an

occurrence of an unusual or extraordinary event,

6137 Dental Insurance / Premium paid for dental insurance
coverage as elected by employees.

6369 Disposal Services / Pick up and removal of waste and
recyclahle materials.

6490 DVD/Blue Ray / Recorded visual material in DVD or Blue
Ray format.

6430 EBooks / Recorded audio matertals in cassette type form.

6362 Electric / Expenditures for electrical services provided by a
public utility company.

6496 Electronic Resources / Subscription on-line databases.
6221 E Readers [/ Includes Kindle and Ipads.

6952 Equipment/Furniture over $5000 / Equipment or furniture
items costing more than $5000.

6520 Equipment Rentals / Rental costs {or equipment rented by
the District including rentals of postage meter machines.

6148 Federal Unemployment Taxes / Amounts paid by the
District to provide unemployment
compensation benefits for employees,

6203 Fees — Other / Miscellaneous fees.

6224 Foundation Purchases / ltems purchased by the District
that the Foundation has approved for funding.

6380 Gasoline, Motor Qil, Lubricants / Expenses for fuel and
[ubricants to operate District vehicles.

6395 In-House Training / Costs of in-house classes and seminars
for staff needs.

6510 Insurance / Premiums pald for coverage of hookmobiles,
buildings, general liability and
Directors and Officers of the District.

6236 Janitorial Supplies / ltems used to clean and supply
facilities, such as floor finish, stain remover, loilet tissue, paper
fowels, hand scap, event, and vacuum bags.

6985 Lease Payment / Payments made to lease Library buildings.
Debt service transfer for
2001 COPS and 2006 COPS.

6145 Legal Shield / Employee paid Legal Services

6112 Life/Disability Insurance / Premiurn paid for short-term and
long-term, life and disability insurance coverage,

6138 Medical Insurance [/ Premium paid for medical costs for
insurance coverage as elected by employees.

6146 Medicare / Federal withholding coniribution as part of social
security program.

6340 Memberships / Payment of membership dues to
professional crganizations.

6396 Meetings / [ncidental expenses incurred when hosting or
attending meetings.

6220 Minor Equipment / items costing less than $5000, such as
VCRs, projectors, televisions, display units and typewriters.

6365 Natural Gas / Expenditures for natural gas services provided
by a public utility company.

6954 New Computers & Other Technology / Includes personal
computers, monitors, printers, and multi-functional equipmeant.

6986 Opening Day Collection / Expenses incurred in purchasing
Library materials for opening day inventory.

6249 Operating Supplies /items such as pens, paper, tape,
scissors, desk accessories, binders, paper clips, securily cases,
seasonal

decorations, break room supplies, and craft supplies. Items costing
$100 and less.

6495 Other Expense / Expenses not otherwise classified.
6397 Out-of-House Training & Conferences /

Expenses incurred for conference attendance and out-of-house
training.

6425 Periodicals / Printed materials purchased with a subscription
for magazines, newspapers, or professional journals.

6367 Phones / Phone service charges paid to a private utifity
company, including cell phones and networking line connections.

6310 Postage ! Mailing costs for sending letters and packages.

6320 Printing / Printing and copying of materials for internal and
external use.

6379 Professional Contracts / Payment for services rendered by
outside contractors {organizations or individuals).

6358 Programs / Expenditures o promote and conduct programs
such as Summer Reading, National Library Week and Children’s



Read Week. May include prizes, arts and crafts supplies,
decorations and refreshments,

6345 Public Relations / Advertising expenses, including
recruitment ads, newspaper publications and prometional items.

6382 Repair & Maintenance-Buildings / Materials and supplies
for the repalr and maintenance of District buiidings. Includes light
bulbs, paint, lumber, and hardware supplies.

6387 Repair, Maintenance, Replacement- Computer / Services,
supplies and maintenance agreements purchased to repair and
maintain computer equipment, such as monitors, central
processing units and printers. Also includes cost of replacement
computers.

6385 Repair & Maintenance-Office Equipment

Services, supplies and maintenance agreements purchased to
repair and maintain office equipment, such as copy machines,
microfiche reader/printers and fax machines.

6388 Repair & Maintenance-On-line Computer / Costs of
upkeep for the Dynix Horizon system.

6389 Repair & Maintenance-Other Equipment
Services, supplies and maintenance agreements purchased 1o
repair and mainiain any equipment that is not otherwise classified.

6384 Repair & Maintenance-Vehicles / Repair and maintenance
costs for District vehicles.

6144 Retirement/401A/457 Expense / Employee paid contribution
to the 401A mandatory and 457 elective retiremant pian.

6200 Retirement — Employer Contribution / Amount paid by
District to match employees’ contribution to the 401A retirement
plan.

6110 Salaries / Wages paid to employees who are employed by
the District.

6140 Social Security / Social Security taxes paid by the District
on the employees’ behalf.

6480 Software / Published software programs and site licenses.
6149 State Unemployment Taxes [ Amounts paid by the District
to provide unemployment compensation benefiis for employees.

6000 Tax Distribution to Member Libraries

6250 Tech Processing Supplies / ltems purchased for
processing library collection items.

6105 Third Party Health Insurance Payment /
Insurance payment for COBRA insurance
coverage.

6394 Travel & Mileage / Reimbursement for mileage parking,
meals, and incidental

expenses incurred by a District employee when conducting District
business. This does not include expenses incurred for conferences
and training.

6398 Treasurer Fee / Fees paid to the county for collection and
distribution of property taxes.

6393 Tuition Reimbursement / Reimbursement for classes taken
by those employees continuing
their education.

6139 Vision Insurance / Premium paid for vision insurance
coverage as elected by employees.

6364 Water and Sewer / Expenditures for services provided by
public or private companies.

6136 Worker's Compensation / Premium paid for worker's
compensation insurance policy to provide medical care to
employees in the case of a work related accident.



2026

Statistical /
Supplemental
Section



« f oS W

"1UaA3 Joyiny ainieudis ppe o1 Sujwweldold 01 Juawisnlpy - g

‘Buizeaw Jaqwianop 1e pieoq Ag pasosdde pund jJuawanoidw) Alajes Jo) Juswisnipy - 3
*31BWI3S2 Jad yanJ ) salM|ide4 01 uawisnlpy - g

"jJed |RIUURIUID pUE UI||IIN 40} ABojouyd3al Joj spuny JaAo Adied o1 uauwisnipy - )

‘paiuasald sem 128png pasodoud ay3 19)4e pasea|al Sem salieaql| 10 Spuny Juess 91e1s JO uolledo||e |eulj ay] - g

*JaQUISAON 23B| Ul SJ0Ssasse Alunod ayl Aq pases|ad 24am sUollen|eA [eulj ayl
‘s93ewWnsa pue uonewJojul Ateuiwiaid ayy uo paseq pasedaud sem 1a28png pasodold ay] - v

(00°Z69'7869)

00'6TL96L V9

00°£20°CT8'LS

(00°000°09)
(00 00002T)
(00°000°07)
(00"000°0S2)
00'620°E
(00°'168°82)
00°SZ0'Z9

(00°558°'0£59)

00°000°09
00°000°02T
00'000°0C
00°000°052

00°'T68'8C

00'828'LTE V9

00'620°E

00°SZ0°79

00'€L6'IVL LS

1UA3 JoyIny aJnieusis o) 1snlpy

pun4 jusawsanoidw] A1ajes Joj siagquiaw 03 suolinguasip 1snipy

21eW (1S Jad yonJ xog o1 uaunsnipy

yded [eluualua) pue uaij|iN 1oy ABojouydal 104 spuny dano Alied 03 1uawisnipy
anuaAaJ Jueld paisnipy

siaquiaw 031 suoiinquisip paisnlpy

anuanal xe1 Auadoud paisnipy

:136png pasodo.d [puiblQ 03 sauawsnipy

193png pasodoud |euiduQ

sainjpuadxy

(42pun) / 1900
anuanay

sainjpuadx3y

SI9NUINIY

970t
198png pasodoid
Piasig Aeaqr suield ysig



96e'39r' ¥
L1E 161y
254'580'%
$00'846'
£99'v24'8
£¥2'08s's
E¥E'r80's
192°004'2
L V592
622'89EC
898°'c91‘2
008°196°1
BYIG IV

SO0 $,105S835Y AIUNOD PIOAM (9005

%8B/ EE B6E0'E  0BE'FS8'9L aor'els'2zt  L/E'S/0'L 9SE'FPE0L B4S'6S 95618 18E°49€°L  +89'629'L  ¥5.'208'E epL'02L Se08
%4952 ¢E 2118 £8FpSR‘9 29L°/E1° 21 BSE'Z00L ZvBGLPOL  LOSBY soR'ele 990'PeE’L  62203F'L  POL'90S'E g52'201 202
o%FE8°62 LA BOL'YER'LL £OS'E9V'IE  £EL'85E 20C°896'YL  pPO'OF 154'1¢¢ 6P LGE'L  £6Z'64E8'L  BOSVEY'E A¥2'80L €202
%2582 LL1'E SEB'PED'SS 299°905'0L  £61'60%'L  628'9SF'0L  9EZ'0E 191061 69%'69E L 0SF'POLL  BEBLOL'E 918'vL  E202
%l L2 LL1'E Q4G'6EE05 OPE'EBL'0L  LEVEBLL  £69'886'Y 562'88 5£8'861 FOT'O6L'L  ZB9'280'L  OBO'0B0'T Lre'se 1202
%lbyLE LA LLL'6186Y BEB'ELOEL  OBF'OEO'L  vES'ZB2'Q $66°6E 299'661 OPE'ZLE'L  £50'886 gsv'ove'L 80/'99 0202
%0962 LAVE  epO'shEep 9B81'800'FL  099'c68 850'v6L6 gee'se 169'0561 189°8E6 LLG'6S6 §8L'68L°L 8159, 6102
%8928 6vZ'e  BOS'SPO'BE SLE'GEF'0L  920'FL8 08F'gee’e 290°ee vrL'e6l 6l0'zes Z02'68. PLO'09F'L 804°'2Ss 8102
%988'E2 6bg'c  SE0'LZE'SE £08'8EP'8  BEC'ELS B6L'BOEY 509'8t LO0'261 L1E'S6L L15'79. Z2e6'ELYL P66'Ge  LEOE
%529’ L2 6¥2'¢  FOB'9EB'GE y96'692'8  vES'ILL S84'80L° Y 1818t 182'2L1 ££0'089 TLYLLS 00F'26 L't 9/5'8¢ QL0E
%958°EE 6V2'C  0B86'09S°LE 661'G89'0L  lOv'OpL eLY'VIE' L Ovt'BE 9z2'891 peL'GES [rAaysiee] gsg'orL’L G96'6S  GloZ
%E66'EE 6¥2C  9BP'ESS'SE 221'0gy's LLO'0LL £61'¥PS'S G29'vL 69/'8E1 282'0ev 805°029 ¥82°516 S09'9F  ¥LOE
anjep 8leyd  8njeA sjgexel anep passassy Sen @ |I0  sanmosay jeinynsuby  Apedosg Auedoid ) Apadoiy pueq  ieap
enjoy  Xet yoauiq [enyoy passassy awIS |BINIEN [BLASNPU] EBIJ3WWCD |[Enuapisay  juesep  fas
0% lelol paewsy sjqexe)
B Sk anjep |eloL
PASSISSY

(sieljop Jo spuesnoy; uj)

sleap [e2Sid Ua] 1se]

Ausdoid sjqexe] 16 an[ep [BNIOY PIIBWINST PUR Passassy
10mista Aesqi suleld ybiy



SED) 1 ||Qemmmmm  DN|B/\ PISSISSY O|GEXE] |BI0 | e

GC0C ¥¢0T €¢0C¢ TTOT Tc¢0C 0¢0C 6T0¢ 8T0C LTOC 910¢C STOC t10C

AJ01SIH an|ep passassy

0S

000°000°SS

000°000°0TS

000°000°STS

000°000°02S

000°000°5ZS



1Byi0 |lvm  Ausdold |enuspissym  SeO R IO M

GC0Z ¥cOC £c0e ¢c0Z 1¢0C 0C0C 6lOC BIODC LIOC 8T0C SLOE ¥1OC

Alogdale) Aluadoud Aq anjep passassy

09
000°000°CS
000°0007S
000°000°9S
000°0008S
000°000°0TS
000000°CTS
000000 VTS
000°0009TS
000°000'8TS
000°000°02S
000°000CCS
000°000°%ZS



umoys jou sieaf 10} elqejlene 10N .
uonnguisiq XeJ sleinseely aLA ,

1ebpng jeuld |

2oIN0S
%966 298°'cS %966 298'cS 8805 G20e 202
%.'66 9£/'89 %/ 66 9£/°'89 ov6'89 202 £c0e
%8 86 £62'LS %886 £ee'LS 8/8'1S €202 2202
%666 666'ce %666 666°CE 2e0've geoe 1202
%566 £68'ch %S"66 £68'cr S60‘cY 1202 0202
%2 66 L29'YY %< 66 L29'%¥ PPO'SY 0202 6102
%866 0/8'ce %866 0/8'ce 6v6°'ce 6102 8102
%6 66 28e'/e %666 gse'/e 06€'/E 8102 102
%8 66 0/8'9¢ %8 66 0/8'92 0£6°'92 2102 9102
%666 £22'Se %666 £22'Ge Sl T AN 9102 GL0g
%86 28892 - %186 288'9¢ 0ge'le G102 ¥L0g
%6 66 8E0°)e - %6 66 8£0'Le £90'L2 7102 €102
Ano7 jJoJusolad junowy xep cSieap  Anejojusdiad junowy xej | 1B [eosld Jeaj IBaA
aje( 01 SUoI9}|0) jElOoL iuanbasqgng Ana oy 10} 109|090 AnaT

ul Jo 123 |eosi] aU) UIYIM Polod|io)  AAST Xe] [eloL
Su0I109]|09)

(spuesnoys ul passasdxs sjunowe)
SIeaA |Beasig usj ise
SUO0}199[}j0n pue sajae Xe| Aladoug
101181Q Aseuaqi suleld ybiH



10SS8sSY AUNOD PIM 1991n0g

orLzoL'zer'zL % uofEN|BA PoSSassyY |gexe ] ssoiD [Bjof
%E 108 099°129'51E'2$ %1625 008'226'0/06  §
%8L° | 0L  OLO'esH'esl sen) 2 10 Bulium
%08 | 6 0S¥'9Ze' ot uonesodion neureq jiig
%ee'e L 009062208 471 weaaspi 40d
%BG'C 9 00t'88£'9¢e (l80X) opeiojo? jo Auedwo) aa1nias 2lgnd
%LV 4 0/6'0v6'2EY ‘oup ABleus 3ea1) ezueuod
%002 ¢ 082'95¢'6€9 ‘ou| {YSN) seD 3 IO euedug
%181 0L  OPP'0Er'0LE 077 Buneiado Af uosig
%00'E 6  09.'909'cie D77 $80IN0S8Y Hedd Buoisal)
%S0T 8 00£'96.2°981 %SEC 8  065'c6L'20¥ 071 $BD R 10 UohoRAXT
%952 L 0zl'9sE'sed 2711 Buusyyes sabopy 1is)
%9.°2 9  0SV'666'CLY 177 uononpoid pue uonelojdxy Jeyemsieg
%p0'EC S 0.¥'168'02S "OU| S$90IN0S8Y SBHAID
%ZE ¥ 088'v29'0VL D77 S82IN0S9Y PEPISA
%P0 0E b oSy L26'erL'T %166 €  096'005'/69°L d71 8ioysuQ sen 3 10 eebop-LsH
%ELY g 0/2'890°2eY %Se 0l 2 0v.'695'9G2'L "ou| ABleuz Dad
%8162 4 096'628'GL1L'C %.6'El I 062'6GL'668'C *ou| AB1ouz 8|qoN
anjea yuey anje) passassy anjep juey anjep
POsSSasSsy aqexe] passassy passassy a|gexel
ajgexel algexey
[e1o] jo [e1o0] jo
afiniueoiad abejusotay
5102 202

t2oz ‘1€ 1aquadaq
siafedxe] jedioutid

Josia Areigr suseld Ybix



opeIo|on) alelsdn pue uoday [eisueuld eaisusysidwo) fenuuy AlUNOD Pl 180iN0g

%00 001 ¥86'L¥L %00 001 6G6'LL1 wewAoldwg AjunoD fejol
%¥e L8 GGe'6el %S55°88 28G5 /51 sieho|dwz 180
%99¢1 62.'81 %SV 1L LIE°0C sisfojdw3 fedisuld jeloL
Y%l¥ 0 013 004 yosl gL
%911 G Oc/t souBINSU} Wied aleis
%000 %EE0 ol 085 diop wneonad [BlUSpIOO0
%0070 %9 0 6 FAR SWIY
%850 6 £G8 %Fo0 8 St Aajgaln jo ANO
%SL0 g8 OLLY %90 zL 00ct au| seainleg ABieu3 uounglieH
%.60 9 Aadt %690 9 Leel OpeI0{0D WaYUON JO AlsIaAun
%%6°0 L o8] 41 %c0' | S £c8l Juswuanoy AlUnoD piam
%0E" L ¥ AR %lc't 14 86¢cc 9 10M181(] [OOYDS sueAZ/ABIEBID
%be L € 0861 %8¥ L € Le9¢ SEISOA
%L0°¢ [ 690 %80°¢ c (WA {DINON) uyeay Jeuueg
%90°E 3 £esy %182 L Z66¥ Auedwo josg Yms sgdr
wawAodwg yuey saahojdwig uswAojdwy  Huey saafojdug
Ajnon fAjunos
{ele] Jo €101 1o
aberiuasiad afigluaniad
G102 AV

veoz ‘LE Jequadag
Aunos piam - siehopdusg [edisulid
wsig Aeiq suteld ybiH



‘AIUNon pla jo Aepunog aui sejewixoldde eale so1n9s
sJoU1s1g 8Y) se uonejndod AlUNonD pia i eyl 01 aAeledwod e se umoys st uoleindod uoired QdH SYL “81oN
voday [enurui4 aasusyaidwon [enuuy AunoD plap
-uolgndod (11dH 10} OpEIOjO)) JO BlEIS 901G yoseasay Aleldl
-jeydesBowsp opelo|os) JO 81BlS Syl pue
OpeIojo) WISULION JO AlISISAILN BU} UM uoleladood ul opeIojo) elesdn [82inos

%0LY 2€5'29 0l'te 98G'L/€ oee'oee yecoe
%0E°€ 09885 ogLt L1L'gse GG80LE £elc
%00°€ £66'99 00'Le gS1'sve G95°00¢ (AN
%0L°S ¥50°2S 0L ¢l 810°0vE gco'eoe LeOe
%0¢'L 86105 tope] G68°LEE 19£'86¢ 0c0c
%00°€ 2LL'9p 0L'vl AN RAS £01°062 610¢
%0L'C 080'vv 0s¢l SEP V0L 106°04¢ 810¢
%0%'€ LOL'CY 0g'il L6E'V6S L0€'89¢ Z10c
%08°¢ 18L'2v 090l 9/8'v8¢2 889'65¢ 910¢
%08'¢ L¥0'LE 201 L8¥'vLC LG1°LG82 Si0e
%06°¢ 289°1¢€ Ge'g $8.'69¢ 80€‘15¢ ¥10¢
%0L'9 986'6¢ Ge'g 169292 686'G¥¢ 102

arey awoou] {suorl)jiq $) uoneindoed uonendod uoned leaj

wawholdwaun eudensaq Swody] euosiad Alnod piam  ousIg Areqi
jelol suteid YybiH

siea ) |e9sSld ua] ise’
S211S11B1S dlwouoo3 pue dydeibowaq
1011810 Ateiqgr suleid YbiH



GTO0T ‘6C HIdW3I1d3S HIHIYHOOWIA I1VIS
ALNNOD d13M dO4
1SVO3404 NOILVINdOd A4VNIWIT13dd



JOADRG9m $901Gr = P 0IGZw tZOlgT = 8T Jopun =

%0T “CCC9E ~

%Y1 “9CTCS

G20¢ ‘62 439N 1d3S HIHAVHOOWIA FLVIS
ALNNOID d1dM
dNOY9 39V A9 NOILY'1NdOd



PROJECTED WELD COUNTY
POPULATION CHANGE
STATE DEMOGRAPHER SEPTEMBER 29, 2025

500,000
450,000
400,000
350,000
| 65 & Over
300,000
W 45t064
RIS m25t044
200,000 m18to24
150,000 W Under 18
100,000
50,000

2025 2035



‘§102 22quenaq Ul Jo pled aiem sS40 1848 JGp [EUOIIPPE ON

9ve' PO L PP PSE'gIL 6BR'0L0'VLL PBO'ZRYELL CES L9 ¥ER'IE0'CLL ZLG'SBY'ECL  985'951°96 +08°948'86 6891'E81'G6 LOg'£91°201  PIE'EES'BIL
St'vee'oLL 688°0L0'11 pES'ZEG SLL £E5'LL9'BLL PER'LE0'0L) 248'SBH'E0L 965'051'08 $08'028'86 691L'E8L'SE 198°/8L°20L  PIE'EE8'BIL  SBL'OLEILS
006'989 §56'€82'2 SOZ'HEE"L 2e1's 619'688° 188'ZE'9 LI6'BEE'L {802'0eL'E) GEQ'EEY'E (269'¢86'9) {egp'seo'ol)  BLZ'206'0E
BOS'ESE'E9  $ COp'v/L't9 $ OSpUE6'08 % 429711219 $ 1EA'SESYS $ vie'seo'es ¢ 02v'EeR'DS $ 9/8'vB0'09 ¢ £pR'eBR’ES $ 612962y & 26Y'SGY'EL § O6¥'C9F'EY §
000'008'9 000°000°G £00'000'8 0C0'005'L 000'0C0'S 000°'952°L 000'089 968°L¥6'01 000 b9L'S 006°028'L1 PPE'90L'08 6.6'296'Y
SKS'ErL'YL 95H' PG PL 9E0'LLL PL 2L1'e68'SL 282'029'EL £HU'E5E'EL orR'LE0'EL £vl'seg'et PLP'ERS'EL PHA'BGP'EL FRVAIR- TN 2ra'eee'pl
vO8'60L'er £20'02L'}y L05'9G2'0% ¥EE'SLE'EE v91'606'98 1£1°010'8E PIS0GLLE SER'/0E'0E 6OE'GEL'SE SEG'RLE'YE LEE'850'LE 692'002'E
S65'BLY'E BEQ'S6E'S 616'1LE'2 SEP'BPE'Z £81'0eE'E Z9L'Z0E'e 89E'6/2' DOS'9SE'E oo0'0LL'E COO'0RS'E £r0'069'E 280'0LE'L
[7A: T £20'692'L 08 164" 91ves't 266'9LL"L 166'669'L 581'£89'1 005'999°L 000°089'L £00'089't 0SL'¥SS'L 892'98F'1
928'200°6 ZrE'BLE'e 2r0'oes's 919'2pL'8 £50'958°8 Z5E'04S'S L61'S8p'8 28FLOV'S 862'81£'8 8/9'6.£'8 eri'esL'e $E0'99L'S
LOGBELR £11'988'L EEL'999'L Bra'ery'L 990'022'L 865'5L0°L 0OZ's1LB' PIS'EIG'D 826'262'9 665'000'0 B9E'0L0'C alg'zpe’e
6ZL'E2Cle S 2068°0pL'02 $ B6L'OEL'0E $ 6BE'0S5'6L $ £90'0B6'BF S €20'8g¥'BE % vE2'L6R'ZL $ 6LL0JEY) § SB0'20L'9) $ B8G/'006'S) § L2L°BEEVL $ 6986BLLL %
pataaloig palsalaly [REIREII] pajoaloig pajsiolg pajosiorg pajosfolg palosiold pajosiold 18bpng paosiord ERY
SE02 ¥E02Z £E£02 2E02 LeoE oE0E 6202 8208 2208 9208 520 e0e
HLHE %1°BE %1'8E %1HE %l '8E %188 %\ '8¢ %1 '8E %LLE %6LLE %0'8E %82
2071 0L 2oL 201 201 o't 'L 0L
101 1071 1L 10"} 101 1oL 1oL 071
10's Hid) Lot [feg} (3 Wk 1L gl
10'¢ 10"} 1L 1t 1oL Lo'L Ty} 0
£0't £0't €071 £0'L £0'L £01 801 50'L
o'l £0'¢ €071 €061 £0°1 £0't 80t ¥O'L
BOP'OVO'Y0  $ LEO'BSK'ES & LPO'GIE'RD % 8/9'91219 $ 009'691'00 § SRO'BEL'6S S JEETIECRS § BOOYOEMG $ BIV'ELSOS § /20ELE/S § BEQIPR'OS § 60L'MBEBL §
85Z°E0P 2/9'v9r 628'L¥5 199'989 580094 ZrE'ZLE PLA'Z0L L COF'LPE'L 000'0K9'L £G9'$12E'E Lr8'SLE' L 82€'698'0
62801 12L'01 S19°0L 01501 ERETY £0E'0L 0Z'0L 0010l 000'0L c00'8 000’8 ¥L1'ES6
rig'ig 0108 y19'6L 9z8'8L S¥0'8L ele'Ll 805'GL 05L'ss o0G'eL £60'9EE LP6'62 LOE'LEL
959152 £LS°PIE SIZ'E6E 026'16F 00r'pL9 000892 000'096 000'002°L 000°005°L 000'058°2 000°002"L LEg'22L'e
£55'65 286'85 $RE'SS 908'2% £E2'L6 299'95 904'95 055'65 0C0'sS 000'sZ 0oG'se 225°L¥
LGL°LEB' YD SOE'E66'29 2LR'eL21 G Z10'825'09 915°G0F'65 £58'652'8S £86'BZ1'2G 892'£20'95 8LY'6E6'YS #/€'066'vS 860'628'6S 186'86¢'2L
S82'p2a't £02'809': 082'265°) £15°925°1 906°095°L FELEETE 051'08¢"t O0'S1S'L G00'00S't 000'089'L 000'CPt's SIL'BL5'2
¥ 156 £86'2E6 £R'VLE 854°968 PLL'6.8 GER'1o8 SE0'GHR S9r'aze 12z'z18 6£1°v08 gL0'ceg 2r1'99g
6L2'199'19 % 9/1'795'09 $ 6E9'092'65 § PrLPOL'BS § GEP'SUEOS § OOVBYE'SS  § BEE'ESIPS § 200696 § £G2229'@S S SAL00L'RY § 920'GSEES § 9UDELLBY §
palosiold pa1oaloig paoaloly pajoaleid paalolg papaloig pajoalolg palalolg palosloig 1a8png 18bpng [emoy
GE02 $EOZ SE0Z 2e02 H CE0Z 6202 8202 £20e 9208 5202 $202
20t oL 20t 2071 20°1 o't 2oL 14 W't 86°0 210 PEL

(1" H 10§ 950Ul AAD| (I ON
suadunssy

Buipud ooueizgs pung
BuiuuiBaq soueleg pung

sainpuadzy
JSAG SOMNEAADY JO S580X3
SIHNLANILXI Wl0L
{(ino ssaysues) siosioud jepden
{1nc s1ajsuRN) 501BS 190
Aepno jenden

s3I JaquIspy - iSiq XB L

sainypuadx3 Hupeiado
suofreladossanyioeg
sjeuew A2igh
SPOIAIOS BANBAISILRLIDY
syeuag

saueResg

SALBES |¢ 9, Sjijouag
Aenno |eydes
SOURIO Jaguiapy - Isig Xe ]
suenesado/sague
sjpuelew Aeign)
SAOAIDS DANSISLILLEY
syjauag
seuRES

sainypuadxs

INNIATH TYLOL

ANNIATH HIHLO VLOL
SNOAUBHBISIN

PRy Uf - SUOUNGUICD
SRy

sluawisayl o sbuiieg
<88} ¢ ‘seuld

(sBasn Jaidon) saowues 1o sebreyn

ANNAATY HIHLO

SEXVL WLIOL
soxe] diusisum oyseds
o0y Japinog - sexel Auadoud
{1) ‘0 plom - ssxey Auadoid
S3IKYL
sanuansy

slueusam uo sbuieg

(slawsasul 33a0X8) SNUBAII JBUIO IV

safe|uaniad xey Auadoiy
SArHAAY

pun. [elausgy

5£0z Ybnou) vopoalosd ainjpuadxe pue enuaasy

tomsig Aresqry suteld ybiy



samaduy - nmsapy ommEy
NI T3 LNAOD OAVIO 100

1O

S313UN02 G Sulujeway

“aNUAA3J 150] JIaY] JO %00T J0J 2|OYM pew 3q [|IM %0T J2pun Jo Yyimois uoilen|eA passasse ue ('q PUe 000‘00€E 43pun (e ym sai3unod ul sjuawulanog [eao ('€

Hwwing pue [andiN Ues “jJed ‘@S0JIUOA ‘3. ‘uosiuung ‘puels ‘uaq|3 ‘a18e3 ‘@ayey) :sallunod QT
‘anuaAal

150| JI13Y3 JO %06 10} 2|0YM BpeW 3q |[IM %QT JIA0 JO YIMoJS uolen|ea passasse ue ('q pue ajdoad 000‘00€ Japun (" Yiim sa11unod ul sjuawulanog |exo ('

"3aNuUaAaJ 150| JIaY1 JO %00T

10} 3|OYM 2PEW 3] [|IM %OT UBY} SS3| JO UOIIBN|BA PASSASSE UB UM 350U | "3NUIAJ 15O J13Y1 4O %06 104 3|OYM 3pew aq ||IM %0T Ueyl 310W JO UONEN|EA PIssSasse
Ue YM 3soy "||uxoeq aSejuadiad JaySiy B SAI9D3I [|IM S213UNOD 2S3YY UIYHM SarijedIdIunw g S1ILISIP 9IAIBS 3|y ‘SIILISIP Ja1em 1@ uoneliues ‘Aleiq) ‘adid,

P2 pUE Jawiie] ‘uosiaar ‘osed |3 ‘sej8noq ‘1aauaq ‘Japjnog ‘soyedely ‘Sswepy :Sa13UN0J 6

"anuanal 150| 11341 JO %G9 10} 3joym apeuw aq |[im ajdoad ppO‘00E 420 YUMm sa13uncd ul sjuawuianos [exoq (‘T

(zoz pup zzoz 4034 xp1 Al1adoad 1of |11Ho0q ON S! 213y 1) *(S1311 €) £20T 183 XEL Ayiadoud 10} |1p)oeg

(uoljwi 00LS 40
sieaA xe1 Auadoud $z0z 8 £20¢C
31 J2A0 UOIIINPAI BNUBABI (anjen |enoy
|B30} B 11y O3 |9A3) E € 135) 40 000°STS 5414 3dwiax3)
%ST L agl %S9L°9 %569 Auadoud jenuapisal Jayio ||y
(anjea |enoy
J0 000°STS 1541} 3dwiax3) (sjuawpede
%ST'L %89 %S9.°9 %089 *9°1) Buisnoy Ajiwej-nn|A | [eRUSPIS3Y
%S'L8 %S5°L8 %S°L8 %S°L8 seo R |I0
(anjep |enjoy Jo
000°0€S 1541} 1dwiaxa Ajuo
|pI243WWo panoldul] 104)
%6¢ %6¢ %6°LT %6¢C Alysnpu| ‘Juedep ‘|eJawiwo)
%6 %¥'9T %9 %9 Apiadoud |eamynoudy
%6¢ %' 9T %¥"9T %¥'9C uonanpold Adiau3 ajgemauay
(anjep jenay
40 000°0€S 35414 1dwax3) sanuadoud SuiSpo|, | |enuapisal
%6¢ %6¢ %6°LT %6T —5g'3 g pue sjajow ‘s|ajoH -UON
Jayeasayl g (9zoz 8€Z-7Z4s 49pun paieal) 8€7-7cds 1apun paieal) | €6Z-1¢dS 19pun pajeas)
ui ajqeAed) szoz (szoz u1 ajqeAed) (vzoz w1 ajqeAed) €zoz (€zoz w1 ajqehed) zzoz
1eaA xe1 Auadoud 104 yz0z 1eaA xey Ajadoud 104 Jeal xey Anadoad 104 sieaA xej Aypadouad o4
— S3]BY JUBLISSASSY — S391BY JUDWISSISSY — S91BY JUDWISSASSY — S31BY JUBWISSASSY Anadoud yo adAL

Zzoz ‘Lz dunf
8E7-z24ds 01 1uensind saduey) ajey Juawssassy xe| Aladouid




uonepyul
0} PAXapul ‘pOO‘00LS 01 dn anpea [emoe

J0 9401 “uonduaxd pesisawoy [OOYIS-UON e
%89 = UVY ‘%S¢ 03 [enba 10

uBl] $S9[ ST 2ZULYD ONJEA [ENJOB OPIMABISJ] o
%L'9 = AV d ‘%S uey

uonduiaxs peslsomioy owes e

9429 = YV ‘%46 0} [enba 10
uBy} SS9 SI 25UBYD ONJRA [BIIOE SPIMIRIS J] e

%L’ = UV ‘%S uBy

uone[yul
01 PaXSpUI ‘QOO‘00LS 03 dn onjea [emoe
J0 9401 ‘vopdwaxa peajSAWoY [OOYIS-UON e

alow ST aFUed SNJeA [BNIOR 2PIMBIRIS ][ 210U ST 23URYD ONJBA [BIJOR ODIMARIS J] e %G5G0 e 9707 ALd
%ST'9 = AV ‘%S 0} [enba 10
9070 = UV ‘%< 01 jenba 1o Ry} SS9 ST 9ZUBYO ON[BA [ENJOR OPTMIBIS I »
ueL; SS9 St 9FUBYD SNJBA [BTJOR IPIMIRIS JT e 2%C1°9=dvd
%S1'9 =AVd %S uey ‘%S uey
2I0WI ST 23UBYD SN[BA [BN]OR SPIMDIBIS J] e DIOW S1 @FUBYD ON{BA [BINOE SPIMIIBIS J] o Up'0 =9V
I2]JE2IoT]) pue Jeak s1y) pajdnos-op ale S[00YdS Furpdnoo-op sureg 1a)yearay pardnoo-ap a1 S{00L0S §70T ALd
onjeA Jenjoe woly uondwexs Q0SS * anjea jenjoe woy uondwaxs 000°GsE
%lL9 e owEes %L'9 e POt Ald

passed se — [Q01-9F79H

T00T-gp7HH Ul saduey)

£ET-pTdS

AV ) S3jey] JUSWISSasSY [eNUapisay |

$Z0Z ‘€ 42quiaidag
[psunop) P37 forD) FAS ‘[omsie) Uiy

1001-GFZHH 03 £EZ-HTAS SIUGWUIIACD [£307] [00YI§-UON :uosLredwo)



%ST Jumeg %ST LT0T ALd
[EIUSPISAINON ISYI0 ISOW I0] %407 [ETIUSPISAIIOY ISY]0 ISOW JOJ 2497
Se pue [elaIewuwIos paaoIdul 107 9467 Se pue [eIsIaWIoD Pascidun X0f 9457 e oCT 9707 ALd
%Lt suIeg %LT ST0T ALd
anjea [emor woyg uopdwaxa 00‘0cs $707 ALJd w sanxadoad an[ea jemgoe wog uondwsxa 0000
(sonxodord SwiSpor Supnyour) %46°L2 Jur3pol 03 uoyOTIPaI SPUSXa OS[B 1N ‘FUES %UO'LT » ¥20C AlLd

passed se — 100 1-9y7dH

T001-g¥ g W s3sueq)

€ET-FCdS

MOfoq BY1 U] PIPRIIUL 10U 340 SO puw J10

(V) S9)e Y JUSLISSISS Y [ENUIPISIY-UON  'Z



+$Z0T °C 12QUA0N Jaye

I0 U0 S1910A £q PaAoIdde S[IIU MOU WO SNUIAIY
SI2)SESIp paIe[oap 10] papuadxa anusAsy

xe) diysiaum() o110adg 01 9[qRINGLINE SNUIATY
synomAed [BI]oRIIU0D 110 10 puOg

S8 pur [10 WOy SNUSASY

Ayradoxd 1dmaxa Ajsnoiasid wog snuossy
STUDAZL POPUNTAI 10 PARQY

Auadold paprwio AJsnorasig

(1001-9pZdH Ul onedyIIR[d

Suipnjou) uonendxa JI], € WOI SNUIATY
TOISO[ORI/UOIBXIUUY

uoyestyisse[e xey Apadord 107 mel ut saduey)
WOTIONIISHOD MIN

BIUoAST WO SUCISTIOXY

dways are

SIDISESIP POIE[OSp 10] pepuadxo onuaAsl Jeyy sppe
‘(suoISn{oxa JO 11| Ul 10u) uoyoas ajeredss e U]
"Popn[oX2 ST ¥eT, diysioumo

o1103dg 0) 9{qRINGLINE SNUSADI JB1f) SPPY

‘0¢ PPILJO [t 2PV

PUR [ 9PLL JO ST 9[OIIY JO § Mred 0} sarjdde os[e
vonendxd J1] ® WO SNUIASI JEy] UOBBIJLIE[D)
(109530 sox®1 1001-GFTIH JU) $T0T °S 1PqUDAON
Jape 10 U0 siejoa £q pasordde samseaut j0[[eq
[€20] 29 0) PSPUSWIE SI S[[IH MIU WOL] SNUSAIY

“10] Jq SUIES — oNUDAJY WOL SUOTSHOXH]

UORRHIR[O01]
S, JOUIDACE) UOdn) 1039 SayE] ££7-+2dS

1211e s1010A Aq paaoidde s{jiur Mou WO SNUOATY

syuawiAed [RNORIIUOD 1910 JO PUOY .

sed pue [10 WOy JNUIAY e

Aadoxd ydwaxa Apsnorasrd Woy HNUSASY e

SNUASI PIPUIYI IO PAJEqY =

Aradord papiwo ASnotasry e

nopendxa I [ © WOILJ SNUSAY e

UOISO[OUL/UOHEXSUUY »

uonesyrssepo xey Apadoxd 07 mef ur saduey) e

UONONISTHOD MAN

“INUSASI WOL] SUOISA[O%A

(onuaasr xey Se o[0AD JUSTHSSISSE )52] AU

I PAIOST[OD JOU SBAM JRH] 04,670 SYI Iapun Sem jer)
junowe Aue SI Yougm)  JUnowe IsA0 ALED,, Auy
snjd “ONUSAST ISOUT 5] P3IS3[[00 JUSUIIIADS

(anuoaax Xe) Se 9]0AD JUSUISSISSE JSB] Y}

UL Pa1O9fI00 JOU SEM JB] 945" SU} IopUN SBM JEY)
junowe Aue S1 OTYM)  JUNCUIR I3A0 ALIed, AUV
snpd ‘onusAal JSOW 21 PSIFS[[0D JUSWUIDADE

200 2U3 YITY/M 10] O[9AD JUSUISSASSE SNOTASI] B
U 294 Xe} AjIadold IASYSIUM WOy paure)al pue
paroaqon  enuaaal xey A1adoxd parjenb,, oy,

oy sty xe], Agadord om) woxy J3moIny

56T o1 yoIym I0] 9]9AD JISUISSaSSe stoiaald g
T 1654 %] A10001d IOADUDI A WOIf PAUIE)2] PUE
Pa199]]09 , anuaaal xe) Aaedoxd payifenb,, oy L,

WO $I YIMOID

Burpunoduton ‘Ajenuue
10s¢°¢ Aq sa8ueyo yu] {(JIoRq) JUSIOSINGIUIT
aye1s snyd onuaaaI xe) 70T A Ld = 182k aseq

S[0AD JUDTHSSOSSE JBOA-7 IDA0 94601

0]0AD JUSLUSSISSE TBIA-Z I9A0 %G 0

[enure 94¢°¢

$207 (ALd) 1ax xe], Apadold m spe)g

oweg

6707 (ALJ) Tea xey, Autadolg ur spels

passed se - [Q0T-AF7aH

1001-9y7dH Ul saduey)

£ET-PTdS

SJUAUITLIOA0S [EO0] “3]liA SWO-U0U ‘[o0yJs-uou 03 salfdde — jiary xey Aprddoig

t




2026
Glossary



GLOSSARY
Abhatement ~ A complete or partial cancellation of a levy imposed hy a government.

Accrual Basis — A basis of accounting in which transactions are recognized at the time they are incurred,
as opposed to when cash is received or spent.

Ad Valorem — Commonly referred to as property taxes, are levied on both real and personal property
according to the property’s valuation and the mill levy {tax} rate.

Annual Comprehensive Financial Report — An annual financial report of the government’s fiscal
condition, which includes a minimum of three parts: 1) Introductory section providing background on
the government, 2} Financial section including the combined general purpose financial statements and
notes, and 3) Statistical section comprising 15 or more tables of non-audited information composed of
10-year trend data on revenues, expenditures and tax collections.

Appropriation — A legal authorization to incur obligations and to make expenditures for specific
purposes.

Assessed Valuation — The valuation set upon real estate and certain personal property by the County
Assessor as a basis for levying property taxes.

Asset — Resources owned or held by a government which have monetary value.

Audit — A systematic collection of the sufficient, competent evidential matter needed to attest to the
fairness of management’s assertions in the financial statements or to evaluate whether management
has efficiently and effectively carried out its responsibilities. The auditor obtains this evidential matter
through inspection, observation, inquiries and confirmations with third parties.

Available (Undesignated) Fund Balance - This refers to the funds remaining from the prior year which
are available for appropriation and expenditure in the current year.

Balance Sheet - The financial statement disclosing the assets, liabilities and equity of an entity at a
specified date in conformity with GAAP (Generally Accepted Accounting Principles).

Balanced Budget — A budget where budgeted expenditures do not exceed budgeted revenues plus
beginning fund balance.

Basis of Accounting — A term used to refer to when revenues, expenditures, expenses, and transfers —
and the related assets and liabilities — are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial
statements.

Bond — A long term 10U or promise to pay. It is a promise to repay a specified amount of money (the
face amounts of the bond) on a particular date (the maturity date). Bonds are primarily used to finance
capital projects.

Budget — A plan of financial activity for a specific period of time (fiscal year or biennium) indicating all
planned revenues and expenses for the budget period.

Budget Message — A general discussion of the proposed budget as presented in writing by the budget-
making authority to the governing body. The budget message should contain an explanation of the



principal budget items, an outline of the government’s experience during the past period and its
financial status at the time of the message and recommendations regarding the financial policy for the
coming period.

Budgetary Basis — This refers to the basis of accounting used to estimate financing sources and uses in
the budget. This generally takes one of three forms: GAAP, cash, or modified accrual.

Budget Calendar — The schedule of key dates which a government follows in the preparation and
adoption of the budget.

Budgetary Control — The control or management of a government in accordance with the approved
budget for the purpose of keeping expenditures within the limitations of available appropriations and
resources.

Capital Assets — Assets of significant value and having a useful life of several years. Capital assets are
also called fixed assets.

Capital Budget — The appropriation of bonds or operating revenue for improvements {o facilities, and
other infrastructure.

Capital Improvements — Expenditures related to the acquisition, expansion or rehabilitation of an
element of government’s physical plant; sometimes referred to as infrastructure.

Capital Improvement Program (CIP) — A plan for capital outlay to be incurred each year over a fixed
number of years to meet capital needs arising from the government’s long-term needs.

Capital Outlay — Fixed assets which have a value of $5,000 or more and have a useful economic lifetime
of more than one year; or assets of any value if the nature of the item is such that it must be controlled
for custody purposes as a fixed asset.

Capital Project — Construction, acquisition, or renovation activities which add value to a government’s
physical assets or significantly increase their useful iife. Also called capital improvements.

Capital Reserve —~ An account used to segregate a portion of the government’s equity to be used for
future capital program expenditures.

Cash Basis — A basis of accounting in which transactions are recognized only when cash is increased or
decreased.

CGFOA - Colorado Government Finance Officers Associations. Colorado chapter of the Government
Finance Officers Association (see GFOA).

CGFO — Certified Government Finance Officer. Certification program offered and administered through
the CGFOA.

Compensated Absences — Absences, such as vacation, illness, and holidays, for which it is expected
employees will be paid. The term does not encompass severance or termination pay, post-retirement
benefits, deferred compensation, or other long-term fringe benefits, such as group insurance and long-
term disability pay.



Contingency — A budgetary reserve set aside for emergencies or unforeseen expenditures not otherwise
budgeted.

Debt Service — The cost of paying principal and interest on borrowed money according to a
predetermined payment schedule.

Deficit ~ The excess of an entity’s liabilities over its assets or the excess of expenditures or expenses
over revenues during a single accounting period.

Department — The hasic organizational unit of government which is functionally unigue in its delivery of
services.

Depreciation — An accounting method of allocating the cost of a tangible asset over its estimated useful
tife to account for declines in value over time.

Dishursement — The expenditure of monies from an account.

Eisenhower Matrix — A productivity, prioritization, and time-management framework designed to help
prioritize tasks or agenda items by first categorizing them by urgency and importance.

Employee (or Fringe) Benefits — Contributions made by a government to meet commitments or
obligations for employee fringe benefits. Included are the government’s share of costs for Social Security
and the various pension, medical, and life insurance plans.

Expenditure — The payment of cash on the transfer of property or services for the purpose of acquiring
an asset, service or settling a loss.

Expense — Charges incurred (whether paid immediately or unpaid) for operations, maintenance, interest
or other charges.

Fiscal Policy —~ A government’s policies with respect to revenues, spending, and debt management as
these relate to government services, programs, and capital investment. Fiscal policy provides an agreed
upon set of principles for the planning and programming of government budgets and their funding.

Fiscal Year — A twelve-month period designated as the operating year for accounting and budgeting
purposes in an organization.

Fixed Assets — Assets of long-term character that are intended to continue to be held or used, such as
tand, building machinery, furniture, and other equipment.

Full Faith and Credit — A pledge of government’s taxing power to repay debt obligations

Full-time Equivalent Position (FTE) — A position converted 1o the decimal equivalent of a fulltime
position based on 2080 hours per year. For example, a part-time typist working for 20 hours per week
would be the equivalent to .5 of a full-time position.

Fund — A fiscal entity with revenues and expenses which are segregated for the purpose of carrying out
a specific purpose or activity.

Fund Balance — The excess of the assets of a fund over its liabilities, reserves, and carryover.



GAAP - Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. Uniform minimum standards for financial accounting
and recording, encompassing the conventions, rules and procedures that define accepted accounting
principles.

GASB — Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The authoritative accounting and financial reporting
standard-setting body for government entities.

General Fund — the primary fund used by a government entity that constitutes the core operational and
administrative tasks of the governmental entity.

GFOA -~ Government Finance Officers Assaciation. A national group whose membership includes
government finance officers through the USA and Canada. Formed to network ideas and strategies for
best governmental accounting strategies. Provides input and limited funding to the GASB.

Goal —- A statement of broad direction, purpose or intent based on the needs of the community. A goalis
general and timeless.

Governmental Funds — used to account for activities primarily supported by taxes, grants, and similar
revenue sources. There are five types : General Fund, special revenue funds, capital project funds, debt
service funds, and permanent funds.

Grants — A contribution by a government or other organization to support a particular function. Grants
may be classified as either operational or capital, depending upon the grantee.

Holds / holds pick up — Patron request for a library collection item from one library location to be
delivered to another library location for them to check out or patron request to be put on a waiting list
to be able to check out an item when it becomaes available.

HPLD finance committee — the HPLD finance committee consists of the Secretary/Treasurer of the BOT,
one other trustee, the Executive Director, and Finance Manager.

LCl / Library Confidence Indicator — based on the concept of the consumer confidence indicator. An at-
the-moment assessment of how a person feels about the library district based on their perception of the
library district’s value to them as an individual, their family, and their community, whether the library
district will be a value in the future, and whether the tax dollars spent are well used.

Levy — To impose taxes for the support of government activities.
Long-term Debt — Debt with a maturity of more than one year after the date of issuance.

Major Fund - funds whose revenues, expenditures/expenses, assets, or liabilities (excluding
extraordinary items) are at least 10 percent of corresponding totals for all governmental or enterprise
funds and at least 5 percent of the aggregate amount for all governmental and enterprise funds

Mill — The property tax rate which is based on the valuation of property. A tax rate of one mill produces
one dollar of taxes on each $1,000 assessed property valuation.

Modified Accrual Basis — The accrual basis of accounting adapted to the governmentai fundtype
measurement focus. Under it, revenues and other financial resource increments are recognized with
they become susceptible to accrual, this is when they become both “measurable” and available to
finance expenditures of the current period.” “Available” means collectible in the current period or soon



enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recognized when
the fund liability is incurred except for (1) inventories of materials and supplies that may be considered
expenditures either when purchased or when used, and (2) prepaid insurance and similar items that
may be considered expenditures either when paid for or when consumed. All governmental funds,
expendable trust funds and agency funds are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of
accounting.

Objective — Something to be accomplished in specific, well-defined, and measurable terms and that is
achievable within a specific time frame.

Obligations — Amounts which a government may be legally required to meet out of its resources.
Operating Revenue — Revenue from any regular source.

Performance Measure — Data collected to determine how effective or efficient a program is In achieving
its objectives.

Program - A group of related activities performed by one or more organizational units for the purpose
of accomplishing a function for which the government is responsible.

Prospector — A consortium of public and academic libraries which share their materials through an
online catalog ordering system.

Purpose — A broad statement of the goals, in terms of meeting public service needs, that a department
is organized to meet.

Reserve — An account used either to set aside budgeted revenues that are not required for expenditure
in the current budget year or to earmark revenues for a specific future purpose.

Reserved Fund Balance — Those portions of fund balance that are not appropriable for expenditure or
that are legally segregated for a specific future use.

Revenue — Sources of income financing the operations of government.

Skills pipeline — skills based programming and workforce development programming designed to
encourage and enhance learning and personal growth.

Supplemental Appropriation — An additional appropriation made by the governing body after the
budget year or biennium has started.

Tax Levy — The resultant product when the tax rate per one hundred dollars is multiplied by the tax
base.

Taxes — Compulsory charges levied by a government for the purpose of financing services performed for
the common benefit of the people. This term does not include specific charges made against particular
persons or property for current or permanent benefit, such as special assessments.

Transfers InfOut — Amounts transferred from one fund to another to assist in financing the services
from the recipient fund.



Unreserved Fund Balance — The portion of a fund’s balance that is not restricted for a specific purpose
and is available for general appropriation.

Woest Texas Intermediate (WTI) — 2 benchmark used by oil markets, representing oil produced in the
United States of America.

ACRONYMS

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act

ALA American Library Association

ALTA American Library Trustee Association

BOT Board of Trustees

CAFR Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

CAL Colorado Association of Libraries

CGFOA Colorado Government, Finance Officers Association
CLiC Colorado Library Consortium

COPs Certificates of Participation

CRM Community Relations and Marketing Department
CRS Colorado Revised Statutes

DLG Division of Local Government

DSS District Support Services

ESL English as a Second Language

FDIC Federal Depasit Insurance Corporation

GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

GFOA Government Finance Officers Association

HPLD High Plains Library District

HPLDF&F High Plains Library District Friends & Foundation
HR Human Resources

ILL interlibrary Loan

ILS Integrated Library System

IRS internal Revenue Service

IT Information Technology

1Tl Information Technology and Innovation Department



LCI Library Confidence Indicator

LINC Library Innovation Center

MOVE Mobile, Outreach, Virtual, Experiences Department
MPLA Mountain Plains Library Association

MSEC Mountain States Employers Council

OBPE Qutcomes Based Planning and Evaluation
QcCLC On-Line Computer Library Center

PDPA Public Deposit Protection Act

PLA Public Library Association

PPE Personal Protection Equipment

RDA Resource Description and Access Standards
RFID Radio Frequency ldentifier

RFP Request for Proposal

RTU Roof Top Unit ~ part of HVAC system

SAS Signature Author Series

SDA Special District Association

SPP Strategic Planning Process

SRA Summer Reading Adventure

STEM Science, Technology, Engineering, and Math
TABOR Colorado Taxpayers Bill of Rights

WTI West Texas Intermediate



HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION

Meeting Date: December 8, 2025

Type of Item: Action

Subject: Revised Amendments to 457 Deferred Compensation Plan
Presented by: Matt Hortt, Executive Director

Recommendation: Approve amendments

The High Plains Library District offers a Deferred Compensation 457(b) plan to employees which allows
them to save money pre-tax for retirement.

The plan is being amended for the following reasons:

1. Insection 4.5(d), adjusting the effective date and the earnings threshold for catch-up
contributions due to modifications in the law.

The previous plan amendment had an effective date of January 1, 2027, that dis-allowed
employees earning $145,000 or more per year from being eligible to take advantage of the 50
and over catch-up contributions or the 60-63 catch-up contributions.

The adjusted effective date and earnings threshold for this amendment are January 1, 2026, and
$150,000 respectively.

2. Insection 3.6, removing the quarterly restriction on when an employee can modify their
contribution amount.

High Plains Library District Page 1of1




AMENDMENT
TO THE
HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT
DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

WHEREAS, High Plains Library District (the “Employer”), a governmental entity
created as part of Weld County, State of Colorado, maintains the High Plains Library District
Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan");

WHEREAS, Section 6.8 of the Plan provides that the Board of Trustees of the
Employer has the authority to amend the Plan;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to amend the Plan.
NOW THEREFORE, the Board of Trustees hereby adopts the following Amendment:
L Effective January 1, 2026, Article 111 of the Plan is amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE IIT - ELIGIBILITY AND ENROLLMENT

3.1 Eligibility. Each Eligible Employee, shall be eligible to participate in the Plan and defer
Compensation pursuant to the terms of the Plan as of the Entry Date.

3.2 Election Required for Participation. An Eligible Employee may elect to become a Participant
by executing an election to defer a portion of his or her Compensation (and have that amount
contributed as an Annual Deferral on his or her behalf) and filing it with the Plan Administrator.
This participation election shall be made on the deferral agreement provided by the Plan
Administrator under which the Eligible Employee agrees to be bound by all the terms and conditions
of the Plan. The participation election also shall include designation of designation of Annual
Deferrals as pre-tax contributions or Roth contributions, designation of investment funds, a
designation of Beneficiary. Any such election shall remain in effect until a new election is filed.

33 Commencement of Participation. An Eligible Employee shall become a Participant as soon
as administratively practicable following the date the Eligible Employee files a participation election
pursuant to Section 3.2 and as of the Participant’s Entry Date. Such election shall become effective
no earlier than the calendar month following the month in which the election is made. A new
Eligible Employee may defer compensation payable in the calendar month during which the
Participant first becomes an Eligible Employee if an agreement providing for the deferral is entered
into on or before the first day on which the Participant performs services for the Employer.

3.4  Information Provided by the Participant. Each Eligible Employee enrolling in the Plan
should provide to the Plan Administrator at the time of initial enrollment, and later if there are any
changes, any information necessary or advisable for the Plan Administrator to administer the plan,
including, without limitation, whether the Eligible Employee is a participant in any other eligible
plan under Code Section 457(b).

195973359v3



3.5 Contributions Made Promptly. Annual Deferrals by the Participant under the Plan shall be
transferred to the Trust Fund within a period that is not longer than is reasonable for the proper
administration of the Participant's Account Balance. For this purpose, Annual Deferrals shall be
treated as contributed within a period that is not longer than is reasonable for the proper
administration if the contribution is made to the Trust Fund within 15 business days following the
end of the month in which the amount would otherwise have been paid to the Participant.

3.6  Amendment of Annual Deferrals Election. Subject to other provisions of the Plan, a
Participant may at any time revise his or her participation election, including a change of the amount
of his or her Annual Deferrals, designation of Annual Deferrals as pre-tax contributions or Roth
contributions, his or her investment direction and his or her designated Beneficiary. Unless the
election specifies a later effective date, a change in the amount and type of the Annual Deferrals
shall take effect for subsequent pay periods by filing a new Deferral Agreement with the Plan
Administrator at least ten (10) days before the end of such period. A Participant may cease deferrals
by filing a revocation of his Deferral Agreement. Such revocation will be effective for a subsequent
pay period by filing with the Plan Administrator at least ten (10) days before the end of such period.
A Participant who has revoked his Deferral Agreement may again participate effective for a
subsequent pay period by filing a Deferral Agreement with the Plan Administrator at least ten (10)
days before the end of such period. A change in the investment direction shall take effect as of the
date provided by the Plan Administrator on a uniform basis for all Employees. A change in the
Beneficiary designation shall take effect when the election is accepted by the Plan Administrator.

3.7 Leave of Absence. Unless an election is otherwise revised, if a Participant is absent from
work by leave of absence, Annual Deferrals under the Plan shall continue to the extent that
Compensation continues.

3.8  Disability. A disabled Participant may elect Annual Deferrals during any portion of the
period of his or her disability to the extent that he or she has actual Compensation (not imputed
Compensation and not disability benefits) from which to make contributions to the Plan and has not
had a Severance from Employment.

3.9  Termination of Participation and Election. A Participant’s election shall terminate
immediately upon Severance from Employment, or if earlier, a transfer to a position that disqualifies
the Employee from participating in the Plan. Participation will cease upon the complete distribution
of a Participant’s Account after Severance from Employment with the Employer.

2. Effective January 1, 2026, Article IV of the Plan is amended to read as follows:

ARTICLE 1V - DEFERRAL ARRANGEMENT
4.1 Deferral.
(a) By execution of a Deferral Agreement, the Participant authorizes the Plan
Administrator to make payroll deductions from his paychecks in the amount

specified by such Participant in his Deferral Agreement. This participation election
shall be made on the Deferral Agreement provided by the Plan Administrator under

195973359v3



which the Eligible Employee agrees to be bound by all the terms and conditions of
the Plan.

(b) A Participant may designate a portion of or all of his or her Annual Deferrals as
either a pre-tax contribution or as a Roth contribution. Unless otherwise specified in
this Plan, Roth contributions will be treated in the same manner as pre-tax
contributions.

4.2 Minimum Deferral Limitation. No Participant may elect to defer less than $100 in any
calendar year, regardless of when during the year he becomes a Participant.

4.3 Maximum Deferral Limitations. Except as otherwise provided in Sections 4.4 and 4.5, the
maximum Annual Deferral by any Participant for any one calendar year shall be the lesser of the
Applicable Dollar Amount as adjusted for each calendar year to reflect increases in cost-of-living, or
100% of Includible Compensation. For purposes of this rule:

(a) The Applicable Dollar Amount is the amount specified in Code Section 457(¢e)(15)
(524,500 in 2026).

(b) Includible Compensation is the meaning of Participant’s Compensation in Code
Section 415(c)(3).

4.4  Pre-Retirement Limitation. Notwithstanding the maximum limitations of Section 4.3, the
maximum amount that may be deferred during each of the last three calendar years ending prior to
the date a Participant attains Normal Retirement Age shall not exceed the lesser of:

(a) Twice the Applicable Dollar Limit in effect under Section 4.3(a) or
(b) The sum of:

[1] An amount equal to (A) the limit for the current year in Section 4.3(a), plus
each prior calendar year beginning after December 31, 2001, during which
the Participant was an Employee under the Plan, minus (B) the aggregate
amount of Compensation that the Participant deferred under the Plan during
such years, plus

[2] An amount equal to (A) the aggregate limit referred to in section 457(b)(2) of
the Code for each prior calendar year beginning after December 31, 1978 and
before January 1, 2002 during which the Participant was an Employee
(determined without regard to Section 4.3 and 4.4), minus (B) the aggregate
contributions to Pre-2002 Coordination Plans for such years.

However, in no event can the deferred amount be more than the Participant's Compensation for the
year.

195973359v3



4.5 Catch-up Annual Deferral Contributions.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Age 50 Catch-up Annual Deferral Contributions. A Participant who will attain age
50 or more by the end of the calendar year is permitted to elect an additional amount
of Annual Deferrals, up to the maximum age 50 catch-up Annual Deferrals for the
year. The maximum dollar amount of the age 50 catch-up Annual Deferrals for a
year is $8,000 for 2026 (adjusted for cost-of-living after 2026 to the extent provided
under Code Section 415(d)).

Age 60 to 63 Catch-up Annual Deferral Contributions: A Participant who will attain
age 60, 61, 62 or 63 (but not 64 or older) prior to the close of the taxable year is
permitted to elect an additional amount of Annual Deferrals, up to the adjusted dollar
amount. The adjusted dollar amount is the greater of [1] $10,000, or [2] an amount
equal to 150 percent of the dollar amount which would be in effect under Code
Section 414(v)(2)(B)(i) for 2024 for eligible participants ($11,250 for 2026 (adjusted
for cost-of-living after 2026 to the extent provided under Code Sections
414(v)(2)(E)(1) and 415(d))).

However, in no event can the deferred amount be more than the Participant’s
Compensation for the year. If a Participant is subject to both Sections 4.4 and 4.5 for
a plan year, the participant may not take advantage of both limits, but is entitled to
the greater of the two limits.

Effective January 1, 2026, a Participant whose wages as defined under Code Section
3121(a) for the preceding calendar year from the Employer exceed $150,000 in 2025
(as adjusted for cost of living) must make Catch-up Annual Deferral Contributions
under this Section 4.5 as Roth contribution. This requirement shall be interpreted in
accordance with the requirements of Code Section 414(v)(7), which are incorporated
herein by reference. Such Code providers shall override any provision sin the Plan
that may be inconsistent with Code Section 414(v)(7), as amended by the SECURE
2.0 Act.

4.6  Special Rules.

(a)

(b)

195973359v3

Participant Covered By More Than One Eligible Plan. If the Participant is or has
been a participant in one or more other Code Section 457(b) plans, then this Plan and
all such other plans shall be considered as one plan for purposes of applying the
foregoing limitations of this Article IV. For this purpose, the Plan Administrator
shall take into account any other such Code Section 457(b) maintained by the
Employer and shall also take into account any other Code Section 457(b) for which
the Plan Administrator receives from the Participant sufficient information
concerning his or her participation in such other plan.

Pre-Participation Years. In applying Section 4.4, a year shall be taken into account
only if (i) the Participant was eligible to participate in the Plan during all or a portion
of the year and (i1) Compensation deferred, if any, under the Plan during the year was



(©)

(d)

subject to the Basic Annual Limitation described in Section 4.3 or any other plan
ceiling required by section 457(b) of the Code.

Pre-2002 Coordination Years. For purposes of Section 4.4(b)[2](B), “contributions
to Pre-2002 Coordination Plans” means any employer contribution, salary reduction
or elective contribution under any other eligible Code Section 457(b) plan, or a salary
reduction or elective contribution under any Code Section 401(k) qualified cash or
deferred arrangement, Code Section 402(h)(1)(B) simplified employee pension
(SARSEP), Code Section 403(b) annuity contract, and Code Section 408(p) simple
retirement account, or under any plan for which a deduction is allowed because of a
contribution to an organization described in Code Section 501(c)(18), including
plans, arrangements or accounts maintained by the Employer or any employer for
whom the Participant performed services. However, the contributions for any
calendar year are only taken into account for purposes of Section 4.4(b)[2](B) to the
extent that the total of such contributions does not exceed the aggregate limit referred
to in Code Section 457(b)(2) for that year.

Disregard Excess Deferral. For purposes of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5, an individual is
treated as not having deferred compensation under a plan for a prior taxable year to
the extent Excess Deferrals under the plan are distributed, as described in Section
4.8. To the extent that the combined deferrals for pre-2002 years exceeded the
maximum deferral limitations, the amount is treated as an Excess Deferral for those
prior years.

4.7 Deferred Compensation Balances.

(a)

(b)

195973359v3

Separate Accounts: For bookkeeping purposes, the Plan Administrator shall
maintain a separate account for the Deferred Compensation Balance of each
Participant that shall show the dollar value of his current Deferred Compensation
Balance as of the last previous annual computation date, including the earnings,
losses, and expenses due to the investment of such Balance. However, until
distributed to the Participant or Beneficiary, all amounts deferred under the Plan, all
property and rights purchased with such amounts, and all income attributable to such
amounts, property, or rights shall be held in the Trust for the exclusive benefit of
Participants and Beneficiaries. Participants may designate the investment of their
Deferred Compensation Balance under Section 6.3. Neither any Participant nor his
Beneficiary shall have a vested, secured, or preferred interest in any of the
Employer's assets. The Plan Administrator shall distribute, or cause to be distributed,
to each Participant at least annually a written statement setting forth the current value
of such Participant's Deferred Compensation Balance and such other information as
the Plan Administrator shall determine to be appropriate.

The Plan will maintain a record of the amount of Roth contributions in each
Participant’s accounts. A Participant’s Roth contributions will be credited to the
Participant’s Roth account in the Plan. No contributions other than Roth
contributions will be credited to each Participant’s Roth accounts, and gains, losses,
and other credits or charges will be allocated on a reasonable basis to such account.



(©) Valuation and Computation: As of the last day of each calendar year, the Plan
Administrator shall determine the value of the net assets in the Deferred
Compensation Balance of each Participant (i.e., the value of all assets in the Deferred
Compensation Balance of each Participant at their then current fair market value, less
all liabilities) and the value of the deferrals made by each Participant for the year.
The Plan Administrator shall compute the value of each Participant's Deferred
Compensation Balance annually on the last day of each calendar year and shall base
such computations on the valuation of the assets in the Deferred Compensation
Balance on the valuation date coincident with such date. When a Participant's
Deferred Compensation Balance becomes distributable to him (whether by
Separation from Service, or unforeseeable emergency, the Plan Administrator shall
make a special computation by which he shall adjust the dollar value of the
Participant's Deferred Compensation Balance to reflect the values determined on the
first business day of the calendar month during which the Balance becomes payable.

The adjusted amount shall be the amount that the Trustee shall use in determining
the amount that shall be paid to the Participant or Beneficiary. The Plan
Administrator shall be under no obligation to compute the value of any Participant's
Deferred Compensation Balance more than once annually, unless an event occurs
that causes the Participant's Deferred Compensation Balance to become distributable,
in which case the Plan Administrator shall compute the Balance of such Participant
as provided above, and at his discretion, may also compute the Deferred
Compensation Balance of all other Participants.

4.8 Correction of Excess Deferrals. If the Annual Deferral on behalf of a Participant for any
calendar year exceeds the limitations described above, or the Annual Deferral on behalf of a
Participant for any calendar year exceeds the limitations described above when combined with other
amounts deferred by the Participant under another eligible deferred compensation plan under Code
Section 457(b) for which the Participant provides information that is accepted by the Plan
Administrator, then the Annual Deferral, to the extent in excess of the applicable limitation (adjusted
for any income or loss in value, if any, allocable thereto), shall be distributed to the Participant. For
any calendar year in which a Participant makes Annual Deferrals that include Roth contributions and
the Plan is required to distribute Excess Deferrals, the Plan shall distribute to the extent required first
from pre-tax contributions, and then from Roth contributions.

4.9 Protection of Persons Who Serve in a Uniformed Service. Notwithstanding any provision of
this Plan to the contrary, contributions, benefit and service credit with respect to qualified military
service will be provided in accordance with Section 414(u) of the Internal Revenue Code. An
Employee whose employment is interrupted by qualified military service under Code section 414(u)
or who is on a leave of absence for qualified military service under Code section 414(u) may elect to
make additional Annual Deferrals upon resumption of employment with the Employer equal to the
maximum Annual Deferrals that the Employee could have elected during that period if the
Employee's employment with the Employer had continued (at the same level of Compensation)
without the interruption or leave, reduced by the Annual Deferrals, if any, actually made for the
Employee during the period of the interruption or leave. This right applies for five years following
the resumption of employment (or, if sooner, for a period equal to three times the period of the
interruption or leave).

195973359v3



3. Except as amended above, the Employer hereby affirms and readopts each and every other
provision of the Plan.

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the undersigned, being duly authorized by the Board of
Trustees of High Plains Library District, has approved this Amendment as of the date set forth
below.

BOARD OF TRUSTEES — HIGH PLAINS
LIBRARY DISTRICT

By:

Title:

Date:

195973359v3



HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION

Meeting date: December 8™, 2025

Type of item: Information

Subject: Strategic Plan Updates

Presented by: Dr. Matthew Hortt, Executive Director

Recommendation: Information only, no action to be taken

Background
The High Plains Library District is focused on three strategic initiatives. Staff will be providing
regular updates to the Board of Trustees on each of the initiatives.

Construction Updates

e DSS Archive and Expansion

o The building envelope for Building C is nearly enclosed and all levels have been
drywalled

o Project is on budget & schedule

e Mead Library
o Construction is underway on both the library site and overall site plan
o Foundations have been poured
o Paving of the road has been pushed back until spring 2026

Workforce Development
o Mobile Workforce Development Unit
= Bizzwest ran a great article on The Weld Trust’s funding of the vehicle
» The Mobile Workforce Development Unit design is underway
»  We are currently conducting a survey on the vehicle and gathering input from
the community

Literacy

e Efforts on all phases of literacy continue

Recommendation
Information only, no action to be taken






HIGH PLAINS LIBRARY DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES COMMUNICATION

Meeting date: December 8%, 2025

Type of item: Information

Subject: Outgoing Trustee Recognition

Presented by: Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

Recommendation: Item for information only. No action to be taken by the Board.

Background
Our Region 6 Trustee Joyce Smock’s Board Term is set to end on December 31, 2025.

Considerations
Staff would like to recognize her service and thank her for her dedication and the time she has
invested to help build our community!

Staff Recommendation
Item for information only. No action to be taken by the Board.






BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Regular Session Agenda
Monday, January 12, 2026
5:00 p.m.

LINC Library Innovation Center
501 8™ Ave, Greeley, CO 80631

This is also streamed virtually by GoToMeeting and viewed from your computer, tablet, or smartphone.
https://www.mylibrary.us/hpldboardmeetings. To view the Board meeting online, use this link and select the date
of the meeting you want to join. If you have public comments, you may submit questions at the time of signing
up for the meeting. All participants will be muted.

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when your first meeting starts:
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/399313765

If you wish to address the Board via Public Comment, please attend the meeting in person. If you
are unable to attend in person, you can submit public comments to the Board prior to the Board
meeting via Formstack: https:/hpld.formstack.com/forms/board_questions

The High Plains Library District Board may take action on any of the following agenda items as presented or
modified prior to or during the meeting, and items necessary or convenient to effectuate the agenda items.

1.0 OPENING OF MEETING
1.0 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
1.1 Approval of Agenda
1.2 Approval of Consent Agenda
a. December 8, 2025 Regular and Executive Sessions Meeting Minutes
1.3 The Good We Do
1.4 Public Comment

2.0 ITEMS FOR INFORMATION/ACTION
2.1 Oath of Office and Ethics Policy (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
2.2 Election of Board Officers (Action) — Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

a. Chair
b. Vice-Chair
c. Secretary/Treasurer
2.3 Selection of Board Committees (Action) — Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
a. Finance
b Foundation
c. Governance
d Construction Projects

L DSS Library and Archive
1L Mead


https://www.mylibrary.us/hpldboardmeetings
https://global.gotomeeting.com/install/399313765
https://hpld.formstack.com/forms/board_questions

2.4 Policy Updates
a. Criteria for Collection policy
b. Genealogy Collection policy
c. Self-published Works policy
2.5 Strategic Plan Updates (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
a. Construction Updates
b. Workforce Development
c. Literacy

3.0 DIRECTORS REPORT
3.0 Review Draft Agenda — Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
a. February 16, 2026 RS

3.1 District Updates — Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

4.0 BOARD COMMENTS
4.0 Chair Report
4.1 Vice-Chair
4.2 Secretary/Treasurer
4.3 Committees
4.4 Other Board Members

5.0 ADJOURNMENT
Upcoming meetings.

February 16, 2026, 5:00p.m.: HPLD Board of Directors Meeting - Regular Session
Centennial Park Library, 2227 23" Ave, Greeley, CO 80631




N

' P BOARD UPDATES - 2025
ﬁ highplains 12/02/2025

GOAL
*Provide updates to the Board (=D Eric Ewing:

Location\Department: Human Resources

What's Happened in the last 30 days?: Total Employees- 295*
Open Positions - 4

Job Applications Received - 6
New Hires - 1
Resignations - 0

Training Requests - 25

* ADP Employee Count report produced at time of submitting the Board report.

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days?: -Performance Reviews
12/01/2025

(=D Susan Staples:

Location\Department: Information Technology & Innovation

What's Happened in the last 30 days?:
« Raymer turned over to Outreach

« Erie - meeting room upgrade to align with current standards, new study room AV installation, new maker room AV installation
« Hudson - client technology refresh

« Mobile app testing, Vega continued work

« Support of all strategic plan work - Milliken, Mead, Admin C

« Johnstown copier addition

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days?:


https://highplains.executestrategy.net/user/goals/2550

Farr refresh

Decommission existing Milliken coffee shop site
Erie -installation of Qty 2 collaboration units
Year end work and planning

Mobile app testing, Vega continued work

Support of all strategic plan work - Milliken, Mead, Admin C

11/30/2025

(1208 Marjorie Elwood:

Location\Department: Executive

What's Happened in the last 30 days?: -Building a Better Organization tours at Centennial Park, Riverside, Farr, Erie, and LINC.
-Continued work on furniture finishes for Mead Library as well as power options for pod; weekly OAC (Owner, Architect, and Contractor)
meetings.

-Meeting about controls for the pergola at DSS, as well as weekly OAC (Owner, Architect, and Contractor) meetings.

-5 responses to emoji questions.

-Performance appraisals: contributed to 4, wrote 8, read and approved 100.

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days?: -Last of the Building a Better Organization tours
-Preparing for Charlene Parker's (Manager of the Farr Library) retirement

-Continued work on policies and procedures
11/28/2025

(1213 Bobby Arellano:

Location\Department: Facilities

What's Happened in the last 30 days?:

Completed cleaning and disinfecting at all locations including homeless clean ups, and cleaning schedule changes and maintaining supplies.
Completed work order for all locations including assisting IT department and member library work order requests.

Attended construction meetings including walk throughs , subcontractor meetings and manager's meeting.

Assisted Buyers reps, construction superintendent's and branch managers.

Completed deliveries and pick up services including lumber and materials, ski ball machine to Loveland event center and table to New Raymer school for scheduled
event.

Completed moving staff and vehicles out of bank building and storage units including key returns and cleaning after move outs back to admin building and
removing temporary electrical shorelines from storage units.

Completed Grover 11 month walk through items including ADA re-inspections.
Completed annual performance appraisals for facilities department and executive director.

Completed makerspace counter replacement and laser cutter ventilation issues or Erie including adding shrubs around Erie patio to reduce traffic noise, painted all
exterior metal awnings at Farr library and painted exterior metal railings as well as replaced cell phone charging stations at Centennial Park.

Completed several annual fire department inspections and elevator inspections including adding CO2 sensors at Grover library.

Completed winterizations all locations including taking down sun shades for winter and snow removal renewal contracts for all locations.



« Obtained bids for various items such as vehicle purchases, LINC drive way widening including engineer bids, Grover wind break, lighting upgrades at Carbon
Valley and Farr libraries, Security/Fire system installations including monitoring for admin building A-B-C and Mead library, door hardware, Grover propane service
contracts and vehicle repairs.

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days?:
« Complete cleaning and disinfecting at all locations including equipment and supplies.

« Complete all work orders including for member libraries.

« Complete MOVE vehicle inspections, maintenance and record keeping.
« Attend construction and safety meetings.

« Prep for moving into admin building C.

« Complete ITI department vehicle purchase agreement, complete prep work and scheduling for replacing entire HVAC system including software at Carbon Valley
library and boiler replacements for Erie for 2026 CIP projects.

« Complete end of year projects and begin prepping for 2026 CIP projects.
11/26/2025

(LTZ1D James Melena:

Location\Department: Community Relations and Marketing

What's Happened in the last 30 days?:
« Diaper drive promotion

« United Way diaper partnership
« Noco Style article planning

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days?:
« Noco Style article release

« Holiday programming promotion
« Marketing Tech (full time) onboarding

« Large format printer coming back online
11/26/2025

(120D Elena Rosenfeld:

Location\Department: Community Engagement and Strategies

What's Happened in the last 30 days?: Generation Wild of Greeley: The Greeley Generation Wild Coalition hosted a community meeting at Bella Romero to ask
residents on the east side of Greeley to identify what projects and programs best meet their needs and interests. There may have been 70 or more community
members participating.

Measuring Outreach Better: A former member of the project team reached out to journal publishers about the Measuring Outreach Better
study and found some journals that might be willing to share a story about our study. As a result, Sara Wicen and Elena Rosenfeld agreed to
reach out to the editor of Public Libraries which will be focusing on Community Engagement in their September 2026 issue. Sara has sent an
email of inquiry about whether the editor has interest in a short article about our project. We do not anticipate a response due to our study not
having received formal International Review Board (IRB) approval.

State Demography Summit: The State Demography Summit highlighted the importance of migration into the State and Weld County for
population growth. It was noted that Weld County’s population would be flat if we didn’t have so many young families moving into the region.
During the Summit, the presenters shared how the Census had to change the measures for migration as patterns have changed from the past.



Historically, 80% of Colorado’s new population came in from other states and only 20% arrived from other countries. For the past few years, 80%
are from other countries and only 20% are from other states.

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days?: United Way of Weld County will be hosting the Leaders in Giving reception on Thursday, December 4th. The event will
honor Kay and Tom Norton for their work in the community.

State’s Digital Access Team Meeting: Elena Rosenfeld will be meeting with one of the State’s Digital Access team members to discuss the
status of the State’s Digital Equity project and how that might align with the District’s priorities.

11/26/2025

(1218 Melanie Goldman:

Location\Department: Carbon Valley

What's Happened in the last 30 days?:

« Patron Feedback: “This library is a great source of resources and information. The computer system works very well. Last but not least, the staff is very friendly and
helpful.”

« Children’s librarians Bridget Parker and Amanda Pittman visited multiple classrooms at Firestone Charter Academy on November 12, to promote library services.
« Career and Workforce Development Librarian, Cassandra Bland, hosted a booth at the Carbon Valley Chamber of Commerce Non-Profit Showcase on November 13.
« The makerspace welcomed 163 patrons in November.

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days?:
« Librarians Diana Grover and Cassandra Bland will be hosting a booth at the 2025 Carbon Valley Holiday Festival on December 6.

« Librarians Lisa Varra and Bridget Parker will be hosting a booth at Mead Christmas in the Park on December 6.

« The Firestone Police will be conducting storytime during Cookies with a Cop at the library on December 20.
11/24/2025

(L1200 Natalie Wertz:

Location\Department: Finance

What's Happened in the last 30 days?:
« GFOA WPFN Mentoring Program

« 2026 budget work
« Year-end preparation

What's Coming Up in the next 30 days?:
« 2026 budget filing with state and GFOA and mill levy certification to county assessors

« Year-end preparation
« performance appraisal

« GFOA WPFN Mentoring Program
11/21/2025



	1.2 HPLD Board Agenda 12.8.25 RS and ES (1)
	1.0 Opening of Meeting
	1.1 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	1.2 Approval of Agenda
	1.3 Approval of Consent Agenda
	a. November 17, 2025 Regular and Executive Sessions Meeting Minutes

	1.4 The Good We Do
	1.5 Public Comment

	2.0 Items for Information/Action
	2.1 Introduction of new Trustees (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	2.2 Final Budget Overview (Action) – Natalie Wertz, HPLD Finance Manager
	a. Resolution 25-1, Adopt Budget
	b. Resolution 25-2, Appropriate Sums of Money
	c. Resolution 25-3, Set Mill Levy, Weld County
	d. Resolution 25-4, Set Mill Levy, Boulder County

	2.3 457 Plan Update (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	2.4 Strategic Plan Updates (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. Construction Updates
	b. Workforce Development
	c. Literacy

	2.5 Outgoing Trustee Recognition (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

	3.0 DIRECTORS REPORT
	3.1 Review Draft Agenda – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. January 12, 2026 RS

	3.2 District Updates – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

	4.0 BOARD COMMENTS
	4.1 Chair Report
	4.2 Vice-Chair
	4.3 Secretary/Treasurer
	4.4 Committees
	4.5 Other Board Members

	5.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION
	5.1 C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (f) Personnel Matters – Matthew Hortt’s Performance Appraisal

	6.0 ADJOURNMENT
	January 12, 2026, 5:00p.m.:  HPLD Board of Directors Meeting - Regular Session


	1.3 HPLD Board MINUTES 11.17.25 RS and ES
	1.0 OPENING OF MEETING at 5:00PM
	1.1 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance

	All Trustees were Present:
	Chair Nick Nakamura
	Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
	Secretary/Treasurer Deana Lemos-Garcia
	Trustee Jenna Evans attended virtually
	Trustee Gerri Holton
	Trustee Michael Wailes
	Trustee Lisa Taylor

	Chair Nakamura read the following statements into record:
	High Plains Library District is dependent on the trust of its community to successfully achieve its mission. Therefore, it is crucial that all Trustees conduct business on behalf of the High Plains Library District with the highest level of integrity,...
	1.2  Approval of Agenda
	MOTION to approve the agenda: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
	SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 6:0

	1.3 Approval of Consent Agenda
	October 13, 2025 Regular and Executive Sessions Meeting Minutes
	MOTION to approve the consent agenda: Trustee Michael Wailes
	SECOND: Trustee Lisa Taylor
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 6:0

	1.4 The Good We Do

	Dr. Hortt presented the Good We Do
	1.5  Public Comment

	2.0 Items for Information/Action
	2.1 HPLD 2026 Holiday Schedule (Action) – Eric Ewing, HPLD Human Resources Associate Director
	MOTION to approve the proposed holiday schedule for 2026: Trustee Lisa Taylor
	SECOND: Secretary/Treasurer Deana Lemos-Garcia
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 6:0

	2.2  2026 Board Meeting Calendar (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	MOTION to approve the board meeting calendar for 2026: Trustee Gerri Holton
	SECOND: Trustee Michael Wailes
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 6:0

	2.3 Guidelines for URA and TIF Proposals (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	MOTION to approve and adopt the Guidelines for URA and TIF Proposals: Trustee Michael Wailes
	SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 6:0


	2.4  Town of Frederick – Miner’s Park URA (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director & Ryan Johnson, Assistant Town Manager, Town of Frederick
	MOTION to approve the Miner’s Park URA to follow the guidelines at a 50/50% split: Trustee Lisa Taylor
	SECOND: Trustee Michael Wailes
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 6:0
	2.5  Guidelines for Safety Improvement Fund (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	As part the District’s agreements with the member libraries, including IGAs and addendums, staff created Safety Improvement Fund Guidelines for reimbursing a member library up to $20,000 per safety improvement project within a two-year period.
	MOTION to approve the Safety Improvement Fund Guidelines as presented: Secretary/Treasurer Deana Lemos-Garcia
	SECOND: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 6:0

	2.6 Trustee Appointments (Information)
	2.7 Strategic Plan Updates (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

	3.0 DIRECTOR’S REPORT
	3.1 Review Draft Agenda – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. December 8, 2025


	4.0 BOARD COMMENTS
	4.1 Chair Nakamura thanked everyone for an efficient meeting.
	4.2 Vice-Chair Smock said she is pleased with the things going on and only two construction projects.
	4.3 Secretary/Treasurer Lemos-Garcia enjoys working with Joyce and appreciates her contributions, and she thanked Joyce for leading the way for new members of the board.  She also appreciates having meetings in other libraries because she may not have...
	4.5 Other Board Members
	5.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION
	MOTION to adjourn from Regular Session and enter into Executive Session under C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) – Pursuant to section C.R.S. § 24-6-402(4) (b), Receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney – Lochbuie Claim, Granado Claim, and...
	SECOND: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 6:0

	An executive session meeting of the Board of Trustees of the High Plains Library District was convened at 6:31pm on November 17, 2025, for the sole purpose of receiving legal advice on specific legal questions from an attorney – Lochbuie Claim, Granad...
	6.0 Reconvening of Regular Session AT 8:07PM
	6.1 Roll Call
	All Trustees were Present unless noted
	Chair Nick Nakamura
	Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
	Secretary/Treasurer Deana Lemos-Garcia
	Trustee Jenna Evans was excused
	Trustee Gerri Holton
	Trustee Michael Wailes
	Trustee Lisa Taylor

	7.0 ADJOURNMENT AT 8:08PM:
	MOTION to adjourn the meeting: Vice-Chair Joyce Smock
	SECOND: Trustee Gerri Holton
	DISCUSSION: None
	VOTE: 6:0


	2.1 HPLD Board Communication 12.2.2025 - Trustee Introduction_
	2.2 board communication budget for 2026 December 8 2025 meeting
	2.2a High Plains Library District Budget 2026
	2.3 Board Communication 2025 Deferred Comp 457 Amendment Dec 8 2025
	2.3a 2025-2 Amendment 457(b) Plan - change in election Roth-195973359-v3
	1. Effective January 1, 2026, Article III of the Plan is amended to read as follows:
	Article III  - ELIGIBILITY AND ENROLLMENT
	3.1 Eligibility.  Each Eligible Employee, shall be eligible to participate in the Plan and defer Compensation pursuant to the terms of the Plan as of the Entry Date.
	3.2 Election Required for Participation.  An Eligible Employee may elect to become a Participant by executing an election to defer a portion of his or her Compensation (and have that amount contributed as an Annual Deferral on his or her behalf) and f...
	3.3 Commencement of Participation.  An Eligible Employee shall become a Participant as soon as administratively practicable following the date the Eligible Employee files a participation election pursuant to Section 3.2 and as of the Participant’s Ent...
	3.4 Information Provided by the Participant.  Each Eligible Employee enrolling in the Plan should provide to the Plan Administrator at the time of initial enrollment, and later if there are any changes, any information necessary or advisable for the P...
	3.5 Contributions Made Promptly.  Annual Deferrals by the Participant under the Plan shall be transferred to the Trust Fund within a period that is not longer than is reasonable for the proper administration of the Participant's Account Balance.  For ...
	3.6 Amendment of Annual Deferrals Election.  Subject to other provisions of the Plan, a Participant may at any time revise his or her participation election, including a change of the amount of his or her Annual Deferrals, designation of Annual Deferr...
	3.7 Leave of Absence.  Unless an election is otherwise revised, if a Participant is absent from work by leave of absence, Annual Deferrals under the Plan shall continue to the extent that Compensation continues.
	3.8 Disability.  A disabled Participant may elect Annual Deferrals during any portion of the period of his or her disability to the extent that he or she has actual Compensation (not imputed Compensation and not disability benefits) from which to make...
	3.9 Termination of Participation and Election.  A Participant’s election shall terminate immediately upon Severance from Employment, or if earlier, a transfer to a position that disqualifies the Employee from participating in the Plan.  Participation ...

	2. Effective January 1, 2026, Article IV of the Plan is amended to read as follows:
	Article IV  – deferral arrangement
	4.1 Deferral.
	(a) By execution of a Deferral Agreement, the Participant authorizes the Plan Administrator to make payroll deductions from his paychecks in the amount specified by such Participant in his Deferral Agreement.  This participation election shall be made...
	(b) A Participant may designate a portion of or all of his or her Annual Deferrals as either a pre-tax contribution or as a Roth contribution.  Unless otherwise specified in this Plan, Roth contributions will be treated in the same manner as pre-tax c...

	4.2 Minimum Deferral Limitation.  No Participant may elect to defer less than $100 in any calendar year, regardless of when during the year he becomes a Participant.
	4.3 Maximum Deferral Limitations.  Except as otherwise provided in Sections 4.4 and 4.5, the maximum Annual Deferral by any Participant for any one calendar year shall be the lesser of the Applicable Dollar Amount as adjusted for each calendar year to...
	(a) The Applicable Dollar Amount is the amount specified in Code Section 457(e)(15) ($24,500 in 2026).
	(b) Includible Compensation is the meaning of Participant’s Compensation in Code Section 415(c)(3).

	4.4 Pre-Retirement Limitation.  Notwithstanding the maximum limitations of Section 4.3, the maximum amount that may be deferred during each of the last three calendar years ending prior to the date a Participant attains Normal Retirement Age shall not...
	(a) Twice the Applicable Dollar Limit in effect under Section 4.3(a) or
	(b) The sum of:
	[1] An amount equal to (A) the limit for the current year in Section 4.3(a), plus each prior calendar year beginning after December 31, 2001, during which the Participant was an Employee under the Plan, minus (B) the aggregate amount of Compensation t...
	[2] An amount equal to (A) the aggregate limit referred to in section 457(b)(2) of the Code for each prior calendar year beginning after December 31, 1978 and before January 1, 2002 during which the Participant was an Employee (determined without rega...


	4.5 Catch-up Annual Deferral Contributions.
	(a) Age 50 Catch-up Annual Deferral Contributions.    A Participant who will attain age 50 or more by the end of the calendar year is permitted to elect an additional amount of Annual Deferrals, up to the maximum age 50 catch-up Annual Deferrals for t...
	(b) Age 60 to 63 Catch-up Annual Deferral Contributions:  A Participant who will attain age 60, 61, 62 or 63 (but not 64 or older) prior to the close of the taxable year is permitted to elect an additional amount of Annual Deferrals, up to the adjuste...
	(c) However, in no event can the deferred amount be more than the Participant’s Compensation for the year. If a Participant is subject to both Sections 4.4 and 4.5 for a  plan year, the participant may not take advantage of both limits, but is entitle...
	(d) Effective January 1, 2026,  a Participant whose wages as defined under Code Section 3121(a) for the preceding calendar year from the Employer exceed $150,000 in 2025 (as adjusted for cost of living) must make Catch-up Annual Deferral Contributions...

	4.6 Special Rules.
	(a) Participant Covered By More Than One Eligible Plan.  If the Participant is or has been a participant in one or more other Code Section 457(b) plans, then this Plan and all such other plans shall be considered as one plan for purposes of applying t...
	(b) Pre-Participation Years.  In applying Section 4.4, a year shall be taken into account only if (i) the Participant was eligible to participate in the Plan during all or a portion of the year and (ii) Compensation deferred, if any, under the Plan du...
	(c) Pre-2002 Coordination Years.  For purposes of Section 4.4(b)[2](B), “contributions to Pre-2002 Coordination Plans” means any employer contribution, salary reduction or elective contribution under any other eligible Code Section 457(b) plan, or a s...
	(d) Disregard Excess Deferral. For purposes of Sections 4.3, 4.4 and 4.5, an individual is treated as not having deferred compensation under a plan for a prior taxable year to the extent Excess Deferrals under the plan are distributed, as described in...

	4.7  Deferred Compensation Balances.
	(a) Separate Accounts:  For bookkeeping purposes, the Plan Administrator shall maintain a separate account for the Deferred Compensation Balance of each Participant that shall show the dollar value of his current Deferred Compensation Balance as of th...
	(b) The Plan will maintain a record of the amount of Roth contributions in each Participant’s accounts.  A Participant’s Roth contributions will be credited to the Participant’s Roth account in the Plan.  No contributions other than Roth contributions...
	(c) Valuation and Computation:  As of the last day of each calendar year, the Plan Administrator shall determine the value of the net assets in the Deferred Compensation Balance of each Participant (i.e., the value of all assets in the Deferred Compen...

	4.8 Correction of Excess Deferrals. If the Annual Deferral on behalf of a Participant for any calendar year exceeds the limitations described above, or the Annual Deferral on behalf of a Participant for any calendar year exceeds the limitations descri...
	4.9 Protection of Persons Who Serve in a Uniformed Service. Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary, contributions, benefit and service credit with respect to qualified military service will be provided in accordance with Section 41...
	3. Except as amended above, the Employer hereby affirms and readopts each and every other provision of the Plan.



	2.4 - HPLD Board Communication 12.8.25 - Strat Plan Update
	2.5 HPLD Board Communication 12.8.2025 - Recognition of Trustee
	3.1 HPLD Board Agenda 1.12.26 RS
	1.0 Opening of Meeting
	1.0 Roll Call and Pledge of Allegiance
	1.1 Approval of Agenda
	1.2 Approval of Consent Agenda
	a. December 8, 2025 Regular and Executive Sessions Meeting Minutes

	1.3 The Good We Do
	1.4 Public Comment

	2.0 Items for Information/Action
	2.1 Oath of Office and Ethics Policy (Action) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	2.2 Election of Board Officers (Action) – Dr.  Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. Chair
	b. Vice-Chair
	c. Secretary/Treasurer

	2.3 Selection of Board Committees (Action) – Dr.  Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. Finance
	b. Foundation
	c. Governance
	d. Construction Projects
	I. DSS Library and Archive


	2.4 Policy Updates
	a. Criteria for Collection policy

	2.5 Strategic Plan Updates (Information) - Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. Construction Updates
	b. Workforce Development
	c. Literacy


	3.0 DIRECTORS REPORT
	3.0 Review Draft Agenda – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director
	a. February 16, 2026 RS

	3.1 District Updates – Dr. Matthew Hortt, HPLD Executive Director

	4.0 BOARD COMMENTS
	4.0 Chair Report
	4.1 Vice-Chair
	4.2 Secretary/Treasurer
	4.3 Committees
	4.4 Other Board Members

	5.0 ADJOURNMENT

	6.0 Operations Update - November 2025
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

